          1

          2  CITY COUNCIL

          3

             CITY OF NEW YORK

          4

             -------------------------------x

          5

             THE TRANSCRIPT OF THE MINUTES

          6

                       of the

          7

             SUBCOMMITTEE ON ZONING

          8  And FRANCHISES

          9  -------------------------------x

         10

                            July 23, 2007

         11                 Start:  10:05 a.m.

                            Recess: 3:13 p.m.

         12

                            City Hall

         13                 Council Chambers

                            New York, New York

         14

         15       B E F O R E:

         16              TONY AVELLA

                                           Chairperson,

         17

         18              COUNCIL MEMBERS:   Joel Rivera

                                            Simcha Felder

         19                                 Eric Gioia

                                            Robert Jackson

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24       LEGAL-EASE COURT REPORTING SERVICES, INC.

                         17 Battery Place -  Suite 1308

         25              New York, New York 10004

                              (800) 756-3410

                                                            2

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S

          3

             COUNCIL MEMBERS:

          4

          5  Melinda Katz

             Michael McMahon

          6  Larry Seabrook

             Helen Sears

          7  Kendall Stewart

             Letitia James

          8  Vincent Gentile

             Oliver Koppell

          9  James Gennaro

             Leroy Comrie

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

                                                            3

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Raymond Levin

          4  Wachtel & Masur

             Erma Realty

          5

             Christina Derose

          6  Project Manager

             Economic Development Corporation

          7

             Charlton Hauer

          8  AM&G Waterproofing

          9  Mark Glosserman

             Hill Country

         10

             Marjorie Perlmutter

         11  Counsel for Hill Country

         12  Purnima Kapur

             NYC Department of City Planning, Brooklyn

         13

             Sarah Goldwyn

         14  NYC Department of City Planning

         15  Melanie Meyers

         16  Sharon Barnes

             Society for Clinton Hill

         17  Fort Greene Association of Brooklyn, New York

         18  Blaise Backer

             Myrtle Avenue Business Improvement District

         19

             Thomas Schutte

         20  Pratt

         21  Richard Jacobs

             Project Manager Dyker Heights/Fort Hamilton Rezoning

         22  NYC Department of City Planning

         23  Reverend Michael Casale

             Community Board No. 10

         24

             Fran Vella-Marrone

         25  President

             Dyker Heights Civic Association

                                                            4

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Reverend Michael Casale

          4  Community Board No. 10

          5  Fran Vella-Marrone

             Dyker Heights Civic Association

          6

             Nestor Danyluk

          7  District Manager

             NYC Department of City Planning, Bronx

          8

             Ryan Singer

          9  Deputy Director

             NYC Department of City Planning, Bronx

         10

             Mary Lauro

         11  Wakefield Taxpayers Association

         12  Carmen Rosa

             District Manager

         13  Community Board No. 12, Bronx

         14  Amanda Burden

             Chair, New York City Planning Commission

         15  Director, NYC Department of City Planning

         16  Holly Light

             Associate Commissioner

         17  New York City Department of City Planning

         18  John Young

             Director, Queens Office

         19  NYC Department of City Planning

         20  Maura McCarthy

             Queens Borough Commissioner

         21  NYC Department of Transportation

         22  Angela Licata

             Deputy Commissioner

         23  NYC Department of Environmental Protection

         24  Derek Lee, R.A.

             Queens Borough Commissioner

         25  NYC Department of Buildings

                                                            5

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

          4

             Gloria R. Black, Ph.D

          5  Chairperson

             Community Board No. 12, Jamaica, Queens, New York

          6

             Irving Poy

          7  Office of Queens Borough President Helen Marshall

          8  Samuel Henderson

             Member

          9  AHC

         10  Benjamin Marion

         11  William Maniqoult

         12  L. Nicolas Ronderos

             Regional Plan Association

         13

             Carol Van Guilder

         14  Real Estate Board of New York

         15  F. Carlisle Towery

             President

         16  Greater Jamaica Development Corporation

         17  Patricia Dolan

             Executive Vice President

         18  Queens Civic Congress

         19  Kevin J. Forrestal

             President

         20  Hillcrest Estates Civic Association

         21  Seymour Schwartz

             President

         22  Briarwood Community Association

         23  Emmanuel Lambrakis, M.D.

         24  Holly Franz

             Kamali Organization

         25

                                                            6

          1

          2  A P P E A R A N C E S (CONTINUED)

          3

             Eric Bluestone

          4  Bluestone Development

          5  Sandra Atwell

             Hollis 11423 Block Association

          6

             Eugenia Rudmann

          7  Chairperson, Ad Hoc Committee

             Community Board No. 12

          8

             Martha Taylor

          9  Chairperson, Zoning Committee

             Jamaica Estates Association

         10

             Dr. Arthur Flug

         11  Chairperson of Board

             Jamaica Estates Association

         12

             Richard Bowers

         13  Representing Larry Bernstein

             Jonas Equities, Inc.

         14

             Jeff Spiritos

         15  Spiritos Properties

         16  Dr. Barry Eisenkraft

         17  Aron Gooblar

             JFK Center Associates

         18

             Yasenia Graham

         19  Graham Associates

         20  Kevin Curtin

             New York Hotel Trades Council

         21

             Deborah Ayala

         22  President

             Jamaica Hill Committee

         23

             Camille Rivera

         24  Representing Kyle Bragg, Vice President

             Local 32BJ SEIU

         25

                                                            7

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Good morning,

          3  everyone. I would like to call this meeting of the

          4  Zoning Committee and Franchises to order. Joining me

          5  are Committee members Joel Rivera, Simcha Felder,

          6  Melinda Katz, Mike McMahon, Larry Seabrook, Helen

          7  Sears, and we do have a number of other Council

          8  Members that have joined us who have applications

          9  before this Committee this morning, and I'll

         10  introduce them as we get to those items.

         11                 We have six different items on the

         12  agenda today, some very important rezonings, and we

         13  have a couple of other matters as well. What we will

         14  do, so everybody in the room knows, the Jamaica

         15  plan, which most of the people in the room are here

         16  for, will not be voted on today. We will be having

         17  the public hearing but laying the vote over to the

         18  August meeting of this Committee. That will give us

         19  some time to evaluate the concerns of the residents

         20  and the public testimony, and evaluate that over the

         21  next month.

         22                 So, that will be the last item on the

         23  agenda. The other items I have to hear first so I

         24  can have a vote. And we will try and get through

         25  this agenda as quickly as possible.
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          2                 The first item on the agenda is AM&G

          3  Waterproofing, C060545 ZMK. Application submitted by

          4  Erma Realty, LLC, eliminated within an existing R6

          5  District, a C2-3 District, and changing from an R6

          6  District to an M1-1 district, and we have a

          7  representative of the applicant here. I'll call them

          8  up.

          9                 This application lies within Council

         10  Member Darlene Mealy's district. She is in favor of

         11  the application.

         12                 MR. LEVIN: Good morning. My name is

         13  Raymond Levin, and I'm with the law firm of Wachtel

         14  and Masur, Counsel to Erma Realty, AM&G

         15  Waterproofing and Park Avenue Building Supplies.

         16                 With me this morning is Charlton

         17  Hamer, Director of Real Estate for those entities

         18  and Christina Derose from the Economic Development

         19  Corporation, who is co-applicant on this matter.

         20                 Three years ago this Subcommittee

         21  considered a zoning change and disposition of

         22  City-owned Property immediately to the west of the

         23  site we're going to discuss this morning.

         24                 As a result of that approval, the

         25  applicant developed 132,000 square feet of retail,
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          2  wholesale and warehouse space for its businesses.

          3                 Last fall Gilbert Rivera, shortly

          4  before his untimely death, presided over the opening

          5  of that complex which brought hundreds of jobs to

          6  Brooklyn's Brownsville neighborhood.

          7                 If approved, the action under

          8  consideration today, a zoning change from R6 to M1,

          9  will allow for the development of a vehicle

         10  maintenance facility to care for the AM&G

         11  Waterproofing and Park Avenue Building Supplies

         12  fleet of trucks in a fully enclosed 17,700 square

         13  foot one-story building.

         14                 The applicant owns a portion of the

         15  site, a former gas station which has been remediated

         16  and the City owns a vacant parcel to be sold to the

         17  applicant.

         18                 That sale was unanimously approved by

         19  the Brooklyn Borough Board. The proposed zoning

         20  change received approval recommendation from both

         21  Community Board 16 in Brooklyn and Borough President

         22  Markowitz, the Community Board voted without

         23  dissent. The City Planning Commission approved the

         24  proposed change unanimously. We respectfully urge

         25  your Committee to approve this application.
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          2                 Thank you very much, and I'd like to

          3  have Charlton from the company speak now. Thank you.

          4                 MR. HAMER: Good morning. My name is

          5  Charlton Hamer. I'm Director of Real Estate with

          6  AM&G Waterproofing LLC and Park Avenue Building and

          7  Roofing Supply. Essentially what this building will

          8  allow us to do, and it will be an auxiliary building

          9  to what we've already constructed on the other

         10  corner of Atlantic and Saratoga. It is to build as

         11  of right a vehicle maintenance facility. We are

         12  moving our operations from Park Avenue and Spencer

         13  Street to the Atlantic and Saratoga area. The

         14  building that we've constructed on the Southwest

         15  corner of Atlantic and Saratoga, a little over

         16  100,000 square feet, is a beautiful aesthetic to the

         17  community. It's added jobs to the community, and we

         18  plan on continuing that and working with our

         19  neighbors in that construction process, as well.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 MS. DEROSE: Hi. My name is Christina

         22  Derose, and I am the Project Manager for the New

         23  York City Economic Development Corporation. And I am

         24  just here to voice EDC's strong support for the

         25  rezoning, as well as down the road the City's sale
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          2  of the property and to answer any questions that you

          3  might have as it pertains to EDC's role in this

          4  process.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any questions

          6  from Committee members? As I mentioned, this lies

          7  within Council Member Mealy's district. She is in

          8  support of the application.

          9                 Seeing no questions, thank you. I see

         10  no one else signed up to speak on this item. If that

         11  is the case, I will close the public hearing and

         12  we'll move to the next item.

         13                 Land Use No. 481, commonly referred

         14  to as the Hill Country. 20075236 TCM. A petition by

         15  Hill Country New York LLC to establish, maintain and

         16  operate an unenclosed sidewalk cafe, located at 30

         17  West 26th Street.

         18                 I call the representative of the

         19  owner up.

         20                 MS. PERLMUTTER: Good morning, Council

         21  Members. My name is Marjorie Perlmutter. I'm Land

         22  Use Counsel to Hill Country Restaurant, the

         23  applicant for sidewalk cafe located at 26 West 30th

         24  Street. We are here to -- this application was

         25  approved by the Department of Consumer Affairs and
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          2  in response to certain community, immediate

          3  community concerns about the application, we've made

          4  some modifications and we've come to an agreement

          5  with the members of the immediate community, and I

          6  just wanted to go through with you what the changes

          7  are.

          8                 In January of this year we had an

          9  approval by the Community Board for a much larger

         10  sidewalk cafe that had a total of 24 tables and 54

         11  seats, and over the course of the approval process,

         12  we went to the Department of Consumer Affairs and

         13  were approved for a cafe in June. You'll see in your

         14  packet the final approval, but in June we were

         15  approved for a cafe that included a total, this is a

         16  cafe that is both located on private property and on

         17  public property. So, a total of 43 seats and 19

         18  tables combined, and you see the diagram here. And

         19  then also, what you see on this diagram is actually

         20  the public space, which is showing nine tables and

         21  18 seats. That was what was approved by the

         22  Department of Consumer Affairs in June.

         23                 In response to community concerns

         24  about this, we have further reviewed the cafe and

         25  have come to an agreement on the diagram that is in
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          2  your packages, which is shown behind me as well, for

          3  a total combined cafe of 17 tables and 41 seats, and

          4  in terms of the public domain, seven tables and 16

          5  seats.

          6                 We have a letter that we've agreed

          7  with the community to execute, and Mark Glosserman

          8  from Hill Country will read the letter into the

          9  record.

         10                 MR. GLOSSERMAN: Good morning,

         11  Counsel. This letter was addressed to Speaker

         12  Quinn's office.

         13                 "Dear Speaker Quinn, I write to

         14  memorialize the understanding we have agreed to at

         15  the local community. First, I would like to thank

         16  you and your staff for working with us to better

         17  understand our neighbors concerns and to identify

         18  the ways in which we can ensure we will enjoy a

         19  copasetic relationship with the surrounding

         20  neighborhood. Having a productive relationship with

         21  our neighbors is important to our business

         22  operation, and we appreciate your advising us how to

         23  best accomplish this.

         24                 We agree to the following: Reduction

         25  in size. Hill Country will remove four tables and
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          2  six chairs from the currently planned cafe. Two

          3  tables and four chairs will be removed from the

          4  portion of the cafe that is situated in front of the

          5  freight entrance on private property.

          6                 In addition, as opposed to having two

          7  tables on the front outside corners of the cafe, we

          8  will remove one table on each side and convert the

          9  second table on each side to a three-person table.

         10  This will reduce sidewalk cafe by an additional two

         11  seats for a total of a six-seat reduction.

         12                 Hours of operation. Hill Country will

         13  stop serving customers in the cafe at 10:00 each

         14  day.

         15                 Noise attenuation. In an effort to

         16  reduce the noise emanating from the sidewalk cafe,

         17  the restaurant and the music venue in the basement

         18  Hill Country will:

         19                 (a) keep the doors to the customer

         20  entrance and the sidewalk cafe entrance closed when

         21  not in use.

         22                 (b) purchase lightweight furniture

         23  for the sidewalk cafe.

         24                 (c) for the portion of the sidewalk

         25  cafe that is not covered by the existing awning,
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          2  Hill Country will look into the purchase of

          3  umbrellas or another temporary solution to provide

          4  cover to the sidewalk cafe.

          5                 Community communication.

          6                 Hill Country agrees to meet with the

          7  neighbors, Speaker Quinn's Office and the local

          8  community board when the sidewalk cafe closes for

          9  2007, and/or at the request of Speaker Quinn's

         10  Office any time during the operation of the cafe.

         11                 Thank you, again, for working with us

         12  to ensure a successful operation that proactively

         13  addresses concerns raised by neighbors.

         14                 MS. PERLMUTTER: The architect Steve

         15  Wygoda is here to describe many specific differences

         16  between the originally approved and the proposed

         17  changes, if you would like him to answer those

         18  questions?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. First

         20  of all, just one quick note, there is no date on the

         21  letter you just read. So, we'll take today's date as

         22  the date it was submitted.

         23                 I don't think I mentioned, but

         24  obviously from the testimony this lies within

         25  Speaker Quinn's district. She obviously worked out
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          2  the compromise with the owners in deference to the

          3  community. Are there any questions from Committee

          4  members? Seeing none, thank you.

          5                 I don't see anybody signed up to

          6  speak on the public hearing.

          7                 You have signed up? Okay. Thank you,

          8  you're done.

          9                 MR. GLOSSERMAN: Thank you.

         10                 MS. MEYERS: Thank you for the

         11  opportunity to testify. My name is Melanie Meyers.

         12  I'm an attorney with Fried Frank Harris Shriver and

         13  Jacobson, and we represent the residential occupants

         14  of 24 West 30th Street. It's about 50 feet East of

         15  the proposed cafe that you heard about this morning.

         16                 Hill Country is a unique

         17  establishment. It's a two-level venue. It is going

         18  to be a self-service buffet and cocktail service. It

         19  hopes to have, we understand, light music and

         20  dancing. The filings at the Buildings Department

         21  indicate an occupancy of about 499 people, and the

         22  application before you today would add another 41

         23  people on the sidewalk.

         24                 The size and the scale of this

         25  establishment make it clear that this is something
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          2  more than a neighborhood restaurant. It is coming

          3  into a neighborhood and it's one that has many

          4  residential occupants, both on both sides of the

          5  proposed cafe, as well as 24 West 26th Street, 50

          6  feet down the road.

          7                 In order to have an establishment of

          8  this magnitude coexist with this mixed use area,

          9  it's very important that there are a number of

         10  operational measures that will be implemented. The

         11  hours of operation must make sense for residential

         12  families with small children, noise control measures

         13  must be implemented and be effective, the presence

         14  of the cafe on the street should be minimized, and

         15  most importantly, line of communication needs to be

         16  developed between the operators and the community.

         17                 The Speaker's Office shared with us

         18  the letter that was prepared by Hill Country, and we

         19  hope to speak with them about it soon, and while it

         20  may not be perfect from the perspective of my

         21  client, the world is not a perfect place. We believe

         22  that it provides a framework that if the measures

         23  are adhered to will serve the community well, and

         24  will help to resolve some of the most difficult

         25  issues that might arise, and we thank the Speaker's
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          2  Office for their hard work in having the letter

          3  produced and we look forward to an ongoing dialogue

          4  with Hill Country.

          5                 Thanks for the opportunity to

          6  testify.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. If

          8  there is no one else, I will close the public

          9  hearing on this item, and we'll move on to the first

         10  of the rezoning applications. The first one I'd like

         11  to take and call City Planning up to discuss is the

         12  Fort Greene/Clinton Hill rezoning, N070431 ZRY, and

         13  C070430 ZMK.

         14                 While the City Planning is getting

         15  ready, this application is within Council Member

         16  Letitia James's district. She is here. And Council

         17  Member Al Vann also has a small place I believe in

         18  the southern portion.

         19                 MS. KAPUR: Good morning, Chair

         20  Avella, members of the Zoning Subcommittee. I am

         21  pleased to be here this morning to present to you

         22  the Department's application for a zoning change in

         23  the Fort Greene and Clinton Hill neighborhoods of

         24  Brooklyn.

         25                 This is a rezoning that we have
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          2  worked very closely with the local community with

          3  over the last two years. We've had an extended

          4  series of meetings and workshops and interactions

          5  with the local community board and almost every

          6  civic group in these neighborhoods.

          7                 Council Member Tish James is being

          8  closely involved and we thank everyone for all their

          9  input in coming together with an application that

         10  we're here to present today.

         11                 This application covers almost 100

         12  blocks. It's 99 blocks in these two neighborhoods.

         13  That includes historic districts, as well as some of

         14  the best preserved brownstone neighborhoods in

         15  Brooklyn. Both the community board and the Borough

         16  President have recommended approval of this

         17  application. There are some recommendations for

         18  changes that we can discuss and one of which I

         19  understand we may be making today.

         20                 With that, I have Sara Goldwyn from

         21  my office present this to you.

         22                 MS. GOLDWYN: Good morning. As Purnima

         23  said, we're very pleased to present to you today

         24  this application for rezoning of 99 blocks in the

         25  Fort Greene and Clinton Hill neighborhoods. The

                                                            20

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  study area is bound by Park Avenue to the north,

          3  Classon Avenue to the East, Atlantic Avenue to the

          4  South, and Ashlin Place and the boundaries of the

          5  Special Downtown Brooklyn District to the west.

          6                 This rezoning is in response to

          7  requests by the local neighborhood organizations and

          8  the community board to protect and preserve the

          9  historic character of these neighborhoods and

         10  prevent future out of scale developments.

         11                 The existing underlying zoning in

         12  this neighborhood, in these neighborhoods is R6,

         13  which does permit developments without building

         14  heights, and has resulted in a number of

         15  out-of-character developments immediately adjacent

         16  to the historic district, as well as the typical

         17  four-story brownstone character.

         18                 There is also a portion of the

         19  rezoning area along Atlantic Avenue to the south

         20  that is currently zoned M1-1. The proposed zoning is

         21  --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: If you have to

         23  have a conversation, please, in the back take it

         24  outside the room so we could hear what's going on.

         25  Thank you.

                                                            21

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Sorry to interrupt. Go ahead.

          3                 MS. GOLDWYN: The proposed zoning

          4  reflects the underlying land uses and building types

          5  throughout the neighborhood. We're rezoning to

          6  contextual zoning districts which establish height

          7  limits and mandate street wall buildings that

          8  reflect the underlying character.

          9                 The first portion of the proposal is

         10  to rezone from R6 to R5B at the northern end of the

         11  rezoning area, to reflect the historic character of

         12  the Wallabout Neighborhood that's between Park and

         13  Myrtle Avenues. The typical building character on

         14  these blocks are two- and three-story wood frame

         15  detached and row houses, the R5B district is

         16  reflective of that character. We've drawn those

         17  districts very tightly around the collection of

         18  those homes in this area.

         19                 For the majority of the 99 blocks of

         20  the proposed rezoning, 80 blocks, to be exact, would

         21  be rezoned from R6 to R6B to reflect the four- to

         22  five-story row house character of these areas.

         23                 Along Myrtle Avenue, Fulton Street

         24  and Atlantic Avenue, which are the commercial

         25  corridors
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          2  of the neighborhood. We are proposing to rezone from

          3  R6 to R7A to allow for new apartment house

          4  construction and moderate growth along these

          5  commercial corridors, which are wide avenues, and

          6  allow for a wider variety of commercial retail uses.

          7                 It is also within these areas that we

          8  are proposing to incorporate the inclusionary

          9  housing program to establish incentives for the

         10  development of affordable housing in conjunction

         11  with the zoning districts.

         12                 We worked closely with the community

         13  to look at these areas to find where the appropriate

         14  areas for this moderate growth would be and along

         15  these commercial avenues with good access to transit

         16  was determined to be the appropriate location here.

         17  That also includes the blocks along Atlantic Avenue,

         18  which are currently zoned for manufacturing uses,

         19  and it would allow for new apartment house

         20  construction with retail in these areas.

         21                 Within the proposed R7A district, the

         22  maximum base FAR would be 3.45, which could be

         23  increased up to 4.6 with the provision of affordable

         24  housing units either on-site or off-site within the

         25  community district, or within a half a mile of the
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          2  proposed development.

          3                 These densities would be permitted

          4  within the existing contextual envelopes allowed in

          5  the R7A districts, which has a maximum base height

          6  of 65 feet or six stories, and a maximum building

          7  height of 80 feet or 80 stories -- excuse me, eight

          8  stories.

          9                 As Purnima said, this project was

         10  well-received by the community. We worked very

         11  closely with the neighborhood associations and the

         12  Council member and the Borough President to arrive

         13  at this rezoning and it was approved by the

         14  community board and the Borough President. The

         15  community board did make recommendations along with

         16  their approval to request that all affordable

         17  housing units be provided on site, and also that

         18  portions of two lots along Myrtle Avenue remain

         19  R7-1. There are two properties owned by Pratt

         20  Institute, who has plans for new construction of an

         21  academic facility in these parcels, and the

         22  community board recommended that these parcels

         23  remain R7 not 1 and not be rezoned to R7A to allow

         24  for flexibility for their development plans.

         25                 The Borough President also included
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          2  this recommendation in his approval.

          3                 I'd be happy to answer any questions.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: At this point I'd

          5  like to call on Council Member Letitia James.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: Thank you, Mr.

          7  Chair, and to the members of the Committee, and

          8  Madam Chair and Ms. Goldwyn. And on behalf of the

          9  Fort Greene/Clinton Hill community, I wish to thank

         10  all of you for what you are about to do, which is

         11  really historic.

         12                 The members of the community have

         13  been under attack for some time. In fact, Fort

         14  Greene and Clinton Hill has been described by the

         15  media as the "hottest real estate market in the City

         16  of New York." And as a result of that, a number of

         17  developers have taken that into consideration and

         18  have built out of scale and out of character

         19  buildings in what is a brownstone community.

         20                 And, so, this rezoning will basically

         21  place all of the new development which comes under

         22  it in compliance with the character of our

         23  community.

         24                 This plan has been in discussion for

         25  some time. It was as a result of a community
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          2  planning project, spearheaded by Howard Pitch, the

          3  former President of the Fort Greene Association, in

          4  conjunction with Paul Pulatso, who headed the

          5  committee at the time. I wish to thank them in their

          6  absence. I wish to thank the current president who

          7  is here today and who we shall hear from, Mr.

          8  Phillip Kellogg, as well as who is the President of

          9  Fort Greene Association, as well as Sharon Barnes,

         10  who is President of the Society for Clinton Hill.

         11                 And I just want to say that this was

         12  a plan that was in process for a number of years. We

         13  provided notices to members throughout the

         14  community. It was the story of several press

         15  accounts, several discussions within the community,

         16  and several discussions at a number of civic

         17  associations.

         18                 It will provide, this rezoning will

         19  provide the much needed relief, again, to preserve

         20  the character of this historic and wonderful and

         21  beautiful community in Downtown Brooklyn. Again, I

         22  just want to thank all of the stakeholders. I want

         23  to thank you, Chair, I want to thank you, Ms.

         24  Goldwyn, for all of your consideration, for all the

         25  countless hours that you have spent in our
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          2  community. We've adopted you, and thank you for

          3  preserving our community.

          4                 And Mr. Chair, I support this

          5  wholeheartedly, 100 percent. Can't wait til you pass

          6  this. And I want to thank all of the Committee

          7  members accordingly. Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And at the

          9  request of the Council member, we will make a

         10  modification on this application, which I will

         11  announce later.

         12                 Are there any questions from

         13  Committee members? We have a couple of members that

         14  signed up to speak.

         15                 Council Member Gentile.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I'm just

         17  curious here. Between, is it Atlantic and Fulton?

         18  You've changed that from partly manufacturing zone

         19  over to an R7A with a commercial overlay? Now, what

         20  is in that area currently?

         21                 MS. GOLDWYN: Are you specifically

         22  referring to along Waverly Avenue? Or along Atlantic

         23  Avenue.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I guess along

         25  Atlantic Avenue.
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          2                 MS. GOLDWYN: Atlantic Avenue.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Yes.

          4                 MS. GOLDWYN: Atlantic Avenue, the

          5  predominant land uses there today are auto-related

          6  uses. There are also a number of vacant and

          7  under-utilized buildings and vacant lots.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, now it's

          9  what, a C2-4 overlay?

         10                 MS. GOLDWYN: The proposed zoning

         11  would be R7A with the C2-4 overlay.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, how might

         13  that change the commercial uses there?

         14                 MS. GOLDWYN: Well, the existing uses

         15  would be permitted to continue, but it would also

         16  allow new residential construction where it's not

         17  currently permitted as of right, and will also allow

         18  a wider range of local retail and service uses.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Okay, thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         22  questions from Council members?

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you.

         24                 We have two members of the community

         25  signed up to speak on this. We have a representative
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          2  from Pratt Institute and Sharon Barnes from the Fort

          3  Greene Association, and I guess Society for Clinton

          4  Hill.

          5                 Is there anyone else signed up to

          6  speak on this item?

          7                 MS. BARNES: Good morning, members of

          8  the Committee. I am Sharon Barnes, representing the

          9  Society for Clinton Hill and Fort Greene Association

         10  of Brooklyn, New York.

         11                 We support the proposed zoning change

         12  for a number of reasons, most clearly because it

         13  helps preserve a scale and neighborhood character

         14  which the residents of these communities appreciate

         15  and love.

         16                 New York City is not known for things

         17  like the Grand Plazas of European cities or the

         18  monuments of Washington, D.C. It is known for its

         19  appealing and distinct neighborhoods. Such a

         20  monstrously large city, yet with the small jewels of

         21  these neighborhoods.

         22                 From the Upper East Side to

         23  Washington Heights, Times Square, Greenwich Village,

         24  Grammercy Park, Wall Street, Brooklyn Heights, Fort

         25  Greene, Clinton Hill, Wallabout, Bedford Stuyvesant,
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          2  just a few of the wonderful neighborhoods, each of

          3  which brings to mind a very different environment.

          4  This is New York City. This is part of the great

          5  seductiveness of this City. These neighborhoods are

          6  worth preserving.

          7                 We don't want them to be homogenized,

          8  made to all look the same, and contextual zoning is

          9  a great tool, a powerful tool to preserve the

         10  character of our neighborhoods and the enduring

         11  attraction of our City.

         12                 As the development pressures on our

         13  community grew over the last dozen years, the

         14  community began to push for a zoning change. This

         15  culminated in the community doing the surveys of

         16  thousands of buildings in an effort to jumpstart the

         17  process.

         18                 We've held numerous educational

         19  meetings, prepared materials, raised money to

         20  support the effort, reached out to everyone in the

         21  community with the mailings, the internet, other

         22  organizations, churches, our community board,

         23  elected officials and others. And surprisingly, we

         24  have encountered very little opposition. What little

         25  there was really came in the form of developers who
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          2  didn't directly oppose what we were doing. But just

          3  worked very hard to get out in front of us by

          4  completing foundations before City Council could

          5  act.

          6                 Other than that, there has been

          7  overwhelming support at all levels. We believe this

          8  zoning change is a positive thing for all

          9  constituencies. It does not prevent development, it

         10  just guides it to the most appropriate locations and

         11  controls height. Square footage is much less

         12  affected and with affordable housing can even be

         13  larger than before. Jobs will not be lost because of

         14  this change.

         15                 This large and across-the-board

         16  effort has been very collaborative. City Planning

         17  has been a strong partner by producing excellent

         18  graphics, knowing the study area down to the

         19  specific buildings and holding many educational

         20  presentations. And we know that they will continue

         21  to work with us in the future.

         22                 Our local electeds, including our

         23  City Council member, our State Senator, Borough

         24  President and others have been involved. Our

         25  community board, churches, many other organizations
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          2  and residents all played important roles.

          3                 We are grateful for all of this and

          4  for the fact that City Council will now take this

          5  issue over the final hurdle. We know that we are

          6  leaving a critically important decision in the hands

          7  of people who understand New York City and who are

          8  also part of this large team of people who are

          9  working in a variety of ways to protect our

         10  neighborhoods.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MR. SCHUTTE: Chairman Avella,

         13  Councilman James, members of the Committee, thank

         14  you so much for this opportunity to testify. I am

         15  Tom Schutte, President of Pratt Institute in

         16  Brooklyn. I am here today to testify strongly in

         17  favor of the Fort Greene rezoning and to request one

         18  modification for property that Pratt owns along

         19  Myrtle Avenue.

         20                 The proposed rezoning action reflects

         21  the strength and beauty of the historic neighborhood

         22  that Pratt has been so proud to call home for 120

         23  years. The contextual rezoning proposal recognizes

         24  the rich character of the historic areas, protects

         25  the neighborhood from out-of-scale development and
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          2  provides areas for housing and commercial growth. In

          3  recognition of the community's goals, we have agreed

          4  to support the downzoning of our Caroline Pratt Lad

          5  House on Clinton Avenue. We want to thank and praise

          6  Councilman Letitia James, City Planning Commission

          7  Chair Amanda Burden, Brooklyn City Planning Director

          8  Purnima Kapur and many local organizations, for all

          9  their hard work to make this important rezoning

         10  effort a reality.

         11                 There is one location that we would

         12  like to bring to your attention. Pratt Institute

         13  owns two properties, 524 and 530 Myrtle Avenue

         14  running from Emerson Place to the west 480 feet. We

         15  request that the rezoning section -- that we request

         16  that the rezoning action be amended to maintain the

         17  current R7-1 zoning for these sites, rather than

         18  rezone these properties to R7A.

         19                 Over the past 15 years, Pratt has

         20  grown dramatically, from 2,700 to 4,800 students,

         21  but we had built no major new academic or

         22  administrative space since 1975. As a result, we are

         23  far short on space and are literally bursting at the

         24  seams.

         25                 We are therefore preparing to build a
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          2  100,000 square foot building at 524 Myrtle Avenue to

          3  house a mix of educational and administrative uses,

          4  including integrated student services, new studio

          5  spaces, the center for digital arts, and the Pratt

          6  Center for Community Development. The building will

          7  house approximately 180 faculty and staff and 500

          8  students who will help support the retail

          9  revitalization of Myrtle Avenue.

         10                 The ground floor of the building will

         11  feature retail use. The building will be seven

         12  stories high, allowed by the current R7-1 zoning,

         13  just a tad bit higher than would be allowed by R7A

         14  zoning requirements, and with additional square

         15  footage for our community facility use. The building

         16  is being sensitively designed by Jack Esterson, an

         17  outstanding architect and local resident, to respect

         18  neighborhood context and contribute positively to

         19  the urban design of the area. It will be landscaped

         20  with walkways and parkways for our neighborhood and

         21  our Pratt community to enjoy.

         22                 We are planning to build a green

         23  building, with a lead goal rating as part of our

         24  commitment to the City of New York to reduce

         25  greenhouse gas emissions by 30 percent over the next

                                                            34

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  ten years.

          3                 We are very pleased to have support

          4  for this modification, from Council Member James,

          5  Borough President Marty Markowitz, Community Board

          6  2, Myrtle Avenue Revitalization Project, the Fort

          7  Greene Association, and the Clinton Hill Society.

          8  Pratt Institute has always worked to be a good

          9  neighbor, to make its campus open to the community,

         10  to contribute to neighborhood economic vitality and

         11  to enhance the quality of the neighborhood through

         12  our buildings. We are eager for this to continue

         13  with our building on Myrtle Avenue.

         14                 We appreciate the opportunity to make

         15  this request and the efforts of City Council and

         16  City Planning staff to move it forward in a way

         17  which does not delay the passage and implementation

         18  of the important Fort Greene rezoning.

         19                 Again, thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And as you know,

         21  we will be making that modification at the request

         22  of Letitia James, and we will be doing it in such a

         23  way that it does not delay the application one day,

         24  one hour.

         25                 Next speaker.
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          2                 MR. BACKER: Good morning, Chair

          3  Avella, City Council members. My name is Blaise

          4  Backer and I'm the Executive Director of the Myrtle

          5  Avenue Revitalization Project and the Myrtle Avenue

          6  Business Improvement District. We represent the area

          7  in Myrtle Avenue from Flatbush to Classon in

          8  Community Board 2, and representing an area with

          9  approximately 150 small businesses and 150

         10  commercial property owners.

         11                 I'd like to testify this morning on

         12  behalf of myself and Deb Hauer, the Executive

         13  Director of the Pratt Area Community Council, who

         14  cannot be here this morning.

         15                 Together PACC and my organizations

         16  are responsible for the revitalization of the

         17  neighborhood's primary commercial corridors of

         18  Myrtle Avenue and Fulton Street. Together our

         19  organizations have been closely involved in the

         20  formation of this rezoning plan and we would like to

         21  strongly endorse the following key elements: the

         22  rezoning from the R6 to R6B of the majority of the

         23  residential Brownstone blocks, the rezoning of the

         24  residential blocks in the Wallabout area north of

         25  Myrtle Avenue from an R6 to an R5B, to protect the
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          2  unique housing stock in that area, and also the

          3  rezoning from R6 to R7A with the inclusionary

          4  housing bonus on Myrtle Avenue and Fulton Street.

          5                 We both felt very strongly about this

          6  incorporation of inclusionary housing within this

          7  rezoning proposal, to encourage the development of

          8  affordable housing units within our community, but

          9  also to potentially mitigate some of the development

         10  pressure to tear down existing viable buildings that

         11  contribute to both the building character and the

         12  small business community on our neighborhood retail

         13  corridors.

         14                 I would also like to speak in favor

         15  of the proposed change by Pratt Institute. As

         16  President Schutte mentioned, the remaining, the

         17  existing R7-1 zoning on the two blocks roughly

         18  between Grand Avenue and Emerson Place will

         19  contribute and allow them to build the planned

         20  academic facility there.

         21                 The building will bring about 15,000

         22  square feet of new retail space to the avenue, and

         23  there are estimates of 180 faculty and 500 students

         24  that will occupy the building at any one time will

         25  contribute greatly to this part of the avenue and
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          2  revitalization of Myrtle.

          3                 These future uses of Pratt's proposed

          4  building will provide an incredible boost to Myrtle

          5  Avenue small business community.

          6                 Thank you, and I appreciate the

          7  opportunity to testify.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9  Council Member James has a question.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JAMES: So, Mr. Chair,

         11  so you can see, in the Borough of Brooklyn size does

         12  matter, and so, therefore, I just want to again

         13  thank you. I want to thank you, Mr. Backer, for all

         14  of the work that you've done on Myrtle Avenue and to

         15  Pratt Area Community Council in their absence. Thank

         16  you for all they're doing. Obviously affordable

         17  housing was critical to my support, and affordable

         18  housing will go a long way in preserving the

         19  diversity of the community.

         20                 Ms. Sharon Barnes, you are absolutely

         21  wonderful. To Mr. Kellogg, thank you for all that

         22  you have done, for all of your hard work in

         23  preserving our community, preserving the character.

         24                 And lastly, but not leastly,

         25  President Schutte, you are my favorite. And
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          2  obviously, this minor modification we should do for

          3  you so that we can continue to house picket, and

          4  then you for designing it sensitively to meet the

          5  concerns of the community. And we look forward to

          6  working with all of you in the future.

          7                 Move the bill.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          9                 If there is no one else signed up to

         10  speak on this item, I would close the public hearing

         11  on this matter, and we will move to the next

         12  rezoning. I will ask City Planning to come back, we

         13  will now discuss the Dyker Heights Fort Hamilton

         14  rezoning. C070387 ZMK.

         15                 This application lies within Council

         16  Member Vincent Gentile's district and Sara Gonzalez.

         17                 MS. KAPUR: Good morning, Chair

         18  Avella, members of the Subcommittee, members of the

         19  City Council, ladies and gentlemen. Once again, my

         20  name is Purnima Kapur, and I am just as delighted to

         21  be here this morning to talk about the Department's

         22  application for Dyker and Fort Hamilton

         23  neighborhoods in Brooklyn.

         24                 This is a rezoning that we have

         25  worked, again, very closely with the local
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          2  community, local neighborhood association, Council

          3  Member Gentile and other elected members. Most of

          4  the area is in Council Member Gentile's area,

          5  district, a small portion to the north is in Council

          6  Member Gonzalez's district, and they've both been

          7  briefed on this and have been very supportive

          8  through this process.

          9                 This is a slightly different

         10  rezoning. This is a lower density, largely one- and

         11  two-family detached neighborhood in the southern

         12  part of Brooklyn, and, again, our attempt here has

         13  been to try to match the zoning as closely as

         14  possible to the existing context in order to protect

         15  the unique neighborhood context that exists here.

         16                 With that, I'll hand it over to

         17  Richard Jacobs from my office, who will go into the

         18  details.

         19                 MR. JACOBS: Good morning, Chairman

         20  Avella, members of the Subcommittee on Zoning and

         21  Franchises. My name is Richard Jacobs. I'm the

         22  Project Manager for the Dyker Heights/Fort Hamilton

         23  Rezoning. Thank you for this opportunity to present

         24  my testimony.

         25                 The Department of City Planning is
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          2  proposing lower density and contextual zoning map

          3  changes for 159 blocks in neighborhoods of Dyker

          4  Heights and Fort Hamilton, in Brooklyn's Community

          5  District 10.

          6                 The current rezoning proposal, a

          7  joint effort of the Department of City Planning,

          8  Community Board 10, Dyker Heights Civic Association,

          9  and local elected officials, builds upon the

         10  Administration's commitment to protect the City's

         11  low-density neighborhoods by ensuring that new

         12  development reinforces and does not undermine the

         13  existing neighborhood character and fabric.

         14                 Similar to the lower density and

         15  contextual zoning map changes to the Special

         16  Bayridge District, adopted by this City Council in

         17  March of 2005, the proposed rezoning changes

         18  provided protections against out-of-scale

         19  development for the balance of residential blocks in

         20  Community District 10, not part of the original

         21  adopted proposal.

         22                 The proposed rezoning changes would

         23  protect existing housing types by mapping one- and

         24  two-family, lower density and contextual districts

         25  on all or parts of 80 blocks as opposed to the 12
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          2  blocks currently restricted to one- and two-family

          3  development, over a six-fold increase.

          4                 The rezoning area is generally

          5  rebounded by the railroad right of way of 62nd

          6  Street to the north, Poly Place to the south, 14th

          7  Avenue to the east, and the Gowanus Expressway to

          8  the west. Dyker Heights and Fort Hamilton are

          9  predominantly one- and two-family neighborhoods with

         10  detached and semi-detached homes on large lots

         11  surrounded by lawns and gardens, well-maintained row

         12  house blocks and local retail corridors.

         13                 As is found in most neighborhoods of

         14  its size, Dyker Heights and Fort Hamilton does not

         15  have a single context, but a variety of land uses

         16  and housing types developed over time. However, one

         17  thing is constant, building scale is predominantly

         18  low-rise, with residential buildings one- to three

         19  stories on the mid blocks, and mixed use buildings,

         20  two- to four stories along the local retail

         21  corridors.

         22                 Historically the New York City Zoning

         23  Resolution amendments of 1961 established three

         24  residential districts in the area, the detached and

         25  semi-detached R3-1 and R4 and R5 districts which
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          2  permit housing types that are slightly higher

          3  density.

          4                 In addition, C1 and C2 commercial

          5  overlays are mapped along the retail corridors in

          6  row house buildings with ground floor retail and

          7  residences above. There is a growing community

          8  concern that the R3-1, R4 and R5 districts allow the

          9  potential of a building's out of character and scale

         10  with existing residential development. Under the

         11  existing R4 and R5 zoning districts, multi-family

         12  and attached housing can be developed in place of

         13  one-, two-family homes, eroding the character of

         14  certain blocks. The rezoning proposal utilizes a

         15  range of lower density in contextual zoning

         16  districts, including the detached districts, R3A,

         17  R3X and R4A, the semi-detached district R4-1, the

         18  attached row house districts R4B and R5B, and the

         19  mid-density, R6B and C4-2A. Contextual districts

         20  regulate the height and bulk of new buildings.

         21  They're set back from the street line, and their

         22  width of long-street frontage producing buildings

         23  that are consistent with existing bulk, build

         24  context and neighborhood character.

         25                 Overall, these fine-tuned zoning map
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          2  changes would protect the lower density of one- and

          3  two-family character of most residential

          4  neighborhood mid-blocks, reinforce the character of

          5  several avenues as corridors for mid-rise mixed

          6  retail and residential buildings, place limit on

          7  floor area and heights for community facility uses

          8  in residential buildings in contextual districts,

          9  all existing overlays are proposed for remapping to

         10  either C1-3 or C2-3 for greater uniformity,

         11  including a reduction in their depths to 100 feet

         12  from the current 150 feet to match existing

         13  conditions and prevent the encroachment of

         14  commercial uses into the mid-blocks.

         15                 The rezoning would also bring into

         16  conformance existing residential uses currently

         17  located in parts of the manufacturing district. And

         18  lastly, as requested by Community Board 10, the

         19  rezoning of a half block adjacent to PS 69, West of

         20  9th Avenue, 63rd to 64th Street, from M3-2 heavy

         21  manufacturing to M1-1 light manufacturing with the

         22  existing auto dealership park and remaining a

         23  conforming use.

         24                 Community Board 10 unanimously

         25  approved the application, the Borough President
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          2  approved the application without conditions, and

          3  thank you for your attention to my testimony. I'll

          4  be happy to answer any questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd like to call

          6  on Council Member Vincent Gentile.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

          8  Mr. Chairman. And I'm pleased to talk about the map

          9  for the 159 blocks that comprise Dyker Heights and

         10  Fort Hamilton.

         11                 This plan really is two years of hard

         12  work, as well as reassurance and commitment from our

         13  City Planning Commissioner, the esteemed Amanda

         14  Burden, and I would be remiss if I didn't thank

         15  Commissioner Burden and the Brooklyn Office of City

         16  Planning.

         17                 I want to thank former Brooklyn

         18  Director Regina Meyer, our current Director Purnima

         19  Kapur, and their staffs, led in this project by

         20  Richard Jacobs, our rising star right here.

         21                 Community Board 10 and my

         22  preservation committee have also been enormously

         23  helpful in advancing this plan. Both Susan Pulaski

         24  and Angel Lasaro of my Committee worked hard to map

         25  Dyker Heights during the preliminary survey phases

                                                            45

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  of this project, and it's also important to know the

          3  active involvement of Community Board 10 and its

          4  zoning committee in creating the zoning map.

          5                 I also note that Josephine Beckman,

          6  the President of Fort Hamilton Civic Association and

          7  Fran Vella-Marrone, the President of the Dyker Civic

          8  Association and their organizations were actively

          9  involved in this process, so I thank them both for

         10  their tenacious activism and assistance.

         11                 This really is an exciting

         12  undertaking. When we secure final approval for this

         13  plan, and I hope we will, we'll have successfully

         14  rezoned every single block, every single block in

         15  Community Board 10. With these 159 blocks added to

         16  the 249 blocks that we covered in the Bayridge

         17  rezoning of 2005, we as a community have worked to

         18  address zoning and land use issues throughout the

         19  community board. It's really a testament to the hard

         20  work of our community board, the planning and

         21  preservation committee and the others that I've

         22  mentioned.

         23                 But this isn't change for the sake of

         24  change. This zoning is a response to the

         25  progressiveness of developers, an attempt to

                                                            46

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  preserve the historic and unique character of these

          3  neighborhoods.

          4                 After the Bayridge rezoning,

          5  developers flocked to Dyker Heights and Fort

          6  Hamilton and accelerated demolition and construction

          7  in an attempt to beat the zoning clock and undermine

          8  the community before this City Council could act.

          9  And, so, this plan when adopted will mark the dawn

         10  of a new day for Dyker Heights.

         11                 For the plan itself, as you've just

         12  described, will be an expansion from 12 to 80 blocks

         13  designated solely for detached and semi-detached

         14  housing, in other words, one- and two-family homes.

         15  While keeping in mind the potential for continued

         16  modest development along the commercial corridors,

         17  the plan proposed is respectful of Dyker Heights

         18  traditional one- and two-family home character. As

         19  it stands now, only 12 blocks on the entire map

         20  restrict all development to detached and

         21  semi-detached homes. With this new map, we'll see

         22  almost a seven-fold increase in the number of blocks

         23  in Dyker Heights zoned exclusively for detached and

         24  semi-detached housing.

         25                 So, whether new or old, the one- and
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          2  two-family homes that define Decker Heights and Fort

          3  Hamilton will be here to stay. And, yet, developers

          4  too easily have exploited a loophole allowing

          5  relaxations on size requirements for projects that

          6  include community facilities.

          7                 This plan addresses that issue by

          8  placing more emphasis on the concept of contextual

          9  zoning. Simply put, the size and density of

         10  community facilities will be far more limited under

         11  these new zoning regulations. There is some slight

         12  upzoning in the commercial area surrounding

         13  residential blocks around Fort Hamilton, yet the

         14  great news is that it will now be nearly impossible

         15  for developers to plop down huge community

         16  facilities in the middle of a residential block in

         17  the Fort Hamilton section of this map or elsewhere

         18  in Dyker Heights, the underlying FAR will not allow

         19  it.

         20                 Unfettered large-scale development

         21  changes the charm and ambiance and residential

         22  nature of our neighborhoods. They add density,

         23  reduce open space and green space and further stress

         24  already overburdened infrastructure.

         25                 Call them what you will, box-like
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          2  fedder houses or McMansions do nothing and add

          3  nothing to our outer borough bedroom communities.

          4  Our goal here is maintain the residential character

          5  of this area, and it's my goal to put this new

          6  zoning into effect this week.

          7                 And, so, Mr. Chairman, it's time to

          8  make this proposed map a reality, I urge all my

          9  colleagues to vote in favor of this proposal to show

         10  the people of Dyker Heights and Fort Hamilton that

         11  this body stands for the preservation and

         12  maintenance of the character of all our communities

         13  across our City. I thank you for your anticipated

         14  support and I invite our City Planning to join us

         15  for a party on Wednesday, right before our Stated

         16  meeting.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Helen Sears.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Thank you very

         21  much. I just have a comment. I want to thank my

         22  colleague, Vinnie Gentile, the Chair of the

         23  Committee, and City Planning. And you may be

         24  wondering why I'm thanking them? The fact is, that's

         25  where I grew up, and as a result --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: She's really

          3  a Brooklynite, right?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Brooklynite

          5  ending up in Queens. But it's wonderful to see this,

          6  and I really want to thank you, because the area has

          7  been very, very dear to my heart, and I know what

          8  would be happening and what has happened in some of

          9  the areas, so it just shows what good work can be

         10  done when everybody comes together and I really want

         11  to thank you, because my grand children are going to

         12  see where I grew up, the house I lived in. Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         15  questions, comments from Committee members?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: I just had a

         17  quick question because there was some concern about

         18  the zoning that basically sliced streets down the

         19  middle, one zoning district on one side, one zoning

         20  district on the other.

         21                 Could you just comment on those

         22  several instances that show up on this map?

         23                 MS. KAPUR: The Community Board

         24  brought up two such areas, there are two

         25  half-blocks. One is at the northwestern and of the
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          2  proposed R3X zoning, where the half-block that we

          3  left in R4-1 rather than R3X was the issue. And the

          4  reason we chose to go with the R4-1, is that a

          5  number of homes on that half-block are

          6  semi-detached, which would not be allowed in the R3X

          7  zoning district. Those buildings are also on lots

          8  that are small and are built to very high FARs. And

          9  we felt that the R4-1 was a better match for that

         10  area.

         11                 There are a few detached homes on

         12  that block, but the overwhelming character appeared

         13  to be more of a mix of detached and semi-detached

         14  which an R4-1 district addresses better.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: So, the

         16  majority of those houses would be non-conforming had

         17  you changed it?

         18                 MS. KAPUR: All of the detached would

         19  be non-conforming in the R3 -- all the semi-detached

         20  would be non-conforming in the R3X district.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. And thank you, again.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Seeing no other

         24  questions, thank you.

         25                 We have two members of the community
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          2  that signed up to speak on this item. Reverend

          3  Casale from Community Board 10, and Fran

          4  Vella-Marrone from the Dyker Heights Civic

          5  Association.

          6                 REVEREND CASALE: Good morning, Chair,

          7  Council members. Good morning. My name is Pastor

          8  Casale. I'm sitting for Dean Monsignor, Chairman of

          9  Community Board 10.

         10                 On Monday, April 16th, 2007,

         11  Community Board 10 unanimously voted to approve an

         12  application before you for the rezoning of Dyker

         13  Heights/Fort Hamilton.

         14                 The long-awaited rezoning will

         15  protect this low-rise community from the surge of

         16  development, which had potential to change the

         17  character and density and many of the blocks within

         18  Dyker Heights and Fort Hamilton area.

         19                 Notwithstanding CB 10's enthusiastic

         20  approval and recommendation of this application, the

         21  full Board unanimously voted to recommend two

         22  amendments to the application, only to the extent

         23  that such amendments will not delay completion of

         24  the pending ULURP process, and enactment of the new

         25  zoning.
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          2                 The recommendations are as follows:

          3                 - To amend the application to rezone

          4  the entire north side of the block of 82nd Street

          5  between 10th and 11th Avenues, and the R3X zoning

          6  district so that both sides of the said block are on

          7  the same R3X zoning districts.

          8                 Number two, to amend the application

          9  to amend the north side of Bayridge Parkway to R4-1

         10  instead of R5B as shown in the application.

         11                 So that both sides of the said block

         12  are in the same R4-1 zoning district.

         13                 Thank you. Respectfully submitted.

         14                 MS. VELLA-MARRONE: Thank you. My name

         15  is Fran Vella-Marrone. I'm the President of the

         16  Dyker Heights Civic Association. I'm very happy to

         17  be here today.

         18                 I would like to thank the Chairman of

         19  the City Council Subcommittee on Zoning and

         20  Franchises, Councilman Tony Avella, for this

         21  opportunity to present my views here today, and all

         22  the members of the Committee for your consideration.

         23                 On behalf of the officers and the

         24  members of the Dyker Heights Civic Association, I am

         25  speaking in favor of the Department of City
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          2  Planning's Dyker Heights Fort Hamilton rezoning

          3  proposal.

          4                 First, I want to thank the Department

          5  of City Planning for their efforts on behalf of the

          6  Dyker Heights community, specifically Director

          7  Amanda Burden, Brooklyn Director Purnima Kapur,

          8  Project Manager and folklore legend, Richard Jacobs.

          9  He's become folklore in our community for the work

         10  that he's done, not only in Dyker Heights, but in

         11  Bayridge.

         12                 I would also like to thank Community

         13  Board 10 for all its hard work in making this

         14  rezoning a reality, and our local elected officials

         15  for their support, including Councilman Vincent

         16  Gentile.

         17                 This rezoning proposal is the result

         18  of years of hard work, dedication and a belief that

         19  working together we can maintain the good quality of

         20  life of our community.

         21                 Dyker Heights is made up of mainly

         22  one and two-family homes, which like other similar

         23  neighborhoods in New York City have experienced the

         24  negative affects of overdevelopment. This proposal

         25  will virtually halt this type of development and as
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          2  such will ensure that Dyker Heights will retain its

          3  existing character.

          4                 We at the Dyker Heights Civic

          5  Association are proud to have played a role in this

          6  downzoning and look forward to its final approval.

          7                 Thank you, and I hope for a very

          8  swift approval this week. Thank you.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Don't worry.

         10  It's been a long road, Mr. Chairman.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think certainly

         12  Councilman Gentile knows, and I think you know, how

         13  supportive I have been in sort of leading the fight

         14  on these rezonings. It's good that we're doing three

         15  of them today and obviously we have issues with the

         16  Jamaica Plan, but that more needs to be done,

         17  because there still are many neighborhoods

         18  throughout this City that are improperly zoned.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: No one knows

         20  better than you, Mr. Chairman, about rezonings.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Is there anyone

         22  else signed up to speak on this item?

         23                 Seeing no one, I will close the

         24  public hearing on this item, and we will now move

         25  to, if I can find it, the Wakefield Eastchester
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          2  rezoning. C070409 ZMX. And I will call City Planning

          3  back up. And this application is within Council

          4  Member Koppell's and Seabrook's district, and they

          5  are both here.

          6                 After this application we will be

          7  taking a vote and then we will probably take just a

          8  five-minute break, and then we will go into the

          9  Jamaica plan.

         10                 MR. SINGER: Good morning, Chairman

         11  Avella, members of the City Council. My name is Ryan

         12  Singer. I'm the Deputy Director of the Bronx Office

         13  of Department of City Planning. The application

         14  before you is the Wakefield Eastchester rezoning,

         15  and this was started as a request from the Wakefield

         16  Taxpayers Association to look at the zoning in the

         17  area, with an eye towards preserving the existing

         18  character of Wakefield.

         19                 Over the course of the process the

         20  course of the proposal has grown and changed since

         21  the studies begun. The Department, with the blessing

         22  of the community, has included a modest increase in

         23  development potential on White Plains Road. The

         24  rezoning has been expanded to include parts of

         25  Eastchester, and we've also attempted to address
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          2  concerns of a small residential enclave on Rumbouts

          3  (phonetic) in the east part of the rezoning area.

          4                 This is, as you said, in Councilman

          5  Koppell and Seabrook's district, and this has

          6  enjoyed support from the community board, the

          7  Borough President, and of course, from the City

          8  Planning Commission.

          9                 You had asked us during our briefing

         10  about one-family maps, which we have provided and

         11  can provide to you and discuss as well. But before

         12  we get to that I'll have Nestor go over the proposal

         13  as it is.

         14                 MR. DANYLUK: Good morning, ladies and

         15  gentlemen. I'm Nestor Danyluk, the Planner for the

         16  District, and want to go into a little of both the

         17  history and the proposals.

         18                 The area, the rezoning area that

         19  we've done roughly encompasses a 130 block portion

         20  of the Northeast Bronx. The boundaries are

         21  approximately Carpenter Avenue on the west.

         22  Carpenter Avenue is located a block or two off the

         23  Bronx River, to put that into perspective. 233rd

         24  Street on the south, and roughly the Dire Avenue

         25  Transit Right Of Way corridor on the east, there's a
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          2  little portion that we've done on the other side,

          3  we'll go into that in a little bit, and then

          4  finally, the Bronx Mount Vernon City line on the

          5  north.

          6                 The rezoning proposal is basically we

          7  are revisiting a study that we had done about 12

          8  years ago when we initially rezoned the Wakefield

          9  community, also at the request of the Wakefield

         10  taxpayers. The area had been zoned largely R6 at

         11  that time. I should point out the initial rezoning

         12  area was almost entirely west of White Plains Road.

         13  If you look at the maps behind me, White Plains Road

         14  is the main commercial corridor of the area. It lies

         15  really more in the eastern portion of the present

         16  study area. Twelve years ago it essentially was the

         17  western boundary of the area, so as you see, we

         18  expanded our study area quite a bit.

         19                 Initially, the area that we looked

         20  at, like I said, was mostly R6. We had rezoned it to

         21  R5 and R4A, which R5 is essentially a mid- to

         22  lower-density district, R4A a lower-density district

         23  that limits housing to one- and two-family detached.

         24  What had happened since that time obviously there

         25  were new tools that were created, such as the R5B
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          2  that would better address the issues that we were

          3  not able to address the last time, and with the

          4  increasing concerns that the community had about

          5  development in R4 areas, we took a look at the

          6  larger existing R4, which was being developed,

          7  redeveloped by developers where one- and two-family

          8  houses were being demolished and replaced with

          9  multi-family row houses. That was the primary

         10  concern of the community.

         11                 So, the proposal, you see the

         12  existing situation, Ryan will now show the proposed

         13  drawings, and if you see the one on the left, the

         14  board on the left essentially shows the proposed

         15  changes. Those are the 130 blocks that are being

         16  affected. Let's proceed on this, might as well do it

         17  from left to right. If you notice in the pink, that

         18  is a proposed R5A. The R5A is a relatively recent

         19  zone that was created in our recent rezoning of the

         20  Olinville neighborhood, which is just to the south.

         21  The R5A is a one- and two-family -- I'm sorry, it's

         22  a one-family detached zone that specifically deals

         23  with large buildings, large bulky buildings that you

         24  would not be able to address through conventional

         25  rezonings to R4 or lower.
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          2                 And we, as I said, this zone

          3  previously was not available to us when we did the

          4  initial rezoning to R5. At that point R5 was the

          5  best tool we had in our repertoire. Now we are

          6  revisiting and we are kind of upgrading the zoning

          7  to that R5A from the existing R5.

          8                 There is also a small section at the

          9  southern half that is actually zoned R6, which at

         10  present would allow a large, it's actually the

         11  surrounding blocks are built up with five- and

         12  six-story apartment buildings. This, by doing that

         13  rezoning will make it much more in context with the

         14  surrounding area, which although they may be large

         15  homes, they are single family and they're detached.

         16                 As you move forward, to the right you

         17  see a long, dark strip. That is the proposed R6

         18  along the White Plains Road corridor. That has

         19  received the blessings of the community. Ironically

         20  what we had, the White Plains Road corridor had,

         21  although it did have taller buildings on it, it had

         22  apartment house buildings, it was zoned R5 and yet

         23  the area that was zoned R6 had the lower buildings.

         24  So, in a sense we're flipping the two zones, and

         25  what this will allow for is increased development in
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          2  the White Plains corridor. What the community

          3  pointed out, White Plains Road, which is a main

          4  commercial street, it has an elevated line on it.

          5  Late at night it is largely deserted. The feel is if

          6  you have increased development in an area which can

          7  take development, is close to transit, and at this

          8  point it has virtually no people late at night, if

          9  you do get apartment buildings, it will become more

         10  of a 24-hour center with street activity of the type

         11  that people want to see, as opposed -- yes, those

         12  are essentially the main portions. If you look

         13  further over, that had been an existing R4 area,

         14  there we're basically fine-tuning the R4 either to

         15  an R4A, one- and two-family detached, or an R4-1,

         16  one- and two-family attached. That essentially

         17  doesn't need further explanation.

         18                 And then lastly, this little area

         19  here is an enclave that is in a manufacturing zone,

         20  yet, there is a solid residential neighborhood that

         21  is spread out over the course of four blocks. It is

         22  a mix of both detached and row houses. So, we are

         23  essentially carving out an R4 within that

         24  manufacturing district.

         25                 That's basically the proposal in a
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          2  nutshell. If there are any questions, Ryan and I

          3  will entertain them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          5  Koppell and then Council Member Seabrook.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I want to

          7  thank the City Planning for their proposal, which

          8  gained unanimous support by the local community

          9  board.

         10                 I know Mary Lauro is here from the

         11  Wakefield Taxpayers, and I appreciate their

         12  initiation of this. This continues, Mr. Chairman,

         13  the rezoning of large areas in my district. We still

         14  have a few areas to look at but we've done many of

         15  the areas and preserved the character of what I

         16  believe to be one of the nicest areas of the City

         17  and also diverse areas of the City.

         18                 This particular community should be

         19  preserved essentially as it is with some

         20  development, and I agree with the development along

         21  White Plains Road. It makes sense. And we do want to

         22  encourage, if we're going to have a million more

         23  people in the City in the next 25 years, we have to

         24  put them somewhere. So, overall I think this is a

         25  very good plan and I certainly support it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: Thank you

          3  very much, Mr. Chairman.

          4                 And let me just say that for all of

          5  the years that we have been trying to get this

          6  rezoning and a number of other things done, and I

          7  certainly want to commend the City Planning

          8  Commission who those 12 years ago worked with me to

          9  try and make it happen, although the people were not

         10  ready, but the Planning Commission was ready in

         11  their presentations. So, thank God that a lot of the

         12  people have gotten onboard to this and to make this

         13  a reality. They have done a fantastic job. And now

         14  with Councilman Koppell and myself, it is our hope

         15  that we can now spruce up White Plains Road for some

         16  real development to bring some real business there

         17  so that people won't have to go elsewhere to shop

         18  and some of the other things.

         19                 So, they have done a fantastic job,

         20  and I support them and Mary Lauro and others who

         21  have been in the forefront of trying to make this

         22  change, and we've been trying and Mary was there in

         23  the forefront, although other people were not, and

         24  it killed us off. But thank God we're here and

         25  they're not and we survived, and thank God for the
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          2  City Planning Commission.

          3                 Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

          5  questions, comments from Committee members? Thank

          6  you.

          7                 We have two members of the community

          8  signed up to speak. Mary Lauro from the Wakefield

          9  Taxpayers Association, and Carmen Rosa from

         10  Community Board 12.

         11                 MS. LAURO: It's still morning. Can

         12  you hear me? Yes. Good morning, members of the

         13  Committee. And thank you for having me speak to you.

         14                 Nestor has told you all the

         15  nitty-gritty about the rezoning. I'd like to talk

         16  about something else. Everyone talks about the

         17  character of the community, and of course we do want

         18  to preserve this, but the community implies the

         19  presence of people. People have come to Wakefield.

         20  Wait, let's back up a bit. Wakefield Taxpayers is

         21  the second oldest community group in the City. We

         22  were formed in 1913. We were incorporated in 1931.

         23  Throughout all these years we've cared about the

         24  community and the character of the community. But as

         25  I said, the community implies the presence of
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          2  people. People come to Wakefield, they have come to

          3  Wakefield to live in a certain atmosphere. They

          4  don't want to live on the sidewalks of Manhattan or

          5  other areas which are very nice but they choose not

          6  to, and choice is our prerogative. They want a place

          7  where they can have a little garden in the front,

          8  the sun coming in through the windows, that's what

          9  they did with all the money that they saved. That's

         10  what they continue to do with the money they have,

         11  paying taxes of all sorts and natures, there is no

         12  such thing as rent-free, as you all know. It costs a

         13  great deal to live in a house in Wakefield.

         14                 When the dream is shattered by

         15  suddenly have a wall come up in front of your home,

         16  that's disgraceful. That is heartbreaking, and that

         17  is what has been happening in Wakefield. Our

         18  beautiful spacious homes. Spacious. What do I mean

         19  by spacious? An alleyway from there to here. But

         20  suddenly there is a house from there to here. And

         21  it's not only a one-family, it's a three-family all

         22  the way up. When on one block a one-family house

         23  with a large lot is demolished, and that's what's

         24  been happening here. We've had demolishing, houses

         25  demolished so that one house will suddenly, one lot,
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          2  one family house, there are seven three-family

          3  houses in that one location. Now, stop to think of

          4  the number of extra people that are there. We are

          5  not geared to handle that kind of increasing

          6  population.

          7                 So, you know, I beg you, we've been

          8  at it for ten years, I beg you to do this, not only

          9  to preserve the character of the neighborhood, but

         10  to preserve the American dream.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I couldn't have

         13  said it better myself.

         14                 Next speaker.

         15                 MS. ROSA: Good morning. Good morning,

         16  Council Member Koppell, Rivera and Council Member

         17  Seabrook. From the Bronx we bring you greetings. My

         18  name is Carmen Rosa. I'm District Manager for

         19  Community Board 12. And I must tell you that we're

         20  not against development in any means. What we are

         21  against is the type of development that has been

         22  going on throughout the City of New York. So, we

         23  thank our Council representatives who have been in

         24  the forefront from the very beginning in making

         25  these changes. But one of the things that happens
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          2  with these overdevelopment that many of us are going

          3  to have to deal with and in Community Board 12 we

          4  have had certain seminars on it, and that is that

          5  many of the homes that are now being built are going

          6  up for foreclosures. Why? Because all of these

          7  individuals are told that they can afford these

          8  homes, when in reality they cannot. And in a couple

          9  of years we're going to have what we had before,

         10  which is a devastation and empty homes. And we see

         11  that throughout our district.

         12                 I want to not forget to thank Mr.

         13  Danyluk for coming up with something so creative in

         14  an R4A, which many other communities are using, and

         15  there was a need for it.

         16                 In Community Board 12 this is an

         17  issue that is coming not just from the Wakefield

         18  Taxpayers. I can tell you that we have well over

         19  167,000 residents and still moving up. We know that

         20  we've had an increase of well over ten or 20 percent

         21  over the last census. So, this is something that the

         22  entire community is moving forward and supporting,

         23  so I urge you on behalf of those residents in the

         24  Northeast Bronx to certainly pass this law.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you. Unless

          3  there is anyone else signed up to speak on this

          4  item, I will close the public hearing. Thank you.

          5                 And we will move to a vote on these

          6  items.

          7                 The Chair recommends approval of the

          8  AM&G Waterproofing rezoning; the Dyker Heights

          9  rezoning; the Fort Greene rezoning, with the

         10  following modification: modification to restore the

         11  R7-1 designation and the RC1-5 commercial overlay,

         12  amending paragraph 12 in 15-A and eliminating

         13  paragraph three, property bounded by Myrtle Avenue,

         14  Emerson Place and Hall Street, and an accompanying

         15  change in the inclusionary housing designated area.

         16                 The Chair also recommends approval of

         17  the Wakefield Eastchester rezoning, and the Hill

         18  Country sidewalk cafe. I will ask Counsel to call

         19  the vote.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chairman

         21  Avella.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Aye.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Rivera.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I vote aye.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Felder.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER: Yes.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          6  Katz.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Aye on all.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  McMahon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Aye on all.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         12  Seabrook.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEABROOK: I vote aye.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Stewart.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STEWART: Aye on all.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         21  eight in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

         22  abstentions. The referred item is passed to the full

         23  Land Use Committee.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We will keep the

         25  vote open because I know another couple of Council
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          2  members may be next door, and in the building.

          3                 We will take a five-minute, and I do

          4  mean five-minute recess, and then we will

          5  immediately go into the Jamaica plan.

          6                 (Recess taken.)

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The longer it

          8  takes you to find a seat, the longer we're going to

          9  be here. Just to remind everybody, if you want to

         10  speak on this item, you should fill out a speaker's

         11  slip by the Sergeant-At-Arms desk. We will have the

         12  presentation by Department of City Planning, we will

         13  then take questions from Council members, and, of

         14  course, the Council members whose district this

         15  application lies within. Then we will go to the

         16  public testimony. I have over 30 speakers so we

         17  would like to try and move this ahead and hear from

         18  everybody but do it in an expeditious manner.

         19                 Next item on the agenda is currently

         20  referred to as the "Jamaica Plan." C070314 ZMQ,

         21  N070315 ZRQ, C070316 HUQ, N070317 HGQ, and C070322

         22  HDQ. And we're happy to have the Commissioner of the

         23  Department of City Planning Amanda Burden here.

         24                 Commissioner.

         25                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you very
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          2  much. I am delighted to be here. Good morning, Chair

          3  Avella, Chair Katz, Council Members Gennaro, and

          4  hopefully Comrie, White and Weprin, hopefully, and

          5  members of the Zoning Subcommittee. I am Amanda

          6  Burden and I am Chair of the New York City Planning

          7  Commission and the Director of the Department of

          8  City Planning.

          9                 I want to thank you for the

         10  opportunity to speak to you today about one of the

         11  most important and largest rezonings undertaken by

         12  the Bloomberg Administration, the Jamaica Plan. I am

         13  joined by John Young, the Director of the

         14  Department's Queens Office, Borough Commissioners

         15  Maura McCarthy, from the Department of

         16  Transportation, Angelo Licata, from the Department

         17  of Environmental Protection, and Derek Lee from the

         18  Department of Buildings, as well as representatives

         19  from the School Construction Authority, Housing

         20  Preservation and Development, the Economic

         21  Development Corporation, as well as the Departments

         22  of Small Business Services, Parks, Recreation and

         23  Sanitation.

         24                 The Jamaica Plan is an ambitious but

         25  carefully wrought new zoning framework for one of
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          2  the City's most significant regional centers. The

          3  plan underscores this Administration's sustainable

          4  planning strategy to catalyze growth near mass

          5  transit, fostering new housing and employment

          6  opportunities near the area's transit nodes, while

          7  taking care to protect the scale of its lower

          8  density neighborhoods.

          9                 The plan will expand the downtown

         10  Business District near the JFK Air Train Station,

         11  with nearly 3 million square feet of new commercial

         12  space, stimulating over 9,500 jobs. The new zoning

         13  will also facilitate a significant number of new

         14  housing units, many of which will be permanently

         15  affordable through inclusionary zoning incentives.

         16                 At its vote on July 11th, the City

         17  Planning Commission incorporated into the plan many

         18  of the suggestions that emerged during the public

         19  review process. In particular, the Commission

         20  reduced the density along the eastern portion of

         21  Hillside Avenue, as well as along the Eastern

         22  portion of Jamaica Avenue.

         23                 In addition, the Commission modified

         24  the zoning to reduce building scale of both Liberty

         25  Avenue and Merrick Boulevard to reflect the adjacent
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          2  blocks developed primarily with one- and two-family

          3  homes. It is important to note that the Jamaica

          4  Plant has benefitted by an unprecedented level of

          5  interagency coordination and cooperation. Led by

          6  Deputy Mayor Doctoroff's Office, an Interagency Task

          7  Force has been focused over the last nine months on

          8  addressing longstanding community concerns regarding

          9  the areas's infrastructure and quality of life.

         10                 This Administration has pledged to

         11  continue that interagency focus to ensure that its

         12  implementation receives ongoing oversight,

         13  cooperation and accountability.

         14                 This 368 block plan has been shaped

         15  by a significant number of dedicated participants

         16  throughout its development. I want to thank the

         17  area's many local, civic and business organizations

         18  and elected officials, including Council Members

         19  Leroy Comrie, James Gennaro, Thomas White, Jr., and

         20  David Weprin, Borough President Helen Marshall,

         21  Congressman Meeks, State Senator Shirley Huntley,

         22  Malcolm Smith and Frank Padavan, as well as

         23  Assemblymembers William Scaroboro and Vivian Cook,

         24  who have taken time to meet with me or other members

         25  of the Administration to discuss Jamaica's future.
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          2                 I'd also like to commend the

          3  outstanding work of Community Board 12, its Chair

          4  Dr. Gloria Black, as well as the leadership of

          5  Community Board 8.

          6                 Jamaica truly deserves the very best

          7  plan, one that is comprehensive and inclusive to

          8  provide for orderly growth. It builds on its

          9  strengths and provides for its long-term needs. If

         10  we can provide the right framework for development,

         11  we can allow for the City to further diversify its

         12  economy, enhance the special qualities of Jamaica,

         13  and create opportunities for the next generation.

         14                 Thank you, and I'd like to turn this

         15  over to John Young, the Director of Queens Office

         16  who will present the plan.

         17                 MR. YOUNG: Thank you. And good

         18  morning, Chair Avella, Chair Katz, Council members,

         19  ladies and gentlemen. My name is John Young, and I

         20  am the Director of the Queens Office for the

         21  Department of City Planning. Along with City

         22  Planning Director Amanda Burden, I'm very pleased to

         23  be here this morning, as you hold a public hearing

         24  on one of the most important recent planning and

         25  zoning initiatives in Queens.
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          2                 I'm joined by Rob Polbrook

          3  (phonetic), and we're going to do a brief

          4  presentation of the plan before you. The Department

          5  of City Planning, working with a broad spectrum of

          6  community stakeholders, as the Chair has outlined,

          7  neighborhood residents, local elected officials, has

          8  developed this comprehensive planning and rezoning

          9  strategy to replace outdated zoning that does not

         10  adequately address Jamaica's current and future

         11  housing and economic needs.

         12                 Implementing the Jamaica Plan will

         13  chart a better future for the area to ensure that

         14  its communities are more livable, its institutions

         15  more competitive, and its economic base stronger and

         16  more diverse.

         17                 Downtown Jamaica is one of three

         18  regional business centers in Queens, the others

         19  being Downtown Flushing and Long Island City, and it

         20  serves as a retail, civic and transportation center

         21  for more than 700,000 residents in surrounding

         22  portions of Southeast Queens.

         23                 Significant public investments have

         24  provided it with modern court buildings, government

         25  offices of federal laboratory and the valuable
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          2  institutional presence of York College. Each day

          3  more than 80,000 riders use the Long Island

          4  railroads, Jamaica Station, and with the advent of

          5  the JFK AirTrain, Jamaica is now an important

          6  gateway for new arrivals to the City.

          7                 Yet, between 1990 and 2000, the

          8  area's population grew by about 5.1 percent, less

          9  than the City's overall rate of 9.4 percent and much

         10  less than the 14.2 percent rate for Queens.

         11                 Economic investment and new housing

         12  production in the Downtown has lagged behind other

         13  parts of the City. Even the opening of the JFK Air

         14  Train terminal in late 2003 has catalyzed little

         15  economic growth in the surrounding area.

         16                 And the zoning in Jamaica has not

         17  been changed substantially in 45 years at that time

         18  when Jamaica was a major retail and business center,

         19  with large department stores along Jamaica Avenue

         20  and light manufacturing and warehouse activities

         21  clustered near the Long Island Railroad.

         22                 Today low-density light manufacturing

         23  zoning surrounds the best growth area for Downtown -

         24  the AirTrain Long Island Railroad Station hub.

         25                 Moreover, while other areas of Queens
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          2  have seen private-sector office, retail and

          3  residential growth, the Jamaica core has received

          4  limited private investment. One reason for this is

          5  that the zoning does not permit enough density for

          6  viable developments, so that each time a substantial

          7  new building has been proposed, a costly and time

          8  consuming zoning change has been necessary - most

          9  recently for the redevelopment of the former Family

         10  Court complex at Parsons Boulevard and 89th Avenue.

         11  The current zoning simply fails to take advantage of

         12  the area's strengths - as a regional business center

         13  and as a transportation hub.

         14                 Conversely, existing zoning does not

         15  protect the character of one- and two-family

         16  residential areas surrounding the core. Currently, a

         17  wide range of housing types and much denser

         18  development can replace these homes and alter the

         19  character of blocks along neighborhood side streets.

         20  Today, in much of the downtown and along portions to

         21  the east, west and south of it, medium density

         22  residential zoning allows development that could

         23  reach 12 to 14 stories, since it does not have a

         24  firm building height. In lower density areas, one-

         25  and two-family buildings are being replaced readily
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          2  with four or more units.

          3                 As Chair Burden mentioned, the

          4  Jamaica Plan is among the largest rezoning efforts

          5  in the City's history, and it would provide updates

          6  to approximately 368 blocks in Downtown Jamaica,

          7  portions of the adjacent neighborhoods of South

          8  Jamaica, Hollis, St. Albans and the southern edges

          9  of Briarwood, Jamaica Hill, and Jamaica Estates.

         10  These are the blocks that are colored in on the map.

         11                 The Jamaica Plan is intended to

         12  strengthen economic and housing opportunities in

         13  Downtown Jamaica, curb overdevelopment in lower

         14  density residential areas and foster more orderly,

         15  well-planned growth.

         16                 The plan allows highest densities

         17  shown in the darkest colors in the Downtown area

         18  around the Transit hubs. And it creates a new

         19  special district in the core to ensure that new

         20  commercial, mixed-use residential opportunities will

         21  contribute to enhancing the area's vibrancy and

         22  foster an appealing pedestrian experience.

         23                 It also directs higher densities to

         24  major streets which can better accommodate future

         25  growth, with transit opportunities, and a range of
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          2  proposed densities with fixed building heights has

          3  been carefully selected to match and reinforce the

          4  scale of existing multi-family buildings on these

          5  streets.

          6                 At the same time, it protects the

          7  character of lower density residential areas by

          8  reducing densities on nearly 50 blocks and

          9  restricting new development to one- and two-family

         10  housing on more than 130 blocks.

         11                 The plan also promotes the upgrading

         12  of business and community facility activities in the

         13  area's manufacturing districts. And overall, as

         14  Chair Burden mentioned, the plan is expected to

         15  generate nearly 3 million square feet of new

         16  commercial space, more than 3,400 dwelling units,

         17  and nearly 9,600 jobs by 2015.

         18                 The plan would make Inclusionary

         19  Housing Program zoning regulations applicable to 70

         20  blocks in Downtown Jamaica, as well as along

         21  Hillside Avenue from 139th to 181st Streets, one of

         22  the areas shaded in on the map. This would be one of

         23  the largest areas outside of Manhattan where the

         24  program can be utilized. In these areas new

         25  residential developments that provide on- or
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          2  off-site housing that will remain permanently

          3  affordable for low- and moderate-income families,

          4  would receive increased floor area. The additional

          5  floor area must be accommodated within the bulk

          6  regulations of the underlying zoning districts.

          7  Affordable units could be financed through City,

          8  State and federal affordable housing subsidy

          9  programs.

         10                 The affordable housing requirement of

         11  the Inclusionary Housing zoning bonus could be met

         12  through affordable housing units developed on-site

         13  or off-site, either through new construction or

         14  preservation of existing affordable units.

         15                 Off-site affordable units must be

         16  located within the same community district or within

         17  a half mile of the bonused development.  And the

         18  availability of on-site and off-site options will

         19  provide maximum flexibility to ensure the broadest

         20  possible utilization of the program under various

         21  market conditions.

         22                 Preservation of off-site units under

         23  the voluntary program is especially -- will allow

         24  the program to especially serve a community where

         25  there is concern about pressure on existing
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          2  residents as market rents may rise.

          3                 With the strong incentives of the

          4  Inclusionary Housing program, we expect that nearly

          5  800 affordable housing units could be produced in

          6  Jamaica by 2015.

          7                 The proposed Special Downtown Jamaica

          8  District will not only offer affordable housing

          9  incentives, it will make special urban design and

         10  zoning requirements to ensure that the plan will

         11  achieve its objective of enhancing Jamaica's unique

         12  character, while allowing for new opportunities for

         13  economic growth.

         14                 Similar to rezoning techniques used

         15  in other regional centers, such as Long Island City

         16  and Downtown Brooklyn, the highest densities would

         17  be positioned at the transit hubs and the scale of

         18  development would be decreased at locations further

         19  away, providing a nuanced transition to neighboring

         20  lower density areas, and again, this is shown in the

         21  different colors of the map.

         22                 Throughout the Downtown, the Special

         23  District will allow a vibrant mix of residential,

         24  commercial, cultural and institutional uses. It

         25  would remove restrictions on residential conversions
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          2  on the upper floors of commercial buildings,

          3  enhancing Jamaica's role as a regional business

          4  district, with new opportunities for job creating

          5  investments. Increased densities to facilitate light

          6  industrial, business supply and other commercial

          7  developments would be allowed on 32 blocks zoned for

          8  light manufacturing. In addition, on 10 of these

          9  blocks situated between York College and the JFK

         10  AirTrain Station, allowable uses would be changed to

         11  include additional commercial and community facility

         12  uses and require construction for fully enclosed

         13  buildings.

         14                 Only three out of 368 blocks in the

         15  rezoning area would be included in the proposed

         16  urban renewal area. The blocks are located within

         17  the Special District and immediately adjacent to the

         18  JFK AirTrain Station. The proposed urban renewal

         19  strategy is intended to compliment the rezoning of

         20  these three key blocks which are so central to the

         21  future image of Jamaica.

         22                 Today the area proposed as the

         23  Jamaica Gateway Urban Renewal Area is comprised of

         24  vacant and under-utilized parcels, some of which are

         25  in substandard condition. Existing uses,
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          2  particularly automotive and industrial uses conflict

          3  with efforts to encourage an expansion of the

          4  Downtown commercial area into the JFK AirTrain

          5  Station area. It's very likely, though, that the

          6  proposed zoning changes, along with strategic public

          7  investments in Downtown Jamaica will encourage the

          8  redevelopment of these blocks and the tools of urban

          9  renewal will not be needed.

         10                 The proposed Jamaica Gateway Urban

         11  Renewal Area would nonetheless work with the

         12  proposed zoning changes to encourage and support

         13  mixed use developments containing office, retail,

         14  hotel and residential uses in blocks that adjoin the

         15  AirTrain Long Island Railroad Station Complex, and

         16  provide a unique resource to improving Jamaica's

         17  future.

         18                 The redevelopment of these

         19  transit-oriented sites, along with the provision of

         20  public improvements, such as a new 30,000 square

         21  foot open space across from the AirTrain Station,

         22  and new public parking in the area will further

         23  catalyze new private investment and expand market

         24  interest in Jamaica. Providing the right tools on

         25  these key blocks and in the rest of Downtown Jamaica
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          2  can help Jamaica become an even greater hub of

          3  activity.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 And I just want to make sure, we have

          6  given you a packet of information that includes the

          7  Chair's remarks, my remarks, this powerpoint

          8  presentation, the City Planning Commission report

          9  and remarks from some of the upcoming Borough

         10  Commissioners.

         11                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: We have testimony

         12  by the Department of Transportation, the Department

         13  of Environmental Protection and the Department of

         14  Buildings.

         15                 Mr. Chair, would you like to proceed

         16  with that testimony before you take questions? Or

         17  would you like us to answer questions right now?

         18  We'd be pleased to do whatever you would like.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We'll continue

         20  with the rest of the testimony.

         21                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Okay. Everybody

         22  has kept it very short, and then we have the other

         23  agencies to answer questions as well.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I know that you

         25  have to go to another meeting, but I would like you
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          2  to be around for questions.

          3                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I certainly am

          4  going to be around. I only have to go across the

          5  street to Chair a hearing of my agency at 1:00. So,

          6  I'll stay until the very last minute.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, don't say

          8  before the last minute, let me know that you have to

          9  go and we'll call you back --

         10                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Okay, fine.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: -- To take the

         12  questions, if we don't get to it.

         13                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Okay, thanks.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         15                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         16  Good morning, Chairman Avella and members of the

         17  Zoning and Franchises Subcommittee. I am Maura

         18  McCarthy, the New York City Department of

         19  Transportation's Queens Borough Commissioner, and

         20  I'm pleased to be here today with Commissioner

         21  Burden and my fellow colleagues to discuss the

         22  proposed Jamaica rezoning.

         23                 This is certainly an exciting time

         24  and an opportunity for us to provide a balanced

         25  growth for this area of Queens. DOT wholeheartedly
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          2  supports the proposal and the opportunity it

          3  presents us to integrate traffic and transportation

          4  with urban development.

          5                 As you know, the proposed rezoning of

          6  Jamaica presents numerous challenges and

          7  opportunities for many City agencies, and DOT is no

          8  exception. DOT has been working closely with the

          9  local residents, businesses, community boards and

         10  elected officials to address their vision for the

         11  area. One request that has been raised frequently in

         12  discussions has been for an increase to the

         13  availability of on-street parking.

         14                 As we seek to manage better available

         15  space, I am pleased to report that we have

         16  identified over 172 publicly available on-street

         17  parking spaces, largely in the Downtown Jamaica

         18  area. We will be installing additional parking

         19  meters and removing some of the parking restrictions

         20  to create these additional parking spaces, and we

         21  hope to have them available by the end of September.

         22                 In addition, we will work with the

         23  community to identify appropriate locations for

         24  muni-meters to be installed in Fiscal Year 2009. We

         25  have also looked into improving traffic flow and

                                                            86

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  safety of all road users, including pedestrians,

          3  bicyclists and motorists, in the area to address

          4  future travel demand by implementing more effective

          5  transportation management strategies to accommodate

          6  future growth.

          7                 In coordination with several City

          8  agencies, we are moving ahead with three

          9  long-identified community priorities. The first is

         10  the extension of Atlantic Avenue to 95th Avenue,

         11  which will commit smoother and less congested

         12  east/west traffic flow while improving vehicular and

         13  pedestrian safety by reducing many of the existing

         14  vehicle conflicts.

         15                 This will also provide the community

         16  with the park space of about three-quarters of an

         17  acre in the vicinity of the extension. The second is

         18  the creation of Station Plaza at Archer Avenue and

         19  Sutphin Boulevard, which will enhance pedestrian

         20  safety and access to the Jamaica Station hub.

         21                 The third is the Sutphin Boulevard

         22  Underpass rehabilitation. This underpass beneath the

         23  railroad tracks and platforms at Jamaica Station

         24  will be transferred into an intermodal connector at

         25  the heart of one of the nation's largest
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          2  transportation hubs. The LIRR infrastructure and

          3  platform services will be reorganized and

          4  consolidated and pedestrian conditions will be

          5  improved with increased lighting, streetscape

          6  changes and the introduction of retail space.

          7                 While the rezoning is expected to

          8  bring more people and more commerce to the area, DOT

          9  will continue to work with the community and other

         10  City agencies to respond to the existing and

         11  changing needs and conditions of the area while

         12  planning for its future growth.

         13                 Specifically, we will continue to

         14  monitor the area's traffic, parking and pedestrian

         15  conditions, and we'll make appropriate adjustments

         16  where necessary.

         17                 In conclusion, let me say that DOT is

         18  and will continue to address any and all changes the

         19  rezoning presents us with, as the outcome will not

         20  only benefit this area of Queens, but the City as a

         21  whole.

         22                 Thank you for the opportunity to be

         23  here today and I hope we can count on your support.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: Good

         25  morning, Chairman Avella and members of the City
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          2  Council. My name is Angela Licata, and I am here on

          3  behalf of the New York City Department of

          4  Environmental Protection.

          5                 Commissioner Emily Lloyd thanks you

          6  for the opportunity to testify about this important

          7  initiative. Parts of the rezoning area are prone to

          8  residential and roadway flooding during heavy rains,

          9  due to a rising water table and an incomplete

         10  drainage infrastructure that is still being built

         11  out. In fact, many communities in Southeastern

         12  Queens experience similar difficulties.

         13                 DEP is committed improving the sewer

         14  service in Southeastern Queens by completely

         15  building out the storm and sanitary systems so that

         16  we can reduce existing problems and allow new

         17  construction to occur. To improve drainage in the

         18  project area, DEP has accelerated the task of

         19  completing a comprehensive drainage plan and is

         20  making efforts to advance the construction necessary

         21  to serve this area.

         22                 In fact, completing the drainage

         23  infrastructure in Southeastern Queens accounts for

         24  more than one-third of the Department's Citywide

         25  capital budget.
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          2                 In Southeastern Queens, about $600

          3  million is programmed in DEP's Ten-Year Capital

          4  Plan. This does include areas within the Rockaways.

          5  However, this work will take place over many years

          6  because of the size of the area being upgraded and

          7  the nature of this type of construction work.

          8                 Completing the drainage

          9  infrastructure in Southeastern Queens is an

         10  important part of solving the infrastructure

         11  challenges. Drawing down the water table may also be

         12  a part of the solution. At one point in the 1980s

         13  the wells in Southeastern Queens, owned and operated

         14  by the Jamaica Water Supply Company were pumping

         15  approximately 100 million gallons a day.

         16                 By early 2000, DEP no longer utilized

         17  those wells. Cost to pump and treat and the desire

         18  for water from the Upstate reservoirs were the key

         19  factors behind the utilization changes. The ground

         20  water table has risen as much as 30 feet in some

         21  areas in South Jamaica. As the ground water table

         22  rises, it infiltrates our sewers, reducing capacity

         23  and flooding some basements of buildings in the

         24  area. To draw the water table down, DEP is pumping

         25  additional wells to waste, meaning pumping water
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          2  into the sewer system, not into the distribution for

          3  drinking water, completing final designs for a

          4  capital project to reopen the wells with the

          5  capacity of ten to 12 million gallons a day at a

          6  site known as Station 6. Working with New York State

          7  DEC to remediate underground perchloethylene

          8  contamination at Station 24 by pumping the wells at

          9  that site, we have lowered a weir at the south end

         10  of Baisley Pond as a means to reduce the elevation

         11  of the water table upstream of that pond.

         12                 While DEP continues its long-term

         13  capital program to complete the drainage system

         14  serving southeastern Queens, we understand that we

         15  must not let near-term construction in the rezoned

         16  area adversely affect the existing drainage system

         17  that we upgrade, we will be upgrading. The following

         18  near term steps will protect existing neighborhoods

         19  and their residents.

         20                 DEP and the Department of Buildings

         21  are putting in place a system whereby all new

         22  development in the rezoned area would need to come

         23  to DEP for sewer approval of their drainage plans.

         24  This would allow DEP to enforce the implementation

         25  of responsible and necessary sanitary and storm
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          2  water management to minimize the anticipated

          3  growth's impact on the infrastructure. This would

          4  also allow DEP to monitor the exact distribution and

          5  nature of the growth in order to respond to

          6  infrastructure needs most effectively.

          7                 More specifically, DEP is working

          8  with City Planning and the Department of Buildings

          9  to identify sites within the project area that are

         10  likely to be built. In areas of projected growth,

         11  DEP is already undertaking a more thorough analysis

         12  and inspection of the existing drainage

         13  infrastructure, so that by the time builders are

         14  approach us with an application to connect to our

         15  system, we will be able to predict the ability of

         16  our system to handle the additional flow.

         17                 If DEP engineering staff believes

         18  that a particular proposal to connect to our system,

         19  would, if approved, increase sewer backups or other

         20  service issues, DEP will direct the applicant to

         21  modify their proposal as necessary. In concert with

         22  Mayor Bloomberg's PlaNYC, DEC is exploring the

         23  opportunities for BMPs for storm water management.

         24  In areas with existing impervious surfaces, BMPs may

         25  in fact reduce the amount of storm water running off
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          2  the site. We will not approve applications to

          3  connect to our system at the cost of increasing

          4  sewer backups.

          5                 Additionally, DEP will monitor

          6  conditions in the area and perform necessary sewer

          7  cleaning, allowing us to maintain maximum capacity

          8  in the pipes.

          9                 In summary, the Jamaica Plan will be

         10  a high priority for DEP, and we believe that we will

         11  be able to manage the effects of new development as

         12  we build out a new sewer system for the area.

         13                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE: Good

         14  morning, Chairman Avella, and members of the Zoning

         15  and Franchises Committee. My name is Derek Lee and

         16  it is my pleasure to be here today representing

         17  Commissioner Patricia Lancaster and the New York

         18  City Buildings Department.

         19                 The New York City Buildings

         20  Department supports the Jamaica Rezoning Plan and

         21  will make all efforts possible to support our sister

         22  agency, the Department of City Planning, with new

         23  enforcement programs to ensure that the intention of

         24  the rezoning is met and that compliance is

         25  preserved.
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          2                 There are four operational components

          3  to our effort. They are as follows:

          4                 Department of Environmental

          5  Protection Approvals: All applications submitted to

          6  DOB for the Jamaica Plan Area must include a site

          7  connection proposal, that is reviewed and approved

          8  by DEP. This DEP approval will be required prior to

          9  the issuance of all new buildings and major

         10  alteration permits by DOB.

         11                 To ensure DEP review approval is

         12  obtained, all applications, including those that are

         13  professionally certified, will require DEP approval

         14  at pre-filing. All applications that are reviewed by

         15  DOB Plan Examiners will require DEP approval at the

         16  time of examination. This verification will be

         17  validated at three specific stages; at pre-filing,

         18  at plan approval and at the time of permit issuance.

         19                 This triple check process will enable

         20  the DOB to safeguard against additional discharge

         21  entering into the existing sewer system, and will

         22  ensure compliance by all applicants. If the

         23  application does not have the DEP review approval,

         24  the application will not receive DOB plan approval

         25  and will not be issued a construction permit.
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          2                 Zoning check. To mitigate any

          3  potential abuse of professional certification

          4  privileges, there will be 100 percent auditing of

          5  professionally certified applications for all new

          6  buildings and major alterations that result in a

          7  certificate of occupancy.

          8                 All applications processed under the

          9  Self Certification of Objections protocol will also

         10  be subject to the 100 percent audit. DOB Plan

         11  Examiners will check for Zoning and Building Code

         12  compliance prior to the application being approved.

         13  Applications that fail this pre-screening review

         14  will not be granted a permit and will be subject to

         15  a full plan review.

         16                 Construction Check: Shortly after a

         17  construction permit is issued for a new building or

         18  major alteration application, a comprehensive audit

         19  will be conducted for Zoning and Building   Code

         20  compliance. The results of this audit will be given

         21  to our Zoning inspectors to verify the field

         22  conditions at the construction. Site. If

         23  non-compliance is found, the applicant will be

         24  issued a 10-Day Intent to Revoke letter and will be

         25  offered an opportunity to appear before the
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          2  Department and resolve the objection and/or

          3  non-compliance. Failure of the applicant to address

          4  the audit objections and bring the development into

          5  compliance at the second appointment will result in

          6  the immediate revocation of the permits.

          7                 Jamaica Special Unit, JSU: To support

          8  this re-zoning effort, the Buildings Department will

          9  request for additional staffing lines to bring on a

         10  team of two Plan Examiners and two Zoning Inspectors

         11  to be deployed for the Jamaica Plan area. Their

         12  tasks will include auditing and tracking of all

         13  projects within the rezoned area. The Zoning

         14  Inspectors will proactively monitor construction

         15  sites and will perform day-to-day inspections to

         16  prevent illegal construction activities. This team

         17  will be provided with back-up by other borough

         18  inspectors and support staff as needed.

         19                 In addition to the previously

         20  mentioned operational adjustments, the Department

         21  will implement an industry outreach plan to ensure

         22  professionals, expeditors and developers are aware

         23  of the requirements for filing applications in the

         24  Jamaica rezone area. This outreach will include:

         25                 - Monthly Industry and Expeditor
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          2  meetings will be held at the DOB borough office.

          3                 - Communication of any new

          4  requirements to Elected Officials, Community Boards,

          5  and Civic Groups through the Department's

          6  Intergovernmental and Community Regulations'

          7  regularly scheduled meetings and office visits.

          8                 - Our Communications office will

          9  place notification on the Department's website

         10  publicizing this rezoning effort.

         11                 - The Department will proactively

         12  notify the industry and the public via Buildings

         13  News our DOB Electronic Newsletter, with over 10,000

         14  registered subscribers.

         15                 - And lastly, our Customer Service

         16  Unit will send out direct mail notifications to all

         17  target area property owners.

         18                 It is our belief that the Initiatives

         19  we are prepared to implement will compliment the

         20  efforts made by our sister agencies, to provide for

         21  a smooth transition into the new zoning, as well as

         22  provide for the necessary measures to ensure

         23  compliance.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I am looking to
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          2  you, Commissioner. That is it on the agency

          3  presentation? You have to go to the mic. I'm sorry,

          4  Commissioner.

          5                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair. As I mentioned, we have a number of agencies

          7  here to answer with more expert voice than mine, but

          8  I'm also here to answer questions anyone here may

          9  have about the Jamaica Rezoning Plan.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, since your

         11  time is limited, I think we should start with you.

         12                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Okay, good.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I know that

         14  the Council members whose district this lies within

         15  obviously have some comments and some questions.

         16  We'll start with Council Member Leroy Comrie, and

         17  then we'll do Council Member James Gennaro.

         18                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Wait. I'm sorry.

         20  I have to do one technical thing before we take

         21  that. I'd like to call on Council Member Bob Jackson

         22  for his vote on the previous items.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         24  Jackson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Aye on all.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

          3  nine in the affirmative, none in the negative, no

          4  abstentions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

          6                 I'm sorry, Council member.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Oh, no

          8  problem. Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          9                 Good morning, everyone. Sorry to be

         10  moving like a YoYo, but I'm on the Landmarks

         11  Committee that had a vote on a hearing in Council

         12  Member Avella's district actually that passed, and

         13  I'm chairing a Con Edison hearing, and Con Edison is

         14  acting like they don't want to come to our hearing

         15  date, so I'm arguing with them back on the phone.

         16  So, excuse me for multi-tasking, as we all do this

         17  morning.

         18                 First, I want to thank Chairman

         19  Avella for holding this hearing and meeting with all

         20  of the groups involved. He's been a great

         21  Subcommittee Chair for Zoning.

         22                 I want to thank Commissioner Amanda

         23  Burden, Deputy Mayor Dan Doctoroff, Commissioners

         24  McCarthy and Derek Lee, and Commissioner for DEP,

         25  and all of the Commissioners that have been involved
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          2  in this plan. I want to thank the members of

          3  Community Board 12 and 8. I want to acknowledge the

          4  presence of Community Board Chairperson Gloria

          5  Black, who is here this morning, and I'm not sure if

          6  the Chair of Community Board 8 is here? Yes, Mr.

          7  Schwartz is here also. I want to just say that this

          8  has been a long process and I want to thank

          9  Commissioner Burden for having open lines of

         10  communication. In fact, I want to thank John Young,

         11  Rob Holbrook and Debbie Carney, from Queens Land Use

         12  staff. They had meetings that were actually held

         13  after I realized that Community Board 12 in the last

         14  six months and in upcoming -- in the last six months

         15  held three major Land Use hearings and have had many

         16  Land Use decisions that have come before them,

         17  necessitating the fact that I'm going to be a lot

         18  more conversant with Land Use issues and what's an

         19  R3A to an R2 to R7X to an R7A, and in that regard I

         20  funded them to get some money for to do some

         21  research and had the ability to do Land Use issues

         22  and to do Land Use training, which they did through

         23  Pace University, no Pace, Pratt University, and

         24  those meetings got developed into an ad hoc

         25  committee, and the ad hoc committee meetings were
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          2  held at the Queens Borough City Planning office.

          3                 So, those meetings were held with

          4  full closure and full knowledge, and I want to thank

          5  John Young and Debbie and Rob again for everything

          6  that they did to give the ad hoc committee the

          7  information so they could move forward, so that the

          8  community board could be very conversant about all

          9  of the Land Use issues that are before them.

         10                 This plan is the largest rezoning

         11  plan that the City has undertaken. It affects my

         12  district along with Councilman Gennaro, Weprin and

         13  White in large order. I think I have most of the

         14  blocks that are, the majority of the blocks of any

         15  of the Council members, and I've been working with

         16  many groups, talking to many people, listening to

         17  many experts around all of the issues regarding

         18  this. So, I just wanted to start up with thanking

         19  everybody before I ask some specific questions.

         20                 I think that the hearing today, there

         21  are still some issues that are yet to be resolved.

         22  I'm clear, though, that we will get them resolved

         23  before the vote.

         24                 I think that there has been

         25  high-spirited communication. I want to thank HPD for
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          2  consistently being helpful to me whenever I reach

          3  out to them. And if I missed any office or agency,

          4  please forgive me.

          5                 It's important that as we move

          6  forward in this plan, that we try to do everything

          7  to accommodate as many needs as possible. I am

          8  concerned about a letter that was sent regarding a

          9  task force, and in a plan such as this it's

         10  necessary to have, we believe, and I'm speaking for

         11  all of the elected officials in Queens, a task force

         12  that deals with Jamaica in terms of the

         13  infrastructure, in terms of congestion, in terms of

         14  transportation, in terms of ensuring that the

         15  economic development that needs to be realized is

         16  realized in a holistic and inclusive kind of a way.

         17  I'm thankful that Deputy Mayor Doctoroff understands

         18  it and has embraced it. I am concerned, though, that

         19  a letter that we did receive was not more definitive

         20  about the things that are going to be done within

         21  that plan, and I hope that we get a more definitive

         22  letter before the August 8 vote, so that it can be

         23  distributed to the Council members in the Committee

         24  so they can see how extensive the work that was done

         25  by that interagency task force.
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          2                 I'm also concerned that the task

          3  force, about the structure of the task force, and I

          4  want to move into that. And I think that while it's

          5  commendable that we want to have the parties that

          6  were indicated in there, I think that we need to

          7  ferret that out and ensure that there is a line of

          8  order, ensuring that the people that are most

          9  affected in the Jamaica area are affected. So, you

         10  didn't get a copy of the letter yet, I'm pretty

         11  sure, but I'm sure that you will get one later

         12  today.

         13                 It's important that we also have come

         14  up with the issue of affordable housing development

         15  and jobs, and whether or not it's a possibility to

         16  include a jobs package within a development plan,

         17  and that's something that we have to still work on,

         18  I think as a Citywide issue, not just within a

         19  Jamaica issue. I want to thank 32BJ for coming to me

         20  to try to raise an issue that has been raised before

         21  unsuccessfully, but we need to try to take a look at

         22  how that is a possibility as we work forward in the

         23  City to ensure what we need to do.

         24                 Just specifically, Commissioner, I'm

         25  just going to ask you a couple of questions before I
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          2  turn it over to Councilman Gennaro, and I want to

          3  thank him for staying in contact with me and I with

          4  him, as we move forward to ensure that this plan is

          5  taken care of.

          6                 Oh, I also want to thank you,

          7  Commissioner, for holding the hearing of the

          8  Planning Commission in Queens at the Queens Library.

          9  I hope that was enlightening for the Commissioners

         10  and entire members of the City Planning Commission,

         11  as well as, and I know you walked the entire

         12  district, so that's always impressive.

         13                 As I continue to work and listen to

         14  people about the zoning plan, my concern really is

         15  the ability of the transportation corridors that are

         16  slated to have some changes still be able to

         17  function as high-capacity transportation corridors.

         18  And I'd just like to get your opinion on that before

         19  I ask Commissioner McCarthy.

         20                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Let me first start

         21  with the issue of the task force. And I think you

         22  know very well that the Deputy Mayor, Deputy Mayor

         23  Doctoroff, is dedicated to ensuring this task force

         24  is not only productive, but most importantly, that

         25  it meets the needs that you called for.
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          2                 So, I think that you could take this

          3  letter as a first effort and to get your response to

          4  and ensure those issues that you don't feel that are

          5  addressed in this letter, which was just e-mailed

          6  recently, so that's why not everybody has it yet,

          7  that to make sure that all the issues are addressed,

          8  in working with the Deputy Mayor's staff, to make

          9  sure that the issues that need to be addressed are

         10  in that letter and the participants that you need to

         11  be there are there to make the task force as

         12  representative and accountable as possible. That was

         13  the first two questions.

         14                 And then in terms of the

         15  transportation issues that need to be addressed, the

         16  new Commissioner, Jeannette Sadikahn, has been well

         17  briefed on the Jamaica Plan, and is dedicating her

         18  efforts and her prime staff to making sure the

         19  transportation issues are not only addressed but the

         20  transportation moves well. We're also working with

         21  the MTA to address capacity issues to ensure that

         22  Jamaica has the best service possible, both on its

         23  trains but not its buses.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And I'll

         25  ask the Commissioner about those specific details in
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          2  a minute.

          3                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But do you

          5  believe individually that the capacity that you

          6  slated there would be able to continue to allow for

          7  increased transportation services in that area?

          8                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And also one

         10  other thing that I didn't bring up is there's a FUCA

         11  that's coming up, and I believe that you have a date

         12  slated for that to be voted?

         13                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Yes, we do. Those

         14  who don't know what a FUCA is, it's a new term which

         15  was coined in the City Council, it's called a

         16  Follow-Up Corrective Action, and that will be

         17  certified by the Planning Commission on August 6th,

         18  and that will address certain sites right around the

         19  AirTrain Station to ensure that they have the best

         20  flexibility to ensure they are built so there are

         21  some adjustments in height and in rear yard, and

         22  there appear to be broad consensus amongst elected

         23  officials and in the community that they wanted this

         24  to happen. So, again, Council Members, it will be

         25  certified on August 6th, and we will expedite that
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          2  application.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          4                 And just to be brief, because I know

          5  you're running out of time. I know just to commit,

          6  and I know you've done it to me individually, but

          7  just for the record, that whatever meetings need to

          8  be had between now and the vote, to resolve any

          9  individual issues or collective issues, you have

         10  been more than willing to do so, but if you can just

         11  say so for the record, I would appreciate it.

         12                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Myself personally,

         13  John Young, leading members of the Administration,

         14  at the Mayor's Office, and all of the agencies that

         15  are here today are more than willing to meet at the

         16  convenience of the Council to address outstanding

         17  issues on this rezoning application.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         19  Thank you, Mr. Chair. I'm trying to be brief. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         22                 Council Member Gennaro.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         24  Mr. Chairman.

         25                 Like Leroy, I want to thank you for
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          2  having the leadership of having this hearing today

          3  and for being so involved in the process since its

          4  commenced. I want to thank you in a special way, Mr.

          5  Chairman, for that, as well as to thank Leroy and

          6  David Weprin and Tom White. We had a lot of

          7  collaboration over these last months. Council Member

          8  Katz also has been very helpful and has been in

          9  contact with us on a regular basis. And I want to

         10  echo some of the thank yous that Leroy made with

         11  regard to Commissioner Burden, her excellent staff,

         12  John Young, Debbie Carney and Rob Holbrook, my

         13  partners in government Derek Lee, Maura McCarthy,

         14  Dottie Lewandowski, Angela Licata from DEP, and some

         15  of the good folks from my community that have come

         16  out today for this hearing, Dr. Gloria Black of

         17  Board 12, Jeanie Rudman, the Honorable Martha

         18  Taylor, Pat Dolan, Dr. Arthur Flug, Si Schwartz,

         19  Kevin Forestal. I just want to thank everyone in a

         20  special way for this process that we've all engaged

         21  in.

         22                 And certainly it has been a bumpy

         23  road. Let me just get right to the battle at

         24  Hillside, because this is what people who I

         25  represent have a real sort of issue with,
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          2  notwithstanding all of the give and take that we've

          3  had.

          4                 Let's just kind of bring us up to

          5  July 23rd. The proposal was made originally, there

          6  was what we say in the business "a pushback." I

          7  think that's fair to say that there was a pushback

          8  there. I stepped in with a planning consultant to

          9  see if there was some middle ground that could be

         10  worked out. I hired a planning consultant to work

         11  with the local civic leaders to sort of craft

         12  something that was, that sort of struck a balance we

         13  thought, and now I am in a situation where with --

         14  it's interesting how various other kinds of

         15  initiatives come into play, but with the

         16  resuscitation of the congestion pricing issue in the

         17  last couple of days, the civics that I represent was

         18  once upon a time, they were, had some comfort level

         19  with a compromise proposal that we had put together.

         20  They are now backing away from the plan that

         21  essentially they, themselves, conceived of or had

         22  strong part in putting together.  And the rationale,

         23  which is compelling, is that while folks were

         24  willing to take some additional impacts in terms of

         25  new folks coming to the area and the impact on the
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          2  area that that would bring, to put congestion

          3  pricing on top of that, where now we have more folks

          4  coming to sort of like the end of the subway line

          5  area like we have around 179th Street in Jamaica,

          6  and the parking impacts that will ensue from the

          7  implementation of congestion pricing, essentially

          8  their position, and you'll hear testimony, they can

          9  speak for themselves well when they testify, is that

         10  they're not willing to sort of take the additional

         11  impacts of congestion pricing and what that will

         12  mean on capacity on the F line, in parking capacity

         13  in the local community, in addition to doing an

         14  upzoning along Hillside Avenue. So, I guess they

         15  were willing to take like one hit, but not two, and

         16  that has led to sort of like the, you know, lack of

         17  support for the compromise proposal.

         18                 So, that would lead us to perhaps

         19  what if - what if we were to sort of defer the

         20  upzoning along Hillside Avenue to take that out of

         21  the plan until we could get some insight in the near

         22  future on what was going to happen with congestion

         23  pricing, what that was going to mean, and some of

         24  the other infrastructure-related issues on capacity

         25  of the F Train and all that, which we've heard from
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          2  the MTA, you know, can't be improved, and other

          3  concerns that they had in general to say, look, we

          4  took a run at this thing with congestion pricing

          5  around the corner, and the unknown impacts that

          6  that's going to bring, let's have that all shake out

          7  before we create a sort of new vision for Hillside

          8  Avenue, which if not for the rest of the Jamaica

          9  Plan would be a substantial rezoning in and of

         10  itself, I think we can all admit.

         11                 So, I would posit that, and what are

         12  your musings on that?

         13                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Let me say thank

         14  you for your leadership and participation in every

         15  aspect of your community.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

         17  You've been great to work with, too. No, seriously,

         18  I mean that. You've been very, very accessible, as

         19  well as all of your staff. It's been a pleasure to

         20  work with you all.

         21                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I think you can

         22  say with the City, and City Planning really wants

         23  the best for Jamaica and trying to do it very

         24  carefully and thoughtfully. I think you know the

         25  zoning now might be less FAR, has no height limits
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          2  on it, and it's a building forum that is not right

          3  for the distinction of Hillside Avenue and for the

          4  adjacent community. So, looking for height limits is

          5  very important because it's predictable, it gives a

          6  street wall frontage, and so we think that that's a

          7  very good idea.

          8                 In terms of the eastern edge of the

          9  corridor, east of Midland Parkway, 181st Street,

         10  we've dropped that down to six, seven stories, the

         11  Commission has done that, and to give it a height

         12  limit of 70 feet, and we think that's very

         13  important, it sort of reflects the character and

         14  it's not large and it provides a real context for

         15  the area in the sense of the buildings that are

         16  there. Not having a height limit is not good, and

         17  that's what one would be left with.

         18                 West of Midland Parkway we still have

         19  the R7X, but that's a height limit of 120 feet, and

         20  in terms of the way the buildings will be built, it

         21  probably will be built in much less than that. It is

         22  a very wide avenue. It does have a train on it.

         23  We're working very closely with the MTA. They know

         24  this is a growth corridor, and they're going to

         25  address the capacity issues on that line, especially
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          2  as it reaches Queens Boulevard.

          3                 The new Transportation Commissioner,

          4  as I mentioned, in addition to the Borough

          5  Commissioner Maura McCarthy, is dedicated to making

          6  sure that the traffic flow moves smoothly, much

          7  better than it does right now, and that you heard

          8  already the issue of muni meters looking at permits

          9  and providing 170 new spaces for people to park.

         10  It's just a first instance of how seriously the

         11  focus is on improving conditions in Jamaica.

         12                 So, in terms of Hillside Avenue,

         13  height limits are really important, one doesn't want

         14  to leave it as it is without a height limit, and

         15  bringing it down east to Midland Parkway we think is

         16  really a very good step.

         17                 We've done other stepping downs, both

         18  on Jamaica Avenue and Liberty Avenue and Merrick

         19  Boulevard we think really addresses a lot of the

         20  concerns the community have.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         22  Commissioner. I know that your staff will be able to

         23  be able to take in all of the testimony that's going

         24  to be offered by the scores of speakers who will

         25  come later in the hearing.
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          2                 I will say, again, that they have

          3  been very accessible to me, your staff has, and we

          4  are continuing to meet on this. We have a big

          5  stakeholder meeting tomorrow and we will continue to

          6  try to make progress on this. I know one thing that

          7  I can count on for sure in this process is the

          8  cooperation of you and your staff as the Council

          9  discusses this over the next month or so. But we

         10  are, as I now am going to prelude to, been hearing

         11  some very, very compelling testimony from people in

         12  the community and so I look forward to them getting

         13  their views on the record, and I look forward to

         14  working with the local community as we move forward.

         15  Thank you, again, Amanda and John and Rob for your

         16  partnership so far.

         17                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you. And we

         18  will, as you know, be available to meet at any time

         19  and I'm sorry I won't be here to hear the testimony,

         20  but I will look forward to reading it and certainly

         21  would have been here had I not had to Chair a

         22  meeting myself.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure. You

         24  bet.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I know,

          3  Commissioner, you have to go, but --

          4                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: No, I'm looking

          5  good, I only have a five-minute run.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I have questions

          7  from my colleagues. Council Member Katz.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Thank you very

          9  much, Mr. Chair.

         10                 Commissioner, always a pleasure, and

         11  all of your folks at City Planning, and we are happy

         12  to see that the Mayor has pulled all the stops out

         13  and had all of his City agencies here, you are

         14  always welcome. And we thank you for showing such

         15  great respect to the City Council.

         16                 I have a few very specific questions

         17  and if I can just ask more of a general issue. The

         18  first specific question is, John, there's 800

         19  affordable units in this? Is that what I heard?

         20                 MR. YOUNG: Our projections are 792.

         21  Nearly 800.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay. Just I'm

         23  curious as to the AMI.

         24                 MR. YOUNG: It's using the standard

         25  program, which means the eligibility is capped at 80
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          2  percent of AMI, and for a family of four roughly 56

          3  - 57,000 per year in salary, in income.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: So, it's 80.

          5                 MR. YOUNG: Eighty percent max.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: There is no

          7  discussion of community preference, right?

          8                 MR. YOUNG: There is a 50 percent

          9  community preference, but with the preservation of

         10  existing units, those preferences aren't actually

         11  utilized, it's simply then the existing units in the

         12  community.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay, but it's

         14  been accounted for.

         15                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Also, any of the

         16  developments utilize, which they can in addition to

         17  the inclusionary housing, HPD programs or HDC

         18  programs, there kicks in a requirement for a 50

         19  percent community preference.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: All right. Thank

         21  you.

         22                 And the second issue. John, I don't

         23  really understand what we're getting at. If you can

         24  go to slide seven, the Urban Renewal Plan. If you

         25  can just review for me, you don't have to go to the
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          2  slide, but I'm just referencing for you in your

          3  notes it's slide seven. The Urban Renewal Plan, it

          4  says here that proposed changes will encourage the

          5  redevelopment of these blocks and the tools for

          6  urban renewal will not be needed.

          7                 Could you just go over for us,

          8  understanding that this is a very small portion of

          9  the rezoning and I get that, but I'm curious as to

         10  what you're envisioning, because if we pass the

         11  urban renewal plan here, my understanding is that

         12  you come back here when the RFPs are out and we deal

         13  with those issues then. But if you're saying that

         14  the tools are not required, how do you envision that

         15  going forward?

         16                 MR. YOUNG: Well, specifically the

         17  rezoning is allowing substantial opportunities for

         18  redeveloping these sites. We even have the FUCA for

         19  these very same sites, which will also even give

         20  them further flexibility for the redevelopment, and

         21  there's a lot of market interests already underway

         22  positioning these sites for redevelopment.

         23                 Therefore, with this efforts already

         24  underway, assembling the sites, using particularly

         25  condemnation powers under Urban Renewal may not be
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          2  necessary because we will actually achieve the

          3  objective of redeveloping these sites.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: By the way, if

          5  we're going to continue to use FUCA as a technical

          6  term, it should have been in the rezoning handbook,

          7  right? But we all know, that means Future Actions,

          8  for everyone else that is here.

          9                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I think Chair Katz

         10  might get credit, so we could put that in the

         11  footnote for naming it.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I want a

         13  footnote. So, I just need to clarify because you

         14  have to -- Oh, I'm being asked what the nature of

         15  that FUCA would be then.

         16                 MR. YOUNG: The nature are simply

         17  adjustments to the building height. Currently there

         18  is a 250 foot height limit that's allowed in the

         19  special district. On these sites it would be 290

         20  foot height limit.

         21                 In addition, there is a 20 foot rear

         22  yard required above the ground floor for

         23  non-residential uses, you would be eliminating that

         24  requirement for properties along the railroad

         25  viaduct and in the highest density zone.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I'm thinking.

          3  So, as you move forward, I guess I'm still unclear.

          4  I understand why you would say you don't need the

          5  tools, because if we do our job right here, there is

          6  going to be development and hopefully renewed

          7  interest in this wonderful new area of Jamaica, but

          8  the question I have is technically then, how does

          9  that work? Will you not have to come back to us, or

         10  will you have to then do an amendment, taking this

         11  out of the urban renewal plan, if we don't utilize

         12  the tools?

         13                 MR. YOUNG: No, we would not have to

         14  come back and amend anything. There would be simply

         15  no acquisition or condemnation for certain of these

         16  sites.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: The FUCAs will

         18  cover it. Okay. I guess the one that I think Leroy

         19  alluded to, which he alluded to 32BJ, but I think

         20  the whole issue of the whole union aspect here, if

         21  you're going to do an RFP for the Urban Renewal Plan

         22  and have folks come in, I guess I know it's not part

         23  of this process when we do Land Use, but just so you

         24  know, I'm curious as to whether or not the City is

         25  contemplating putting something like that in their
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          2  RFP application.

          3                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: We're not at that

          4  stage yet, but we hear you, and if per chance it

          5  gets to that stage, we will certainly be having

          6  close discussions with the Council.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I appreciate

          8  that. And that's really all. I'd like to go over the

          9  Urban Renewal issue again with you, John, if we can,

         10  at some later date. But I also want to thank the

         11  City Planning for all of their cooperation in this.

         12  We've met so many times and spoken so many times

         13  about it, and we understand the importance by the

         14  Administration because of everyone that is here, and

         15  we appreciate that and appreciate the respect the

         16  Administration has shown the Council.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Thank you. It's a

         19  pleasure to work with all of you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Very quickly,

         21  Commissioner. I have a question.

         22                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Going back to the

         24  issue that Council Member Katz raised about the

         25  affordable housing component.
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          2                 The AMI is the Metropolitan AMI,

          3  correct?

          4                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: What is the AMI

          6  for the neighborhood?

          7                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: Commissioner Holly

          8  Light is here to, she could actually come and give

          9  you really correct questions, more than I can.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: That will be

         11  fine, because the point I'm trying to get to, and

         12  this is an issue for me that I'm actually working on

         13  legislation, that if we're really doing affordable

         14  housing, it should be based on the AMI for the

         15  neighborhood and not on the metropolitan area

         16  neighborhood median income, because 56,000 may be

         17  well beyond the very people you're trying to reach

         18  in the neighborhood.

         19                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: For a family of

         20  four. This is an issue Citywide but Holly will be

         21  able to address it more expertly than I can. Unless

         22  you have --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, that's what

         24  I was going to ask, are there any other questions

         25  for the Commissioner, because I know you've got to
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          2  go.

          3                 Thank you, Commissioner.

          4                 CHAIRWOMAN BURDEN: I'm okay. I'll

          5  stay until the very last moment.

          6                 This is Commissioner Holly Light.

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: Hi

          8  there. I'm Holly Light. I'm Associate Commissioner

          9  for new construction at HPD.

         10                 The Jamaica AMI is around $40,000 for

         11  a family of four, so as you pointed out, the

         12  Metropolitan AMI, which is set by HUD at a federal

         13  level is higher. Most of our programs, and in our

         14  experience with using inclusionary and other places,

         15  our funding programs do not tend to hit 80 percent

         16  of AMI, they're lower. So, there is much more

         17  funding available for about 60 percent of AMI, which

         18  is 42,000 and majority of the units that we've been

         19  building under inclusionary have hid that, so what

         20  we aim to do, and particularly in a place like

         21  Jamaica where the AMI tends to be lower is to use

         22  our programs to be able to get to lower income

         23  levels than the cap of the program.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         25  Comrie.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry,

          3  just to support Council Member Avella, because that

          4  was one of the things that I was going to ask about

          5  also, in light of the fact that I understand that

          6  AMIs are now being adjusted, Council Member Dickens

          7  just had hers adjusted in the plan, so you're

          8  talking about actually doing an AMI of 40,000 or

          9  42,000 as opposed to the 56,000, since that can be

         10  done you have precedent for it.

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: We

         12  can't adjust what HUD sets to that. That happens at

         13  a federal level.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: But

         16  what we can do on a project-by-project basis is use

         17  our funding programs to hit lower income levels. And

         18  so a certain example in Greenpoint Williamsburg

         19  where there was a rezoning, the community felt very

         20  strongly about getting lower income levels hit and

         21  we used our funding programs on a specific project

         22  to get to about 40 percent and 60 percent of AMI.

         23  So, that's certainly something that we look to do in

         24  neighborhoods to try to use our programs to hit as

         25  close to the existing AMIs in those neighborhoods.
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          2                 Again, our money is set, the AMI

          3  levels are set at the federal level, but on

          4  individual projects we can dig deeper on the

          5  affordability.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you're

          7  starting to do the formula to do the deeper digging

          8  necessary to get to a local number at the 40,000; is

          9  that what you're saying?

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: On the

         11  individual projects, absolutely.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm talking

         13  about this project now. I would like to see the

         14  number closer to 40,000 at the end of the project,

         15  than 56 now, and what is the process to get there at

         16  this point?

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: Again,

         18  on a general level, 80 percent is what 80 percent is

         19  and we can't change what 80 percent is.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: So what

         22  we end up doing is working with the developers on

         23  individual actual inclusionary development projects,

         24  so it will stay at 80 percent in the program itself,

         25  but as development projects come along, and the
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          2  community has to review those and look at those and

          3  we have to improve those, that's when we can provide

          4  funding to get to the lower level. So, actually on a

          5  development-by-development basis. The inclusionary

          6  program as such is set in the zoning text at 80

          7  percent. So, that's a set program.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But if 80

          9  percent of Jamaica is 42,000, why can't that be the

         10  HUD standard? I don't understand?

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT:

         12  Unfortunately, we can't affect what the federal

         13  government sets as the AMI. They choose what county

         14  is within the region that they look at, and there

         15  was recently an adjustment, so it's much more

         16  accurate now than it had been, but we continue to

         17  have to operate on neighborhood-by-neighborhood

         18  basis just by using our programs in creative ways on

         19  individual projects, because we can't change how HUD

         20  sets that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you're

         22  going to give us those specific numbers on the

         23  programs that you're going to develop for this area?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: Right.

         25                 Most of our programs are funding
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          2  programs, as I said, they cap it at 60 percent of

          3  AMI, so our experience has been that the actual

          4  projects hit a much lower income level, that would

          5  be much more aligned with Jamaica's AMI.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          7                 I think we need to get details on

          8  that as quickly as possible, because right now we're

          9  bouncing numbers off the roof here. And how you

         10  actually do that is something I'm very interested

         11  in.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'd actually like

         14  to continue to follow up on that. When you say

         15  projects, you're talking about individual projects

         16  within the Greater Jamaica Plan.

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT:

         18  Exactly. The individual development --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Who makes that

         20  determination? So, in other words, a developer comes

         21  with one project, you may do the 80 percent of AMI,

         22  another project you may try and get it down to the

         23  40 or 60 percent, who makes that determination?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT:

         25  They'll, when they come to us for funding, which
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          2  invariably they will do for the affordable units, we

          3  work with them, and in order to get our funding, we

          4  work with them on how that gets developed, and our

          5  programs, some of the parameters are set by programs

          6  so we have term sheets that dictate that, and the

          7  majority of the available funding, as I said, gets

          8  capped at 60 percent.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: But it sounds

         10  like, and correct me if I'm wrong, it's developer

         11  driven. It's the developer who comes to you and says

         12  I'd like to do more affordable housing; is that

         13  correct?

         14                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: It is

         15  not a mandatory program. It is voluntary. So, the

         16  developer comes to us when they want the additional

         17  FAR and then that's what triggers us working with

         18  them.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I think you know

         20  Council Member Comrie and then probably the other

         21  Council members, would like to see something that

         22  would be a little more up front so that the

         23  developers know we're angling for a lower AMI, if

         24  it's 40 or 60 percent. Again, if you're doing 80

         25  percent of the Metropolitan AMI, the very people
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          2  you're trying to reach are not going to be able to

          3  afford it. So, really it isn't affordable housing.

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: Right.

          5  And again, that's something that on a

          6  development-by-development basis, we would look

          7  forward to working with you on and to the degree

          8  that it's set by our program, that will dictate it,

          9  but then also we want to work with you to continuing

         10  that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Well, I can't

         12  speak for Council members whose district is in this

         13  area, but I certainly have an issue with this. And I

         14  think more needs to be done. Thank you.

         15                 Any other?

         16                 Council Member Katz.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Since I enjoy

         18  beating dead horses, this is -- I mean that

         19  figuratively, for all you animal rights activists

         20  out there, this issue, though, we've done this

         21  before so you need to explain to me, since I had

         22  done the negotiations on a lot of these, what you

         23  mean by you can't do it.

         24                 Now, my understanding, because we've

         25  done it in other projects, is that you can do a
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          2  certain percentage of affordable housing on an AMI,

          3  and then what the City does is it commits a certain

          4  amount of money up front, like we've done in Park

          5  Slope or we've done in other areas, Spanish Harlem

          6  at one point, Third Avenue I think it was, so my

          7  question is this: Is the issue that it's out of

          8  scope to do it for this project, that we wouldn't be

          9  able to do it in this project? Or is the issue, and

         10  I hate to put you on the spot on this, or is the

         11  issue that you don't think that even if we did it as

         12  a FUCA, or something like that, that it can be done?

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: The

         14  thing we cannot change is what HUD sets as 100

         15  percent of AMI --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: I got that. I'm

         17  with you on that. We're all together on that.

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: That we

         19  can't change.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Got it.

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: So the

         22  program in the zoning text is there is a standard

         23  program in Park Slope, in all of the rezonings we've

         24  done, that it's up to 80 percent of AMI. And so that

         25  is the standard program. What we have done in some
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          2  of the past rezonings and which we can do here is on

          3  City-owned sites we have committed to deeper

          4  affordability levels.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Got it. I got

          6  that. It doesn't answer my question. My question is,

          7  are we able to agree, I'm not saying we will, and

          8  I'm not saying it works here, and I'm not saying the

          9  market value will cover the affordable. I'm not

         10  saying that. What I'm asking is, technically, are we

         11  able to do this as a FUCA if we want to? Or it's

         12  just that you're saying it's not capable of being

         13  done on a project-by-project basis, like Councilman

         14  Comrie was saying.

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: What is

         16  the it you're saying exactly, changing what the AMI

         17  would be?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: No, because

         19  that's done by the federal government and we know

         20  that.

         21                 So, the question I have is, like in

         22  other projects, where -- if I can make Councilman

         23  Avella laugh at one of my jokes, I know I'm doing

         24  okay. The question I have is, if we move forward and

         25  do it as a FUCA and the City commits to a certain
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          2  amount of money in order to cover the extra cost

          3  between the federal and this area, is it possible to

          4  do? It's a yes or no question.

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: If

          6  there is extra funding available on specific

          7  projects, yes, we could hit lower AMIs, absolutely.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Like we've done

          9  on other projects?

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LIGHT: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ: Okay.

         12                 Councilman Comrie, I think that's

         13  what you needed to know.

         14                 I appreciate it and I thank you very

         15  much.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Do Council

         17  members have questions for the other agencies?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes, if we

         19  could have the other agencies --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The other

         21  agencies come back.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I want to

         23  thank Commissioner Burden, I know she has to leave.

         24  But I did have questions for Buildings and DOT and

         25  DEP.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And I would just

          3  remind everybody that we do have about 30 to 40

          4  speakers signed up.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We have 30

          6  speakers?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, I'm

          9  going to be real quick.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: I'm just

         11  reminding everybody.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Commissioner

         13  McCarthy, I'm just going to start with you since you

         14  came up first. Thank you for everything that you've

         15  done. I want to compliment you for the

         16  identification of 170 new spaces, and also the

         17  development of the muni meters. And I also want to

         18  remind you, I don't know if you've looked at the

         19  specifics, but around the Jamaica Y at Parsons

         20  Boulevard and 90th Avenue, they're requesting meters

         21  around there.

         22                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         23  We will be putting meters around the Y. We will not

         24  be removing the bus stop, however, that is near the

         25  Y. But we will be --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

          3                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

          4  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the issue

          6  of the 95th Avenue parking and the ability for the

          7  homeowners there to get parking along 95th Avenue,

          8  with the, you mentioned at the Atlantic Avenue

          9  portion from Sutphin to Atlantic; has that been all

         10  worked out yet?

         11                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         12  That is going to be a one-way paring, 94th and 95th

         13  avenues. The current plan does call for removal of

         14  some parking spaces. Some of those homes already

         15  have parking on site, some do not, we will be

         16  continuing to work with both EDC and DOT will

         17  analyze that as we move forward with that project.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And just in

         19  general, you've been attending these multi agencies

         20  task force meetings regarding the Downtown Jamaica

         21  area?

         22                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         23  Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And do you

         25  feel that they are positive and helpful towards the
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          2  process to get stuff taken care of down there?

          3                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

          4  Well, I certainly will commend both the ad hoc

          5  committees and the community boards I've dealt with.

          6  That produced the 170 additional spots and the

          7  change to the parking regulations in the Downtown

          8  area. We were not looking at that until we met with

          9  the community.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. How

         11  about the task force that Deputy Mayor Doctoroff has

         12  put together?

         13                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         14  I think that will really be helpful. It hasn't begun

         15  yet, but I think it will definitely be helpful to

         16  keep the dialogue going between the community and

         17  all the agencies.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         19                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         20  They will make sure that we do what we say we're

         21  going to do.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you've

         23  looked into the permit parking issues in that area?

         24  With all of the court houses down that way? Have you

         25  started working on that?
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          2                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

          3  The changes that are going to produce those 170

          4  spots, some of those authorized parking spots will

          5  be eliminated, and open to the public. So, it will

          6  not eliminate the number of permits in the area. But

          7  it will give the opportunity to the public to use

          8  the same spots that the permit holders now use.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         10                 I want to thank you, Commissioner.

         11  You've really been active and involved and

         12  responsive to the Jamaica area and my entire

         13  community, so I want to thank you.

         14                 Commissioner Lee, good afternoon. I

         15  just wanted to ask, in your statements that you put

         16  together, has this Jamaica Special Unit been

         17  deployed yet? Or is it about to be deployed?

         18                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE: No.

         19  The Jamaica Special Unit will be deployed upon the

         20  actual rezoning is voted upon, and we will be

         21  allocating or requesting additional staffing lines

         22  to do that.

         23                 We have a current staffing level to

         24  do rezoning enforcement as they come along from City

         25  Planning.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And this

          3  staffing has already been preapproved? Or you're

          4  going to have to go to OMB and request it?

          5                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE: It

          6  has to go to OMB.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, it's going

          8  to take awhile to start up?

          9                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE:

         10  Right. We have a program in place where we will

         11  supplement staffing with overtime and redeployment

         12  possibly from other boroughs, as we handle large

         13  rezoning that comes to the Queens Office.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         15                 So, are you starting to look at the

         16  construction checks and zoning checks now as they

         17  come in from the Jamaica area? Or you have to wait

         18  --

         19                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE: Yes,

         20  this Jamaica rezoning is unique in that we are

         21  starting a program of looking at the entire rezoning

         22  area to provide full coverage to make sure that

         23  every single development complies with City Planning

         24  and DEP requirements.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, great.
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          2  Thank you, Mr. Lee. You've also been very active,

          3  and I hope you stay awhile and we don't lose the

          4  commissioners.

          5                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE:

          6  Well, thank you for the support.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: As soon as we

          8  get the zoning underway and get staffed up. I don't

          9  want to lose you. You need to stay in Queens for a

         10  little while.

         11                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE:

         12  Right. I just need to add one point to supplement

         13  Commissioner Burden's statement earlier regarding

         14  the Jamaica Task Force. Upon enactment of this

         15  rezoning initiative, the Queens Borough Commanders,

         16  Borough Commissioners from all the Mayoral agencies

         17  has been meeting. Once the rezoning takes place the

         18  enforcement kicks in. So, we are in monthly

         19  environmental meetings to map out the enforcement

         20  strategies.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, great. I

         22  appreciate that. Thank you, again. I'm just trying

         23  to be brief. I have a lot of other questions but

         24  with 30 speakers, I'm sure I'm missing a lot.

         25                 But just for Deputy Commissioner
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          2  Licata, I have some issues with your numbers that

          3  you programmed in your ten-year capital plan. And

          4  also, on page two, you talked about -- you didn't

          5  say it, but let me deal with this first. You found

          6  some hidden capacity in this system?

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: There was

          8  a sewer cleaning which took place, and as a result

          9  of what they found, which was really very egregious,

         10  it was actually probably remnants from an old

         11  contractor that was leaving sandbags and wooden

         12  planks within the system --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Within the

         14  sewer system.

         15                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LICATA: And as a

         16  result of getting in there, with a very specialized

         17  piece of machinery that has never been used before

         18  for sewer cleaning, it was actually a piece of

         19  machinery that was typically used at a wastewater

         20  treatment plant. So, they gave it a shot and the

         21  results were very, very good. So, if we do ever

         22  experience those kinds of issues again in another

         23  place in the system, we'll go ahead and utilize

         24  these aggressive techniques and maintain sewer

         25  capacity.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I would appeal

          3  to you to run that machine through every major

          4  tunnel, whatever you call it, sewer line in the

          5  system, because as you know, last week we had major

          6  water back-ups all over my district, people are

          7  concerned today about water flooding. People last

          8  week got flooded that never got flooded before. So,

          9  I think that there are probably other, just from

         10  sand infiltration and silt and it's a possibility to

         11  run that machine through every major tunnel or do a

         12  comprehensive check, and today is not the day to

         13  talk about catchbasin maintenance, but I hope that

         14  that program is being looked at strongly because

         15  it's another key issue.

         16                 Just to move quickly, my main issue

         17  is the issue of the amount of money that is

         18  programmed in the capital plan that you slated of

         19  600 million. My understanding was it was closer to a

         20  $3 billion need that needed to do a complete

         21  Ten-Year Capital Plan. So, I don't believe this is

         22  the correct number and I think that that number has

         23  to be relooked at, and also the ability to access

         24  that money, I think we need to get some federal

         25  help, because clearly DEP can't do that big a number
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          2  all by themselves.

          3                 And I appreciate everything that

          4  Commissioner Lloyd has done to look at the sewer

          5  system, but I think the 600 million is only the

          6  program money that they feel they can access, but

          7  not the total amount of money they need to do all

          8  the work. I'd appreciate that distinction being

          9  clear so that we can go to the federal government to

         10  try to get the rest of the money to get that done

         11  within the Ten-Year Plan. So, I'm running quickly

         12  but trying to do everything. Thank you. Thank you

         13  all for being here.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: One quick

         15  question, Commissioner Lee, regarding your

         16  statement. The zoning check you mentioned there will

         17  be 100 percent auditing of professionally certified

         18  applications, what's the difference between that and

         19  just saying within the Jamaica Plan area there will

         20  be no professionally certified applications? Why not

         21  do that instead of 100 percent auditing? If you

         22  don't allow it in the first place, it would have to

         23  go through a Plan Examiner, so why you chose to go

         24  this way?

         25                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE:
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          2  Council Member Avella, I think we need to balance

          3  the need of the industry. There are quite a number

          4  of very competent architects and engineer filings

          5  under Professional Certified Program that was

          6  enacted over ten years ago by Buildings Department.

          7                 We have no problem with the majority

          8  of them coming in under the professional certified

          9  programs, but it will take -- if we take away that

         10  particular program, it will require a tremendous

         11  staffing level at the Buildings Department to review

         12  each individual plan under a regular plan

         13  examination initiative. So, it is a balance, and so

         14  far we've been able to screen out all the, most and

         15  all of the problematic applications that have come

         16  in.

         17                 For the Jamaica Plan, we are going

         18  one step further, in addition to our 100 percent

         19  screening, which is happening in all the other

         20  Boroughs currently this last year, we will also go

         21  back to look at any changes that the architectural

         22  engineer may have made since the time of the initial

         23  approval, and the time of construction and

         24  foundation installation.

         25                 Just to make sure and to comfort the
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          2  members of the public that the Building Department

          3  is looking at this very seriously and we're working

          4  with the Mayor's Office on our step up enforcement

          5  initiative that's forthcoming.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Not to belabor

          7  the point and maybe we should have a conversation on

          8  another day, but basically what you're saying to me

          9  is an audit is less of a review than a plan examiner

         10  doing the examination in the first place. Because

         11  otherwise it would be six and one half a dozen of

         12  the other.

         13                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER LEE:

         14  Well, the initial screening for all the applications

         15  that comes into the office for the entire borough

         16  will be looked at, all the major zoning and building

         17  code issues, floor area, yards, heights, so on and

         18  so forth. Once the initial screening is completed,

         19  we will be able to turn around from the time of

         20  filing to the time of permit within ten working days

         21  and we have been very successful in doing that, and

         22  it will not change for the Jamaica rezoning area. We

         23  will still maintain that turn-around time.

         24                 However, as a matter of customer care

         25  or quality assurance, we will go back when the
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          2  construction starts up to look at any problems or

          3  any changes that may affect the zoning or anything

          4  that has changed since the initial filing or the

          5  initial concept of the application.

          6                 So, we will look at a more detailed

          7  in any change order at that particular stage. Which,

          8  by the way, will not be captured at the initial plan

          9  examination before the permits are issued, because

         10  they're allowed to make changes as they go along.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Any other

         12  questions for this panel?

         13                 Council Member Gennaro.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         15  Mr. Chairman. I'll just be very quick. I have some

         16  things to ask, but I'll just reduce it to one

         17  question because there's so many speakers that have

         18  to follow. This will be two questions regarding

         19  parking.

         20                 We talk about things like upzonings

         21  along Hillside Avenue in the Greater Jamaica area,

         22  and as we talk about things like congestion pricing

         23  and what that's going to mean in terms of cars

         24  coming to the end of the line at the F Train, I

         25  continue to sort of harp without much success on the
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          2  amount of parking placards that are issued to

          3  government employees around the greater Downtown

          4  Jamaica area, people who are just using these

          5  placards for commutation purposes. They work an

          6  office job, they get there at 9:00, they take up a

          7  metered spot. They're there for eight hours, and

          8  then it's outrageous, and to what extent does your

          9  issue placards? I know there are some that you do,

         10  some are issued by the State presumably or whatever,

         11  but I think they all ultimately have to funnel

         12  through you if they're on City streets, and what is

         13  your agency doing to stop the proliferation of these

         14  commuter parking placards that are being misused,

         15  and to what extent are we looking back at those that

         16  have been given out and taking those away?

         17                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         18  This is a very large concern of the Administration.

         19  We recognize that many of the placards are used

         20  legally and illegally.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Well, again,

         22  my distinction is not illegal or legal. I mean,

         23  certainly illegal is one thing. Anyone who is

         24  photocopying this thing and making a false one or

         25  whatever, that of course is not questioned. But my
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          2  problem is, someone who is using it legally, but if

          3  they're only commuting back and forth to work, that

          4  is an abuse notwithstanding the fact that it is

          5  illegal use. The person has the placard, they can

          6  put it in the window, nothing, you know, illegal,

          7  they were given the placard but they don't work the

          8  kind of job where they're there for two hours and

          9  then they've got to go out and they work outside the

         10  office, sort of like on the road, you know, in the

         11  field. You know, that's what these placards are for.

         12  Not for, you know, commuters. So, that's really what

         13  I want to focus on, those that have them legally but

         14  they really shouldn't have them because it's really

         15  an abuse and an insult to Downtown Jamaica whose

         16  private sector workers have to take mass transit or

         17  figure out some way to get to work without taking up

         18  needed space the whole day for free.

         19                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         20  Maybe I termed that wrong. I meant abusive use. I'm

         21  terming that as illegal use.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay.

         23                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

         24  But you're right, it's a legal permit, and being

         25  abused.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

          3                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

          4  Currently the City is doing a very extensive study

          5  in Downtown Manhattan. The results of those studied

          6  we think will have implications on a Citywide basis,

          7  including in the Downtown Jamaica Avenue.

          8                 We hope to have that study completed

          9  pretty soon.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I've got

         11  something for you. How about this for a

         12  recommendation: every single permit, every agency

         13  that gets these, they should be called upon to

         14  justify each and every one of these things, so if

         15  Harry has one, if Sally has one, if Joe has one, if

         16  Ellie Mae has one, it's like everybody has got to --

         17  everybody has got to justify every single permit.

         18  So, if you want Joe to continue to have his placard,

         19  you have to justify like why Joe needs it. And I

         20  don't see why every agency that gets these shouldn't

         21  be called upon right now to justify each and every

         22  placard. That seems easy to do. Just call upon them

         23  to justify because they will have to make a

         24  justification and say, we, DOT, believe that you

         25  should only have these placards if you are in the
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          2  following situations - you're in the office, you

          3  know, two hours a day or less, and you spend most of

          4  your time in the field, whatever the qualifications

          5  are, criteria are. And the agency should have to

          6  certify that each of these individuals meet that

          7  criteria. If they don't, they get their permits

          8  yanked.

          9                 I don't think we have to study it, I

         10  think you should come up with what are the criteria

         11  by which people should have, according to DOT, and

         12  they should be able to self-certify or whatever,

         13  like each agency, should be able to make an

         14  attestation, make a certification that all of their

         15  permits are within those guidelines. If not, they

         16  lose them.

         17                 I mean, look at the money we're

         18  spending on parking. Look what we're talking about,

         19  you know, PlaNYC and bringing all kinds of people to

         20  the area and we have government people taking up

         21  hundreds and hundreds and thousands of spaces,

         22  meanwhile Downtown Jamaica is choked off. It's not

         23  good. And, so, I don't think we should wait for the

         24  study, I think we should do it now.

         25                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:
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          2  Okay. Your comments are well received. I will take

          3  them back. I can't promise you today that this

          4  change will change right away.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure.

          6                 QUEENS BOROUGH COMMISSIONER McCARTHY:

          7  Or will happen right away, but I will take these

          8  comments back.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member,

         11  are you finished?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes. Thank

         13  you, Mr. Chairman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: And by the way,

         15  Council member, I'm actually working on legislation

         16  in that regard, I would love to have you sign on as

         17  a co-sponsor.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Here I go.

         19  Where do I sign? Where do I sign?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: No other

         21  questions for our great agency reps? Thank you. We

         22  will now move to the public hearing on this and I

         23  appreciate the cooperation of everybody that's been

         24  here since 9:30 this morning.

         25                 I hope some of you took the
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          2  opportunity to go out and have lunch. We have not

          3  left.

          4                 What I will do is call panels up,

          5  those in favor, those opposed, so we'll have

          6  alternating panels. I will ask that you stay within

          7  the three-minute time period. I don't usually cut

          8  somebody off if they go three minutes and ten

          9  seconds, but please try and be concise. If somebody

         10  before you has said exactly what you're going to

         11  say, please don't repeat the same thing.

         12                 And if you don't have to speak,

         13  especially those people who are in favor, I mean

         14  it's pretty obvious what your testimony is going to

         15  be if you're in favor. If you could waive your

         16  testimony, or just say, rise in your seat, yes I'm

         17  in favor and you'll be recorded as such.

         18                 First panel will be Dr. Gloria Black

         19  from Community Board 12, and Irving Poy, on behalf

         20  of Queens Borough President Helen Marshall.

         21                 DR. BLACK: Okay, Councilman Avella,

         22  my Councilman specifically, Councilman Comrie, and

         23  Councilman Gennaro, and other members of this

         24  distinguished Council, I thank you for the

         25  opportunity to be able to present my views on the
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          2  new zoning, not without trepidation for the past two

          3  and a half years, but nevertheless, we have gotten

          4  through with it.

          5                 It's very difficult for me to present

          6  something in a manner which we refer to as

          7  expeditiously as possible, because we speak of

          8  rezoning in the Southeast Queens Jamaica area,

          9  that's like the umbilical cord between child and

         10  mother. You're talking about my very existence. So,

         11  just bear with me and I'll try not to repeat the

         12  same things as some others.

         13                 There are three major developments

         14  which I heard this morning, with which I have

         15  difficulty also and would like further clarity, and

         16  that would be, I have it all mixed up here, the

         17  procedures for the RFP applications regarding the

         18  housing situations that will inevitably be brought

         19  up in my neighborhood.

         20                 Secondly, the concept that you're

         21  using, the FUCA plan, don't quite understand that.

         22                 The third is that of the AMI. There

         23  seems to be confusion, very much so, and that needs

         24  to be interpreted to us so we will be able to

         25  interpret it to our residents.
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          2                 Now, aside from that, let me clarify

          3  my position as Chairperson of Community Board 12. As

          4  an educator, after having experienced 41 years, when

          5  you have a group of individuals in particular in my

          6  case students, who would not likely be able to

          7  understand instructions, it was through my efforts

          8  along with the Executive Board to say, hey, perhaps

          9  we should put in place an ad hoc committee made up

         10  of members of the Board and a few members from the

         11  community. Was done, and I do commend Jeannie and my

         12  Co-Chairperson, Carlos Sandlefoot, who is

         13  Chairperson of Land Use, to pull this together, and

         14  of course, were able to gather information to

         15  transfer to the community where they understood a

         16  bit better.

         17                 I also commend my Councilman Comrie

         18  for having provided a fund to further explore just

         19  what was going off and that was already mentioned.

         20                 Now, after having lived as a resident

         21  and a homeownwer in St. Albans for 45 years in the

         22  area, I have seen a beautiful community, a

         23  residential site and blooming economical corridors

         24  deteriorate in infrastructure, economic development,

         25  health, sanitation conditions, and I could go on and
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          2  on and on. And I don't want to be paranoid to ask

          3  questions why, but you probably know where I'm

          4  coming from without my saying it at all. It has

          5  taken about 37 years for anything to have been done

          6  with Southeast Queens just like that of your

          7  colleagues. Why was it not on the map to be kept up

          8  like other CUNY institutions? But we're well on the

          9  way.

         10                 We, the residents in Southeast

         11  Queens, have not sat by and watched negativism

         12  happen with our concern. But it has taken 30 plus

         13  years, and I call ourselves, sleeping giants, to

         14  wake up. But I can assure you, and the public

         15  officials, that we are holding you accountable for

         16  taking care of the needs in that community.

         17                 We currently understand

         18  intellectually what has happened and we are truly

         19  energized to get the work done as it is. And we

         20  recommend City Planning, and I certainly must

         21  recommend Commissioner Burden, Rob -- they're gone?

         22  Are they here? Yes, I'll get them. Bob Holbrook,

         23  Debbie Carney and John Young for having worked with

         24  us night and day to understand the concept of the

         25  rezoning, as comprehensive as it may have been.

                                                            152

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Shifting gears, because other things

          3  have been said. I have reviewed the City Planning

          4  Commissioners, with modification, that's the kind of

          5  work you guys have done with us, summary which

          6  involves Hillside Avenue. I do have a problem,

          7  because it seems that much of the work of the

          8  modification was geared to Hillside Avenue going

          9  eastward.

         10                 What about Hillside, the midway,

         11  Hillside Avenue going westward? Some work should

         12  have been done on that and we have nothing but

         13  automechanics, and of course, it's a die-hard on the

         14  eye.

         15                 Okay, I think John Young laid out all

         16  of the changes in that modification, and these

         17  changes, I would go along with, with exception of

         18  the Hillside Avenue going westward, something should

         19  be taken care of that.

         20                 The other of which is problematic to

         21  me would be largely 95th Avenue, which borders, 95th

         22  Avenue where Sutphin Boulevard and 145th Street, I

         23  think it is, that I understand is a part of the

         24  Urban Renewal Initiative Plan, or whatever the case

         25  may be. But nevertheless, within that structure, as
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          2  was just stated by the Department of Transportation,

          3  Mrs. McCarthy it is, that's her name, that there is

          4  under review a recommendation for one-way pairing.

          5  Now, Board 12 was in opposition to this area, and I

          6  think another look should be taken in that area.

          7                 Okay, fast as I may be, the two other

          8  text changes, which John mentioned, have been

          9  related to the environmental conditions, severe, in

         10  Southeast Queens. Safety valves have been

         11  incorporated in the draft, recommended by City

         12  Planning, in the EIS report to control air

         13  emissions. Brownfields are under study, which I

         14  understand are financed by the agencies of New York

         15  State.

         16                 Residents in my area commend the

         17  agencies for its fine work with reservations.

         18  However, we want a more profound and effective plan

         19  included in all of these projects, and you have the

         20  recommendation because we passed them on to you.

         21  Continued deleterious waste stations, they're

         22  killing us over there, and I think I'm going to

         23  mispronounce it, as I always do, what is the word?

         24                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER FROM AUDIENCE:

         25  Putrescibles.
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          2                 DR. BLACK: Putrescibles. They must

          3  be, what I recommend, they must be under

          4  restrictions and law enforcement must be maintained.

          5  That does not happen. And by the same token, I heard

          6  Mr. Lee mention about the certification, yes you may

          7  think that you have it under control, but all you

          8  need to do -- is he gone? I think that was him. And

          9  the Department of Buildings, come over into

         10  Southeast Queens, Jamaica, and you will see that the

         11  certification, in terms of a negative sense is still

         12  very much alive. And even if you have things in

         13  place, there is a challenge for you to come out when

         14  there is need to see what is going on in that

         15  community.

         16                 Now, I want to commend also -- may

         17  sound strange, but aware -- Greater Jamaica, for

         18  have -- I see blinking and what have you. I'm an old

         19  psychologist, so that you're giving me a body

         20  language here -- for having taken the ship to give

         21  us the steam in that area, to get something going in

         22  terms of economic development. But economic

         23  development is not enough. This is our home.

         24  Residents' health and all the other goodies must be

         25  put in place as a whole for us to continue.
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          2                 Now, the Board is putting in place an

          3  oversight Committee but it will be internal, all

          4  right? And a monitoring group for the following

          5  purposes, congested and inadequate public parking,

          6  which you talked about. Still overcrowded housing,

          7  which would be one- and two-family houses being

          8  converted into four family, five family, creeping

          9  high density in our areas. Employment strictly for

         10  the indigenous residents, and I said "indigenous"

         11  residents of Southeast. We're getting none of the

         12  work. None whatsoever. And I preach it every day. If

         13  you're going to do this kind of construction in

         14  Southeast Queens on our properties, in our land,

         15  surely you're going to give us the opportunity to

         16  work like any other decent employee and that has to

         17  be worked out with the unions. We're blocked with

         18  the unions. I've spoken with the Borough President.

         19  She was going to look into it, but you guys and gals

         20  must look into it first.

         21                 And, of course, Atlantic Avenue

         22  extension, off Sutphin Boulevard is propounding,

         23  unless it's been changed, seven properties possibly

         24  through eminent domain. This is what I'm hearing.

         25  All right. But what we maintain, we, the residents,
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          2  and we state that the owners of that property must

          3  be given to what I understand is what you call it, a

          4  right to refuse it, of course most of them did,

          5  right to refusal, and they must be provided the

          6  ancillary amenities if my land is taken. They should

          7  be given the opportunity to be able to come back

          8  into that retail area site somehow, and it can be

          9  done.

         10                 And this is my challenge to you as

         11  Councilmen, in conclusion, with modifications, and

         12  some changes, I see, John, I'll always say this, a

         13  renaissance to southeast Queens, and I welcome it as

         14  a resident after 46 years, but we must work

         15  together, we the stakeholders and you the lawmakers,

         16  work together to see that this gets done, or again

         17  the quality of life, the restoration of the quality

         18  of life to Southeast Queens, both economically and

         19  otherwise.

         20                 Any questions? And by the way, I'm

         21  Chair of the Board, if I didn't introduce myself.

         22  Thank you very much. Many of you have put into this

         23  work must be begun, go ahead, but we need all faces,

         24  all strengths, all pigmentations, and all brains to

         25  get this job done. Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. POY: Good afternoon, Chairperson

          3  Avella and Council members. I am here on behalf of

          4  Queens Borough President Helen Marshall. My name is

          5  Irving Poy, I am Director of Planning for the Queens

          6  Borough President.

          7                 Jamaica has been the focus of

          8  government action on various levels for over three

          9  decades. Some of these include removal of Jamaica

         10  Avenue L, the Social Security Administration

         11  Building, York College, the Courts, the AirTrain

         12  Station and now the Jamaica Development Plan.

         13                 As outlined by City Council Chair

         14  Burden, the Jamaica Plan builds upon these past

         15  initiatives and will provide opportunities for new

         16  affordable and middle-income housing, jobs and

         17  services. As of today, pursuant to the existing map

         18  zoning districts, little affordable housing has been

         19  constructed. The proposed inclusionary housing

         20  provision in this plan will encourage mixed income

         21  housing development, in addition to new market rate

         22  housing.

         23                 The plan also creates and strengthens

         24  the Downtown Business Districts that will allow

         25  increased opportunities for higher paying jobs and
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          2  careers and the transportation hospitality

          3  commercial and retail sectors. DCP has also

          4  committed to a follow-up action to make adjustments

          5  in the commercial areas to accommodate further

          6  development.

          7                 The plan also maintains and creates

          8  new buffers between the primarily residential areas

          9  and commercial and industrial areas. Much credit

         10  should be given to the Department of City Planning

         11  for leading this effort. For over two years they

         12  have hosted or attended numerous meetings

         13  week-after-week to present and listen to the issues

         14  and have made changes and adjustments along the way.

         15  Along with City Planning, many other City agencies

         16  have also been there to answer questions and provide

         17  information as required.

         18                 Much credit should also go to the

         19  Council members, civic groups and community board

         20  members who have given this plan so much attention.

         21  Through this process many existing and potential

         22  issues have been raised that must be addressed as

         23  soon as possible. Last week the Mayor's Office

         24  committed to an infrastructure task force with the

         25  Borough President is Co-chair to address many of
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          2  these issues. The infrastructure task force will

          3  oversee planning and implementation of

          4  infrastructure projects in support of the Jamaica

          5  plan. The task force will meet regularly and often

          6  with all of the affected elected officials,

          7  community boards and agencies to make sure that

          8  existing projects go forward as soon as possible,

          9  that capital commitments are made for future

         10  projects, and that these projects are coordinated as

         11  best as possible to minimize disruption during

         12  construction.

         13                 The Borough President strongly urges

         14  the Council to consider the ongoing commitment to

         15  Jamaica and approve the future success of Jamaica as

         16  outlined in the Jamaica Plan. The Borough President

         17  looks forward to working closely with everyone to

         18  make this happen.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         20  Gennaro.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. Mr. Poy, it's a pleasure to see you

         23  today.

         24                 MR. POY: Yes, thank you.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I was just
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          2  curious about the Borough President's position

          3  regarding the Hillside corridor. She was very

          4  outspoken early in the process with regard to her

          5  views on particularly the R7X component of the

          6  proposal, and I take by your statement today that

          7  she is supportive of the Jamaica Zoning overall Plan

          8  as passed by the Commission on July 11th, would that

          9  be a fair way to interpret the Borough President's

         10  position?

         11                 MR. POY: Yes, the Borough President

         12  is satisfied that the proposed amendments from

         13  Midland Avenue to 191st Street is satisfactory and

         14  the R7X remaining west of that is sufficient.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay. I just

         16  wanted to clarify that for the record. Thank you.

         17                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you.

         19                 Next panel will be a panel in

         20  opposition. Sam Henderson, Ben Marion and William

         21  Maniqoult. Did I pronounce it right?

         22                 MR. MARION: Good afternoon, Mr.

         23  Chairman, and members of the Committee. My name is

         24  -- can you hear me?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Come a little

                                                            161

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  closer to the mic.

          3                 MR. MARION: Okay. My name is Benjamin

          4  Marion. I am a resident of St. Albans, Queens. I

          5  moved here 43 years ago, and it was a dream come

          6  true. When I was a young lad, we visited friends who

          7  lived in Jamaica, and every time we came it was a

          8  thrilling experience. I was born and raised in

          9  Harlem. The nearest I came to grass and trees was

         10  when I went to the Park. I was raised in tenements

         11  and apartments. I was fascinated by the open space

         12  and trees, the lawns and the uncluttered ambience of

         13  the area. I could see the sky uncluttered with tall

         14  apartment buildings. I could breathe fresh air. The

         15  community, including the Downtown area, had a

         16  suburban atmosphere. The neighborhood was quiet, and

         17  there was no crowding.

         18                 We now understand that things are

         19  going to change. We understand that like time

         20  progress marches on and we must reluctantly accept

         21  these changes.

         22                 I am a former member of the Community

         23  Board 12 Ad Hoc Committee on Zoning. We spent 17

         24  months of intense and difficult study of zoning and

         25  the Jamaica Plan, tutored by the Queens Department
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          2  of City Planning, Rob Holbrook, Debbie Carney, and I

          3  guess with the permission of John Young.

          4                 We are not happy with the Jamaica

          5  Plan in its present form in relation to the zoning

          6  of Hillside and Liberty Avenues, our vital corridors

          7  of Merrick, Sutphin and Parsons Boulevards, the

          8  waste transfer stations, the M1, M2 zones and the

          9  general infrastructure.

         10                 After consulting with various

         11  community groups and getting their input, we sent

         12  questions to all the appropriate agencies that were

         13  going to be involved in this project, and up to this

         14  day we did not get any satisfactory response.

         15                 We are taxpayers, voters and

         16  homeowners, and we demand the same consideration

         17  that communities to the north and west of us

         18  receive, and we would like to know why we're treated

         19  differently?

         20                 We don't want to feel that we have

         21  Dangerfield Disease. Does everybody know what

         22  Dangerfield Disease is? Dangerfield Disease is "We

         23  don't get no respect." That's Rodney Dangerfield. We

         24  don't want to feel that we don't get no respect. We

         25  want to be respected like everybody else in every
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          2  other community.

          3                 In conclusion, there is two things I

          4  would like you to keep in mind when you deliberate.

          5  I looked up there and I see "A government of the

          6  people, by the people and for the people," by

          7  Abraham Lincoln.

          8                 And I'd also like to remind you, as

          9  you make your deliberations, that in a democracy the

         10  people are always right. This might be inconvenient

         11  to political representatives but it is a basic tenet

         12  of democracies.

         13                 The second thing I would like you to

         14  remember is, what you do today matters forever. What

         15  you do today matters forever. The decisions you make

         16  today will have lasting effects for years to come.

         17  Whatever mistakes that are made today, our children

         18  will have to grapple with in the future.

         19                 Thank you very much.

         20                 MR. HENDERSON: Good afternoon, Mr.

         21  Chair, and associate Council members. My name is

         22  Samuel Henderson, Sr. There's a junior and a

         23  junior/junior. I've spent 40 years in Queens, mostly

         24  in the corporate structure. I'm going to keep my

         25  remarks to neighborhoods, and I have seven points
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          2  I'd like to share with you.

          3                 The family neighborhoods in the

          4  Jamaica area is changing. The downzoning proposed by

          5  Queens Department of City Planning does not go far

          6  enough. The infrastructure is not adequate to handle

          7  our current population, and the agencies have

          8  admitted to the CB 12 Ad Hoc Committee that they're

          9  not prepared for the proposed growth.

         10                 Former Council Member Archie Spigner

         11  had summed it up very well: "Our people want and are

         12  entitled to air, light, and a place in front of

         13  their home to park their cars." This is why we moved

         14  to Queens in the first place, and this is what we

         15  want to preserve.

         16                 John Young, Queens Director of the

         17  Department of City Planning has promised to do a

         18  follow-up so as to fine-tune the contextual zones

         19  both in and out of scope of our neighborhoods, but

         20  his promise has not been put in writing.

         21                 We're asking the City Council to

         22  direct the Queens Department of City Planning to

         23  undertake a fast follow-up on this matter. For

         24  details I direct you to suggestions made by the CB

         25  12 Ad Hoc Committee alternative plan of which I am a

                                                            165

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  member. And I'm from South Jamaica. Most people say

          3  Southeast Queens, but Archer Avenue and Sutphin

          4  Boulevard is my home. And I would appreciate that

          5  you would hear me because the archives will speak

          6  loudly later when the deal is done.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 MR. MANIQOULT: My name is William

          9  Maniquolt, and my family moved to Jamaica in 1960.

         10  My parents were on the Executive Board of 103rd

         11  Precinct Council, as well as other organizations.

         12                 I say that only to let you know that

         13  in many ways I feel I have a finger on the pulse of

         14  the community. I've been doing a lot of things for

         15  the last six years, awards or the graduation speech

         16  at PS 160.

         17                 Now, I want to talk to you about two

         18  things: PD rating and elephants.  Now, you might say

         19  what does that have to do with this? PD rating is

         20  your promise and your delivery. If you have a poor

         21  delivery rate on your promises, there's trouble. You

         22  get everything from years ago they said you're going

         23  to do the Lotto, so you'll have plenty of money for

         24  education. It went down the drain. They just cut

         25  back on the regular appropriations.
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          2                 Now, tolls on bridges. Verrazano

          3  Bridge, we're just going to have the toll to pay off

          4  the bridge. The bridge is paid off and they still

          5  keep the tolls and raise the tolls.

          6                 So, the PD rating is low. My mother,

          7  she'll be 94 next month. She's tired of hearing

          8  promises and very little delivery. I would hope that

          9  the Council would vote this program down because

         10  there are many things that really need to be

         11  reviewed and put into proper perspective. Now,

         12  Councilman Gennaro said defer on some things. But

         13  when you defer, all you say, I approve with

         14  reservations, they're here to approve and the

         15  reservations they forget about. So, it needs to go

         16  back to the people and look and review the

         17  situation. Because it's an ambitious plan, yes. But

         18  it is misguided in many ways. The community has

         19  spoken out about various aspects of it. But what

         20  happens, there is community interest, and over here

         21  is special interest. Now, the special interest got

         22  deep pockets. So, what happens is the special

         23  interest gets a higher priority than a community

         24  interest, and it is time that we get some backbone

         25  and do what's necessary to be right.
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          2                 Now, the elephant. How many people

          3  here have seen a live elephant? Raise your hands.

          4  Now, either people are asleep or they're lying. Now,

          5  the thing is, many years ago parents took their

          6  children over to Africa, they went on a Safari, they

          7  saw the elephant. Two types of people who will say

          8  what's on their minds, young children because they

          9  don't know any better, old people because they

         10  figure they lived long enough to tell you their

         11  opinions. So, the little boy taps the guy on the

         12  leg. He says, "How do you eat an elephant?" The guy

         13  says, "That's a good question. Let me see how I can

         14  tell you in a way that you can understand." He says,

         15  "We eat the elephant the same way as the brothers

         16  eat fried chicken in Harlem - a bite at a time."

         17                 See, in this Jamaica Plan, it was

         18  done more than 45 years ago, this rezoning. The next

         19  rezoning will be done after most of us have long

         20  gone on. It is a big thing, and what should be done

         21  is taking a bite at a time. But what we're asked to

         22  do is take a big hunk and eat it all at once, and

         23  what happens when you eat too much, you get either

         24  indigestion or constipation. So, the thing is, what

         25  we really need to do is look at things, because what
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          2  we do today will affect the community many years to

          3  come. Thank you very much.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Gentlemen, I have

          5  to appreciate your testimony. It's some of the best

          6  testimony I've heard since I've been the Chairman of

          7  this Committee.

          8                 Next panel which will be a panel in

          9  favor, we have a representative from the Regional

         10  Plan Association; Carlisle Towery from the Greater

         11  Jamaica Development Corporation, and I see two

         12  people have signed up from the Real Estate Board of

         13  New York, can just one person be the one to testify?

         14                 MR. RONDEROS: Chair Avella, Chair

         15  Katz, members of the Council Zoning and Franchise

         16  Committee, my name is Nicholas Ronderos, and I'm

         17  here to testify on behalf of Regional Plan

         18  Association.

         19                 Regional Plan Association wants to

         20  give its unconditional support to the Jamaica Plan

         21  and recommends its approval with no modification.

         22  This proposal strikes the right balance by:

         23                 First, encouraging higher density

         24  commercial development in Downtown Jamaica.

         25                 Second, expanding opportunities for
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          2  residential and mixed-use development near transit

          3  and along major thoroughfares, with a mix of scales

          4  appropriate to the surrounding building patterns.

          5                 Third, shifting development away from

          6  and preserving lower density communities.

          7                 And fourth, by reinforcing certain

          8  industrial areas for growth within the industrial

          9  core.

         10                 These four goals changed the outdated

         11  and unduly restricted zoning and unlocked the

         12  potential of the area for 21st Century Jamaica. The

         13  contextual and detail zoning districts proposed in

         14  this action reflect a site-specific approach to

         15  zoning that contrasts to the blanket zoning that

         16  currently regulates most of the area.

         17                 This micro zoning approach ensures

         18  that vibrant land users are strengthened by defining

         19  its boundaries more clearly, and that currently

         20  intrusive and potential non-conforming uses are

         21  aligned to a growth-oriented and balanced Land Use

         22  policy.

         23                 Regional Plan Association believes

         24  that the Jamaica Plan will enable Jamaica to fulfill

         25  its potential as a leading business and residential
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          2  district in the City. Thank you.

          3                 MS. VAN GUILDER: Good afternoon. I'm

          4  Carol Van Guilder, from the Real Estate Board of New

          5  York. We're a trade association of 12,000

          6  developers, brokers and other real estate

          7  professionals, active in all five boroughs of the

          8  City. We support the plan. I've handed in a written

          9  statement, so I'll just make a few points.

         10                 This rezoning does a lot of things

         11  right. It protects the low-rise neighborhoods in

         12  Jamaica, better than the existing zoning does. It

         13  facilitates the revitalization of Downtown Jamaica

         14  much better than the existing zoning does. It

         15  reinforces all of the investments that have been

         16  made already in the AirTrain. It concentrates the

         17  density on the wide streets and near the transit

         18  hubs and the subways, the planning principal that's

         19  been used all over the City, and basically we

         20  support this because it creates housing. It's

         21  projected 3,400 units would be created here. In a

         22  large area like this with the transit access, we

         23  really feel any lower than that would be inadequate

         24  and would not meet the needs of the Borough of

         25  Queens, which is growing and projected to grow much
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          2  more in the coming decade.

          3                 And furthermore, we also support the

          4  follow-up amendment for additional height and rear

          5  yard waivers around the AirTrain sites. We urge you

          6  to move that amendment quickly so that there is no

          7  uncertainty about when the development can begin,

          8  and we just encourage you to vote for this with the

          9  existing densities.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 MR. TOWERY: Mr. Chairman, thank you.

         12  I really appreciate the opportunity to support and

         13  applaud a huge step forward for Jamaica, and to

         14  commend the leadership and the special attention of

         15  the Mayor's Office and the Department of City

         16  Planning and the constructive involvement of

         17  Community Board 12. And it's nice now to have your,

         18  the City Council's involvement, which I think you

         19  have a viewpoint that we all respect, and elected

         20  officials in Jamaica have done a superb job over the

         21  years, and the City has administered programs,

         22  particularly urban renewal over the 30 years in a

         23  very sensitive superb way, and this plan to us, and

         24  I'm just ad-libbing, I have my statement, but this

         25  plan to us is balanced. It can be improved, of
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          2  course. It benefits from City initiatives that are

          3  proven in Jamaica. It also benefits from your

          4  interest in all of the things we've heard today, the

          5  task force, and others, about implementation. There

          6  are ideas and there are realities and the ideas

          7  certainly are good and the realities is what we hear

          8  from the community.

          9                 I think Jamaica is a pro growth

         10  community, but understandably interested and

         11  concerned about implementation and what really goes

         12  on from here.

         13                 But our work is focused on a third of

         14  this downtown area, the area bounded by Hillside

         15  Avenue, 160th, 170th Street, Liberty and the Van

         16  Wyck roughly, and that is our turf, if you will.

         17  We've been working for, this is our 40th year. We've

         18  been working hard on that and it has a lot of public

         19  investments in there, and this zoning is a step, a

         20  huge step toward attracting the private investment,

         21  enabling development investment from the private

         22  sector, that really can realize the potentials that

         23  Jamaica has, and it has many potentials.

         24                 I want to just leave you with three

         25  specifics that we want to articulate here. One is,
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          2  the FUCA that you heard, and we're very pleased to

          3  have the City Planning Department proceed with that

          4  because those two changes are necessary to implement

          5  development around the air train. Another is a bit

          6  of a hindsight, and when John Young shoots me in the

          7  back with that arrow over there, but in recent days

          8  we've been hearing about possibility, it's not time

          9  sensitive and it's not a major matter, but we have

         10  looked delightedly at the zoning for the Hillside --

         11  I'm sorry, for the Sutphin Boulevard North across

         12  from the court houses and just think that we may

         13  have missed an opportunity there. I'm going to raise

         14  it because some property owners and others have

         15  brought it to my attention, and I've spoken to

         16  Councilman Gennaro and Councilman Comrie about it.

         17                 And the third thing is, the Section

         18  of Hillside Avenue in our downtown east of 170th

         19  seems to us, and is clear to me that it needs

         20  attention, it needs special attention and

         21  investment, and it does need to be improved. We're

         22  not taking positions on other parts of Hillside or

         23  other corridors that are outside of our area, but we

         24  really think that part of Hillside Avenue warrants

         25  attention. We understand the changes when the buses
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          2  that used to serve those areas then moved down and

          3  served the Archer Avenue Subway and there are some

          4  things that really need to be done there. So, I'll

          5  leave you with those three things as well as

          6  seconding Assemblyman Scarboro's letter to the Mayor

          7  about the Task Force that I hear very favorable

          8  things about, establishing to go concurrent and

          9  coterminous with the rezoning. Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel is Pat

         11  Dolan, Queens Civic Congress, Kevin Forrestal,

         12  Hillcrest Estates Civic Association, Seymour

         13  Schwartz from the Briarwood Community Association.

         14                 MS. DOLAN: Good afternoon. I am

         15  Patricia Dolan. I'm the Executive Vice President of

         16  the Queens Civic Congress, a coalition of more than

         17  110 community tenant co-op and condo owner and

         18  homeowner organizations, representing every corner

         19  of Queens, including Southeast neighbors, Hollis

         20  Park Garden Civic, United Neighbors, Cambria Heights

         21  Civic and other Southeast Queens neighborhood-based

         22  civic organizations.

         23                 The Queens Civic Organization

         24  supports the proposal to make a center. This part of

         25  the Jamaica Plan will create a greater concentration
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          2  of commercial and residential development in the

          3  special district gateway area and provide long

          4  overdue opportunities for residential development

          5  and business growth.

          6                 However, and it's a big however, when

          7  the plan turns to the low-density, low-rise

          8  neighborhoods adjacent to Jamaica Center, it

          9  reinforces the kind of heedless, unplanned

         10  overdevelopment that burden these communities in

         11  recent decades.

         12                 The Jamaica Plan for the smaller

         13  outlying residential neighborhoods of Jamaica is

         14  flawed and fails to follow the example of recent

         15  zoning actions, especially those in Queens, some of

         16  which you heard this morning, earlier in my home

         17  Borough of Brooklyn, where I was born and spent the

         18  earlier part of my life.

         19                 In those rezonings in several

         20  neighborhoods, the Department of City Planning

         21  completed contextually accurate rezoning that

         22  closely reflect the character of each block and

         23  sections.

         24                 We urge the Council to separate these

         25  Jamaica neighborhoods from the plan and to direct
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          2  the Department of City Planning to undertake a

          3  Follow-Up Corrective Action there, Follow-Up

          4  Correction Action, my first time for FUCA.

          5                 The Jamaica Plan proposal for

          6  Hillside Avenue would introduce highrise, high

          7  density out-of-scale development to a swath of

          8  Queens that could not support the influx of

          9  thousands of new residents and the impacts they

         10  would bring. The Plan would establish Hillside

         11  Avenue as a model for future development of the

         12  borough's major corridors, using Fourth Avenue in

         13  Brooklyn as a template - an unacceptable prospect

         14  that Queens communities will not accept. We urge the

         15  City Council to remove Hillside Avenue from the

         16  Plan.

         17                 The Plan allows continued, largely

         18  uncontrolled growth of waste transfer stations and

         19  other noxious uses in the manufacturing districts

         20  without protecting small homes that preexist the

         21  creation of those districts. The Plan's proposals

         22  for these manufacturing districts do not correct any

         23  of the burdens these facilities impose on Jamaica as

         24  a whole, nor does it explain how to develop a

         25  thriving business core within sniffing distance of a
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          2  concentration of waste transfer stations.

          3                 The Plan offers developers of

          4  inclusionary housing opportunities to build higher

          5  and bulkier buildings but without requiring

          6  developers to produce on site affordable housing

          7  units for current residents of Jamaica.

          8                 We urge the Council to make good its

          9  promise to the people of Jamaica to fix the

         10  inequities of the Jamaica Plan by sending it back to

         11  the Commission for correction.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MR. FORRESTAL: Good afternoon. I'm

         14  Kevin Forrestal, President of Hillcrest Estates. I

         15  am going -- you have my prepared remarks, I'm just

         16  going to briefly summarize them and make some

         17  comments about the presentation to the agencies

         18  instead.

         19                 I call for the removal of the

         20  Hillside Avenue from the proposed project for the

         21  reasons that were cited. I'd like to also just speak

         22  about what the agencies presented this morning,

         23  words like we will just; we will look at; we will

         24  consider. Not that we're going to fix it, we're

         25  going to be able to do it.
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          2                 If you've driven around Jamaica,

          3  Southeast Queens, you'll notice it two problems,

          4  there are too many cars for the roads, and there

          5  aren't really north and south roads. It is not

          6  fixable without doing mass condemnation and

          7  rebuilding roads. It's that simple. You don't have

          8  to be an expert. That's for one.

          9                 The Department, DEP, they certainly

         10  have had more planning on this than anyone else, but

         11  they can't do it. As Councilman Comrie pointed out,

         12  the money isn't there now. And even if the money was

         13  there, and the time frame we're talking about, the

         14  worse scenario calls for this development, which I

         15  think is understated, by 2018, it's ten years from

         16  now. They can't build and knock up all the roads and

         17  not cut off the area and make it non-inhabitable.

         18  And that's going to say nothing of the fact that Con

         19  Ed is going to have to come back in and take up the

         20  same roads later on, but they haven't answered any

         21  of the questions.

         22                 So, that's just one thing. The other

         23  thing is, Assistant Commissioner has talked about 30

         24  foot growth in the water table. That was over the

         25  last 20 years. What is being done, and what is being
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          2  looked at as it relates to the global warming and

          3  hurricanes or weather like we have today on

          4  Nor'easters? Southeast Jamaica and Hillside Avenue,

          5  I haven't been there, it's flooding. I have 100

          6  percent confidence in that. Just to point out also,

          7  where I'm supposed to go for in the case of a

          8  hurricane, they're pumping the water out because

          9  they can't handle the water as it is now. And that's

         10  York College.

         11                 The DEP concept of doing the

         12  precertification is great, because Buildings is

         13  doing a lousy job on it. But what is a developer

         14  going to do? I spend $10 million for a piece of the

         15  project, do my preliminary work, hand in the permits

         16  or the prepermits and says, oh, we don't have

         17  capacity, you can't develop. There's something wrong

         18  in that system. That probably could require, have

         19  some sort of a change.

         20                 Schools. There's been funding for

         21  schools in Community Board 12, not in my district

         22  but I have concern for them. They haven't been able

         23  to find them. The reality is that the agencies are

         24  not prepared. They even haven't started with their

         25  task force, and they're still talking in platitudes.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you, Council

          4  members, for this opportunity. My name is Si

          5  Schwartz. I'm president of the Briarwood Community

          6  Association. The proposal for the upzoning of

          7  Hillside Avenue Corridor, as part of the Jamaica

          8  Development Plan, includes a portion of Briarwood.

          9  It reflects the express policy of our City's current

         10  administration to create conditions for the major

         11  expansion of population through upzoning.

         12                 This farsighted posture is laudable,

         13  but in this instance it does not withstand the test

         14  of open-minded thinking. The optimistic notion of

         15  encouraging and imposing such large, dense,

         16  multi-unit buildings out of context with the

         17  community's current zoning for one- and two-family

         18  private homes, is completely lacking in any

         19  consideration for, nor in addressing the necessary

         20  maintenance and repair of our currently aging

         21  infrastructure in our neighborhood that would be a

         22  necessary concomitant in serving such population

         23  increases.

         24                 We, in particular, share and suffer

         25  the sad realization that all of New York City's
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          2  infrastructure is growing increasingly old and

          3  obsolete and is hardly ready to meet the service

          4  needs of an expanding population.

          5                 Such a process creates a peculiar

          6  toxicity that leaches into every aspect of

          7  neighborhood life. There are sections of Briarwood

          8  adjacent to Hillside Avenue corridor that continue

          9  to suffer from known long-term water supply pipe

         10  leaks, substandard water pressure and drainage

         11  problems that have undermined and destroyed nearby

         12  homes. Power brownouts, irregular telephone service,

         13  and lack of police presence. Add to it the generally

         14  dirty, overcrowded subway service and insufferable

         15  service transportation, and the latest reports by

         16  the MTA that our subway line is currently at 100

         17  percent capacity and cannot increase its service.

         18                 And who can ignore our under-serving

         19  public library and shortages of school facilities

         20  with their overcrowded classrooms? These are the

         21  increasing problems of daily living. The lack of

         22  after school programs, youth and senior and health

         23  centers, and acute inadequacy of street parking.

         24                 All together, we are witness to the

         25  savaging of our quite communities and homes. The
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          2  loss of low density public lands, grass, trees and

          3  open spaces that are increasingly giving way to

          4  unfettered development and population increases. Its

          5  concentration is intense, creating a welter of

          6  enmeshed problems that fuel spiraling quality of

          7  life issues and an air of hopelessness that leaches

          8  into every aspect of community life. It is an

          9  invitation for tragedy that is gliding our

         10  neighborhoods and our City into a depression of

         11  overcrowding, increased fowlness and tumult.

         12                 For these reasons, we in Briarwood

         13  are opposed to City Planning's current proposal for

         14  upzoning along the Hillside Avenue Corridor.

         15  Together with the other affected neighboring

         16  communities, we have been unified in our call for a

         17  modification of that plan, as we have proposed and

         18  previously submitted to City Planning.

         19                 However, the current position of the

         20  Department of City Planning, its refusal to address

         21  our concerns for the need for significant

         22  infrastructure improvements before any new zoning

         23  should be enacted, the disingenuousness of its final

         24  draft environmental impact study, and the fact that

         25  DCP has not adopted any of the suggestions contained
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          2  in the counterproposal offered by the Briarwood

          3  Community Association, together with the other

          4  affected communities.

          5                 We have now elected to take our

          6  counter proposal off the table and prefer to leave

          7  the existing zoning in place.

          8                 We urge the members of the City

          9  Council to reject the irrational flinty, and

         10  unserviceable proposal by the Department of City

         11  Planning for the Hillside Avenue corridor. Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Could you get me

         14  a copy of your counterproposal? Because I don't

         15  think I've ever seen it.

         16                 MR. SCHWARTZ: We can do that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         18                 Councilman Gennaro.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         20  Mr. Chairman.

         21                 Si. I want to ask a question of Si.

         22  I'm just making a note here. Because you, in your

         23  testimony, have spoken directly to the effort that

         24  was underway, you know, through the cooperation of

         25  my office and my zoning consultant to come up with
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          2  the alternative proposal, which now as per your

          3  statement and statements previously, that the local

          4  civic leaders have sort of withdrawn and taken back

          5  and adopted to leave the planning, to leave the

          6  zoning in place.

          7                 Now, that's what I want to talk about

          8  briefly, in that when I, you know, talk to my

          9  colleagues in the Council, in the Administration,

         10  the issue that comes forward is, well, you know,

         11  this is the plan that the local civic leaders

         12  themselves have like a major role in drafting and

         13  why are they backing away from the plan that they

         14  themselves in large part have drafted? And you speak

         15  to it somewhat in your statement. And say, well, we

         16  didn't get the kind of response we wanted, and but,

         17  you know, fundamentally beyond just like personality

         18  and that kind of thing, and it would have been nice

         19  if they embraced it or whatever, you know, people

         20  are coming to me and saying, you know, why is it

         21  that civic leaders are backing away from a proposal

         22  that they, themself, crafted, and what would you

         23  recommend I tell them?

         24                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Well, there are a

         25  number of aspects to that.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I'm not

          3  fighting you. Just to understand, right.

          4                 MR. SCHWARTZ: There are a number of

          5  responses one could bring forth.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And also the

          7  reason why I'm focusing on you, because you

          8  specifically mentioned it, you know, in your

          9  testimony, which I appreciate.

         10                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Recognizing the fact

         11  that there must be a response to the expanding

         12  growth and population growth in particular of this

         13  City, we believe, I believe that our response was

         14  fair and well reasoned and in the best interest of

         15  the people of this City.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: The

         17  alternative proposal which was --

         18                 MR. SCHWARTZ: I'm talking about the

         19  counter proposal.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right, the

         21  counter proposal.

         22                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Which has been on the

         23  table for some time.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Yes.

         25                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Among other things, we
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          2  propose that there be parking, on-site parking

          3  requirements without modification. We proposed

          4  affordable housing. We made a number of other

          5  proposals, and certainly some reasonable reduction

          6  in the capacity of these buildings, in the height of

          7  these buildings. You can imagine the site of these

          8  buildings that would rise to as much as 12 stories

          9  being immediately alongside communities of one- and

         10  two-family homes. This is no small matter. We are

         11  the ones faced with these quality of life issues,

         12  and we can hardly respond to them.

         13                 One example, I was informed years ago

         14  that one particular sector of our community had

         15  broken water lines, and the water has been gushing

         16  out all this while. Not having heard from DEP, by

         17  now, two, three years later, I communicated with

         18  them, and the answer to me was that they do not have

         19  any money in the budget for repair of these broken

         20  lines. So, the water is still gushing forth to this

         21  day.

         22                 There are many such examples of lack

         23  of service and the agony it brings to residents of

         24  the community, so that hearing from the various

         25  departments today as we did, however encouraging it
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          2  may sound, to us it's simply disbelieving we have

          3  spent many years in our civic activity, we have much

          4  experience in these directions.

          5                 As I indicated in Briarwood, we have

          6  ten homes that were destroyed by the breakage of

          7  water and sewer pipes, so that we felt that our

          8  compromise agreement was very fair, how ever it may

          9  yet impose upon the community, but all things

         10  considered it addressed the question of expansion in

         11  a responsible way, and it was ignored.

         12                 Totally ignored.

         13                 For example, one of the responses was

         14  that should there be affordable housing it would be

         15  off site. That does not respond to the point. That

         16  does not respond to the point at all.

         17                 So, for these reasons we had become

         18  exasperated, not satisfied with the chorus of the

         19  dialogue and we now insist that we would like the

         20  Hillside Avenue portion of the Jamaica Plan to be

         21  withdrawn from the table.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I just wanted

         23  to get that on the record, and I think it would be

         24  helpful to put that on the record, and I thank you

         25  for bringing this up as part of your testimony, and
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          2  for engaging me in an further discussion of it just

          3  now. So, thank you for your statement. Thank you for

          4  your further statement on that. And I want to thank

          5  Kevin and Pat as well for being here, and for your

          6  advocacy. Thank you.

          7                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I want to

          9  thank this panel. And thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: One sec. Sit

         11  down. Just so I understand it a little bit better,

         12  are you suggesting that the rezoning for the entire

         13  Hillside Avenue strip be left alone?

         14                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Not just part of

         16  it.

         17                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Absolutely. We're

         18  speaking from the western end, 139th Street, all the

         19  way to 191st.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Okay.

         21                 MR. SCHWARTZ: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel in

         23  favor. Lambrakis Emmanuel, Marcie Kesner. Is Marcie

         24  still here? Okay, she's in favor. Let it be noted in

         25  the record. Holly Franz. Eric Bluestone.
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          2                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: My name is Emmanuel

          3  Lambrakis. I am a physician. I practice medicine in

          4  the corner of 175th Street and Hillside Avenue, for

          5  the last 27 years. When I first came to this

          6  neighborhood, both the F and the A Train lines were

          7  ending at 179th Street. It was a very vibrant

          8  community. The commercial, the stores on Hillside

          9  Avenue, you could not get a store to rent, for every

         10  empty store there were like six or seven people

         11  waiting to rent. Today in an area of three blocks,

         12  beginning from 170th Street to Midland Parkway,

         13  there are 16 empty stores out of 45. The traffic has

         14  deteriorated to a great extent. And somebody would

         15  ask, and that's why I would like to address mostly

         16  these comments to Mr. Gennaro, the reason for that

         17  is that, as this hearing was heard in the morning,

         18  the public money has been invested in the area of

         19  South Jamaica and naturally some bus lines and the E

         20  Train line moved from Hillside to Jamaica. That

         21  acted as a suction machine for live from Hillside

         22  Avenue. It completely eliminated any possibility of

         23  growth on Hillside Avenue.

         24                 Hillside Avenue, if something is

         25  good, you don't fix it. Somebody may say, well, I
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          2  like the way it is and I would like to leave it as

          3  is. If there is no deterioration, you may choose not

          4  to invest, not to do anything, but this is going

          5  down the drain and it goes fast.

          6                 Between the corridor I just told you,

          7  and that Mr. Gennaro is opposing the rezoning, I

          8  believe that's the area that needs most of the

          9  rezoning. That is the area that has been afflicted

         10  by all this change, by investment actually for the

         11  Monorail for the public and federal buildings in

         12  South Jamaica, that left that area totally and

         13  completely empty.

         14                 I heard very carefully all those that

         15  they are opposing the Hillside rezoning. None of

         16  them really said that rezoning is not needed.

         17  Everybody, even the opponents, they say rezoning is

         18  needed under certain conditions. So, the recognition

         19  that zoning is needed and some investment is badly,

         20  badly in great need, it is a universal notion.

         21  However, most of the civic leaders, they said do the

         22  infrastructure first, then do the rezoning. Well, in

         23  politics it doesn't work that way. You first create

         24  the need and then you take care of the need. If

         25  you're telling me I have to build a sewer system to
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          2  accommodate 15 million people before I start

          3  building a city, no politician will vote for it.

          4                 I would like to address this issue to

          5  the Jamaica Estates Association, which is actually

          6  the point of this thing. The point of fighting the

          7  Hillside specialization corridor, fighting, it is

          8  because they quote/unquote, the properties will go

          9  down if this rezoning will take place.

         10                 From previous hearings we know that

         11  Jamaica, South Jamaica has the highest density of

         12  homeless shelters, and substance abuse clinics. Now,

         13  imagine now if only the southern part of Jamaica has

         14  been rezoned, a lot of capital investment for

         15  Hillside, deterioration will be grave. It will go

         16  down because all the undesirable elements will leave

         17  that area and will go to the closest area. So, what

         18  really has to be done here is either everything or

         19  none, if you do not address at this point universal

         20  upbringing of the area, nothing will happen.

         21                 You're going to have an outcry of the

         22  people. That is the one thing, the first and the

         23  most important protection of the people in Jamaica

         24  Estates is actually a great investment on that

         25  corridor, so you can stop, shelter that area.
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          2                 And I will finish with two

          3  statements: First, in the history of the City at no

          4  time the rezoning caused a decrease in property

          5  values. Not even one instance. And number two, in

          6  democracy all voices must be heard but only the

          7  reasonable ones should be considered. Thank you.

          8                 MS. FRANZ: Thank you. Good afternoon,

          9  Council. My name is Holly Franz and I'm here

         10  representing the Kamali Organization.

         11                 I would like to take this opportunity

         12  to commend both the New York City Council and the

         13  Department of City Planning for their relentless

         14  effort in implementing a rezoning of this magnitude.

         15  As a long-time real estate investor and developer in

         16  Queens, I have witnessed the transformation of

         17  neighborhoods over the past couple of decades. While

         18  many committees have seen noticeable improvements

         19  during the latest real estate cycle, certain areas

         20  like Hillside Avenue in Jamaica have remained

         21  stagnant or even deteriorated.

         22                 Hillside Avenue is in dire need of

         23  revitalization. The neighborhood is depressed as

         24  evident by the endless number of vacant and boarded

         25  up storefronts, businesses have no longevity since
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          2  pedestrian traffic during the daytime is almost

          3  non-existing.

          4                 Not only will the rezoning serve as

          5  an investment catalyst for revitalizing the

          6  neighborhood, but it will greatly improve the

          7  quality of life for its business and residents.

          8                 Several years ago the Department of

          9  City Planning took on the important initiative to

         10  update zoning throughout Queens in order to bring

         11  its neighborhoods into context. Its successful

         12  strategy has been to upzone major arteries like

         13  Hillside and Jamaica Avenue, while downzoning

         14  interior residential neighborhoods, the intention is

         15  to increase density where there is access to public

         16  transportation and to preserve lower density in

         17  residential communities.

         18                 The Department of City Planning has

         19  already successfully rezoned other neighborhoods in

         20  Queens using a similar strategy which allow for

         21  increased commercial and residential development

         22  along major roadways. The benefit of the rezoning

         23  are clearly evident in these neighborhoods as they

         24  quickly transform to some of the most vibrant

         25  communities in Queens.

                                                            194

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2                 Furthermore, it is critical to this

          3  process that the rezoning uniform along both

          4  Hillside Avenue and Jamaica Avenue, if the rezoning

          5  is not consistent along both corridors, it would be

          6  detrimental to the viability of Hillside Avenue.

          7                 If Jamaica Avenue is rezoned and

          8  Hillside Avenue is not, the results will be

          9  disastrous in that even more shoppers will leave

         10  Hillside Avenue, to either travel north to Union

         11  Turnpike or south to the newly renovated Jamaica

         12  Avenue.

         13                 I would also like to reassure you

         14  that there is a sizeable group of property and

         15  business owners throughout Hillside Avenue that

         16  support the rezoning but unfortunately do not have

         17  an organized entity to give them a single unified

         18  voice.

         19                 Once again, I would like to praise

         20  the Department of City Planning for proposing this

         21  comprehensive rezoning plan, as well as the New York

         22  City Council for implementing this vision.

         23                 I am confident that the rezoning will

         24  significantly improve the quality of life in the

         25  neighborhood and transform Hillside Avenue into a
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          2  vibrant gateway of serving all of Queens.

          3                 Thank you.

          4                 MR. BLUESTONE: Good afternoon,

          5  Chairman Avella and Council members. My name is Eric

          6  Bluestone. And I'm a partner in the Bluestone

          7  Organization. We're a third generation family-owned

          8  builder/developer based in Queens for almost 70

          9  years. And for the past approximately ten years, we

         10  have been searching for a site to be able to

         11  integrate our mission of building affordable housing

         12  into a mixed use project that could also support and

         13  be economically feasible for a new office building

         14  so that we can maintain our business in Queens.

         15                 Jamaica has been a target site for us

         16  for a long time, but unfortunately, under current

         17  zoning, it has not been economically feasible for us

         18  to identify a site to be able to build this project.

         19                 So, I'm here to support the current

         20  rezoning, especially as it relates to the Downtown

         21  area. We are currently entertaining acquiring a site

         22  in Downtown Jamaica that would allow us to be able

         23  to build a mixed use mixed-income, low- to moderate-

         24  and middle-income affordable home ownership and

         25  rental project, as well as a new office building, as
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          2  I mentioned, that we'll be able to move our

          3  headquarters to and provide economic development for

          4  the community. And I encourage you to support this

          5  plan.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

          8  Gennaro.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         10  Mr. Chairman.

         11                 My question is for the first witness

         12  on this panel. I don't know your name. What is your

         13  name?

         14                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Dr. Lambrakis.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Can you say

         16  that again?

         17                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Dr. Lambrakis.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay. You're

         19  a property owner there?

         20                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: I am a property owner

         21  there, and I practice in the area.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay. Well,

         23  let me just say, there have been a lot of people

         24  involved in this process for a long time. It's no

         25  mystery like what's going on here today. And I don't
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          2  know you. I don't know your name. I don't know what

          3  your issues are. You seem to know a lot about me and

          4  my position based on what I said today, and I would

          5  appreciate it if you would allow me to make sort of

          6  my own characterizations of my position on this, and

          7  I, frankly, resent being barked at like I'm some

          8  kind of junkyard dog. It's like I'm here trying to

          9  do my job. And when you heard me earlier positing,

         10  and I used my words very carefully, I posited the

         11  notion of taking Hillside area, because I wanted to

         12  hear what the Chairman, what the Chairman of the

         13  Department of City Planning, Amanda Burden, would

         14  have to say about that. And, so, and so I am -- if I

         15  had my mind totally made up of what I was going to

         16  be doing, I wouldn't be sitting here today, because

         17  I would just go to my colleagues on the Council and

         18  say that I represent the Hillside Avenue corridor,

         19  and this is what I want my own institution to back

         20  me up on what I want to do here, and this is what I

         21  want to do from Hillside Avenue, from Van Wyck to

         22  160th and 160th to Midland, to Midland to 191st, I

         23  could just say this is what I want to do and I don't

         24  want to hear anything else. The fact that I'm here

         25  today means that I have an open mind. Hang on. So,
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          2  all of the civics are not 100 percent, you know,

          3  united on having any kind of a zone on Hillside

          4  Avenue. You know, some of them don't feel quite that

          5  way. But I think the way to sort of use me best in

          6  this process is to find out who I am, come to me,

          7  tell me what your issues are, the way like many

          8  other people have done. Not sit in a chair and bark

          9  at me like I'm some kind of junkyard dog, like not

         10  doing his job. Because I am doing my job and I would

         11  be more than willing to find out who you are and

         12  what your interests are, but you've got to come to

         13  me like not a gentleman and not sit across the panel

         14  and bark at me. That's my statement to you, sir.

         15                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: May I answer?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Sure.

         17                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: First of all, I

         18  apologize if you felt that I was barking at you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Apology

         20  accepted.

         21                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: And I would like to

         22  tell you that this is a very effective way of being

         23  introduced to you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I don't think

         25  it is.
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          2                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Okay.

          3                 Well, let me explain why I mention

          4  your name, because in the morning you said a very

          5  key phrase, with the congestion pricing, the

          6  residents of the area are not willing to take a

          7  double impact.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Let me just

          9  stop you right there for a second, because when I

         10  talk about the -- when I say I will not take or I

         11  will not think, listen to when I say I or listen for

         12  when I'm speaking for myself or when I'm speaking

         13  for others. There's a difference there. So, this is

         14  the way we do things in this Chamber, in this House.

         15  When I say "the people" I'm talking for other

         16  people. When I say "me," that's when I'm talking for

         17  me. So, let's just be clear, and everybody should be

         18  clear on that.

         19                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Okay.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Continue.

         21                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Impact. Impact is

         22  actually an opportunity, an opportunity, the first

         23  impact I explained before, the best protection for

         24  that area is new investment. The impact of

         25  congestion pricing, this is a golden opportunity to
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          2  go back to the Mayor and say, Mr. Mayor, we're going

          3  to be impacted from the congestion pricing, so we

          4  need money now for infrastructure.

          5                 And I find this to be a golden

          6  opportunity in both sides, the rezoning and the

          7  congestion pricing.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

          9                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: I see that as the

         10  greatest opportunity that you and I will have in our

         11  lifetime to invite capital in this area. And I did

         12  not in any way insinuate that this is your position,

         13  and I apologize if it was meant that way, if it was

         14  heard that way. I said, and I address my comments to

         15  the people of the Jamaica Estates --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

         17                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Which I would like to

         18  make the last statement.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: That's fine.

         20                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: They don't work

         21  Hillside Avenue and they do not go shopping on

         22  Hillside Avenue. They do not know, if you ask them

         23  carefully, there are some people that they are two

         24  blocks away and they did not work Hillside Avenue

         25  for the last 15 years, however, they have very
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          2  strong opinions about Hillside Avenue. If they have

          3  taken care of business, of their own business, they

          4  kept their own local merchants in the area, they

          5  went shopping and they demanded change on Hillside

          6  Avenue in the last 15 years, Hillside would not be

          7  this way.

          8                 So, at this point the City is

          9  stepping in courageously and saying, you know, I

         10  have to take a balance opinion here and I think the

         11  rezoning is absolutely necessary, I strongly believe

         12  it's absolutely necessary, because the local

         13  community which really opposes this plan does not

         14  take care of its own back yard. Thank you.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: And I can

         16  certainly appreciate that perspective, and now we're

         17  coming to the irony of this whole thing. The irony

         18  of our discourse here is that at the outset of this

         19  process, I was very much an advocate for your

         20  position, you know, reading right out of your

         21  playbook about how can anyone look at Hillside

         22  Avenue and say Hillside Avenue is absolutely

         23  perfect, we should leave it alone. We shouldn't take

         24  it up, we shouldn't take it down in terms of

         25  density, we should leave it exactly the way it is
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          2  because this is the Hillside Avenue that we all want

          3  and desire and this will, you know, meet the

          4  community's needs in perpetuity just the way it is.

          5  And this is only going back a couple of days ago, I

          6  was meeting with local civics, and can anyone really

          7  make that case to me? And they couldn't make the

          8  case that Hillside Avenue is. But that fact

          9  notwithstanding, they still have a position which,

         10  again, I have sort of sympathies with both sides, I

         11  want to hear everything. And, so, the irony of this

         12  whole thing is that, you know, in philosophy you and

         13  I are more alike than I think and we should get to

         14  know each other under better circumstances.

         15                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: I appreciate that

         16  invitation.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: How is that?

         18                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Very well.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Okay. Okay.

         20                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Thank you. Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         24                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: And a last comment?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: I think the
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          2  Chairman has gaveled.

          3                 DR. LAMBRAKIS: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: The next panel,

          6  we're going to ask the Sergeant-At-Arms to put a

          7  couple more chairs there so we can move this along a

          8  little quicker.

          9                 Sandra Atwell, Gertrude, is it

         10  pronounced Pinoche? I don't have a slip for you.

         11  Somebody submitted your name, so you need to fill

         12  out a slip. Eugenia Rudmann, and Linda Mitchell.

         13                 And why don't we do this. Martha

         14  Taylor, Arthur Flug and Larry Bernstein. Why don't

         15  you all come up as well.

         16                 While they're getting seated, I was

         17  just handed another slip for somebody who wants to

         18  speak. If there is anybody in the room who wants to

         19  speak, please fill out a slip now, because this will

         20  be your last opportunity.

         21                 MS. ATWELL: Hello. My name is Sandra

         22  Atwell and I am President of the Hollis 11423 Block

         23  Association, and since October 1999, we have been

         24  fighting for siting of a waste transfer station in

         25  our area.
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          2                 We have testified at Sanitation

          3  hearings and other City Council hearings on this

          4  issue. Health is our main concern. These concerns

          5  were also reinforced by the Environmental Justice

          6  Report, the siting of waste transfer stations in

          7  low-income areas, and communities of color.

          8                 Today the residents of Jamaica have

          9  serious health problems, and the new zoning law will

         10  change the M1-1 district to M1-2, which means that

         11  they can double the capacity at the waste transfer

         12  station.

         13                 In 1998, Department of Sanitation

         14  siting rules prohibited waste transfer stations or

         15  expansion of existing facilities from operating in

         16  M1 zones or within 400 feet of a residential area, a

         17  public park, or a school. Yet, in the Year 2000, a

         18  waste transfer station opened in Hollis, and an

         19  expansion was given to another transfer station in

         20  the area.

         21                 On January 11th, 2007, USA recycling

         22  challenged the 1998 ruling on the buffer zone and it

         23  went to the Supreme Court. The Court ruled that the

         24  denial of the permit was proper, because it would be

         25  within 400 feet of a residential area.
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          2                 The appellate division upheld this

          3  decision in March of 2007. This leads to many

          4  questions, and one, why do we have zoning laws that

          5  do not conform with the local law? According to

          6  zoning it's all right to put the waste transfer

          7  station in an M1 zone, as long as it's in a covered

          8  building. But the waste transfer station in Hollis,

          9  all of the paper is on the outside in an open lot

         10  and it's just a terrible site to just look at that.

         11                 Also, we want to know why the local

         12  law is ignored in communities such as ours.

         13                 MS. MITCHELL: Good afternoon. My name

         14  is Linda Mitchell. I'm the Area 6 Chair for

         15  Community Board 12, and I have been working with the

         16  Department of City Planning on the Jamaica Plan

         17  since the inception of the Ad Hoc Committee in 2005.

         18  My area of responsibility for the community board is

         19  supported by Hillside Avenue in the north and Archer

         20  and Jamaica Avenues in the south and from the Van

         21  Wyck on the west to Francis Lewis Boulevard on the

         22  east.

         23                 I am very aware of the current

         24  problems that exist with infrastructure, services,

         25  the lack of health facilities, the threatened
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          2  closure of Mary Immaculate Hospital, the absence of

          3  green space, traffic congestion, inadequate parking,

          4  overcrowded schools and the very serious dearth of

          5  north/south access routes.

          6                 Also, unacceptable is the fact that

          7  York College with its need to pump water from its

          8  facilities 24/7 is our evacuation site.

          9                 The Ad Hoc Committee, after hours of

         10  consultation with DCP, Pratt Center, interviews with

         11  residents and conversations with elected officials

         12  wrote an alternative plan. We urge you to read this

         13  plan. The Queens Department of City Planning

         14  acknowledged the plan as the most comprehensive plan

         15  they had ever seen, that had ever been presented to

         16  them. We are grateful for DCP having lowered the

         17  density of parts of Jamaica Avenue, Merrick

         18  Boulevard and Liberty Avenue. Hillside Avenue should

         19  be removed from the plan until a more comprehensive

         20  study can be made. The proposed density is not

         21  sustainable from a practical point of view. We

         22  foresee the potential for over 35,000 new residents

         23  to Hillside Avenue.

         24                 Our alternative plan calls for a

         25  fine-tuning of one- and two-family neighborhoods

                                                            207

          1  ZONING AND FRANCHISES

          2  into more appropriate contextual zoning. John Young

          3  has promised this but not in writing. We ask that

          4  the manufacturing districts not have their density

          5  increased and that protections be guaranteed against

          6  their being used for noxious uses, and as waste

          7  transfer stations so close to our residential

          8  neighborhoods and schools.

          9                 Lastly, we are trying to protect and

         10  improve a quality of life for residents that allow

         11  for both private home ownership, market rate rentals

         12  and affordable housing. We feel this mix is

         13  essential for a healthy society.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. RUDMANN: Good afternoon, Mr.

         16  Chairman. I am the Co-Chair for the Ad Hoc Committee

         17  for Community Board 12, which has been meeting with

         18  the Queens Department of City Planning since

         19  December 2005. My name is Eugenia Rudmann.

         20                 We were called to participate in

         21  learning and engaging in a working relationship with

         22  DCP so that a plan could be presented ultimately to

         23  City Council and the Mayor for consideration to

         24  become a reality.

         25                 We met with DCP over 38 times in
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          2  sessions that lasted two to three hours. We invited

          3  Pratt Center to join us in discussion and

          4  brainstorming, as well as other authorities and

          5  urban planning. Residents were interviewed and

          6  elected officials as well.

          7                 Ultimately we felt compelled to write

          8  our own alternate plan, which we urge you to read. I

          9  shall provide you with that tomorrow.

         10                 I am also the President of Hollis

         11  Park Gardens Association, and our residents are very

         12  concerned about the impact that the proposed density

         13  along Hillside Avenue will have for our community

         14  and our quality of life. I have not spoken of this

         15  until today, but I feel compelled to address the

         16  entire -- because I felt compelled to address the

         17  entire Jamaica Plan as the Co-chair of the Ad Hoc

         18  Committee; however, it is now essential I address my

         19  community's immediate concern. We share the

         20  sentiments expressed by Community Board 8, our

         21  Council Member David Weprin and Senator Frank

         22  Padavan about Hillside Avenue. We urge you to remove

         23  Hillside Avenue from the Jamaica Plan until a more

         24  serious study can be made. The proposed R7X, 7A and

         25  6A zone is not acceptable for all the many reasons
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          2  that are mentioned in the Ad Hoc Alternative Plan

          3  and voiced by others.

          4                 I also would like to just speak to

          5  some of the things that I have heard.

          6                 DCP in their presentation mentioned

          7  that they are going to have 792 affordable units as

          8  a result of their inclusionary plan.

          9                 But the DEIS says that there will be

         10  a displacement of 5,400, all right? So, 792 doesn't

         11  resolve the problem for the majority of the people

         12  who will be displaced.

         13                 DOT mentioned they're going to have

         14  170 spots, but in the DEIS they already admit to the

         15  fact there is going to be 2,000 spots missed, and

         16  it's not mitigable, so that does not answer that.

         17                 DOB speaks of having two teams of two

         18  persons each to undergo this massive rezoning, the

         19  numbers of staff just don't fit. When you speak

         20  about AMI, in our alternative plan we said we wanted

         21  60 percent and we wanted 50, 30, 20, which would

         22  assure the low-income people would have an

         23  opportunity. As far as the doctor is concerned,

         24  empty stores on Hillside Avenue, I have two ads, one

         25  for a single house on Hillside Avenue, 3 point
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          2  million dollars for a little brick house. A car

          3  salesman, a car dealership bought it for $4 million

          4  several years ago, it's now for sale for 14 million.

          5  I shop on Hillside Avenue, I have my hair done on

          6  Hillside Avenue, and in a recent conversation with

          7  my hair stylist, she told me her rent is now at

          8  $50,000. That does not include the property taxes

          9  she has to pay, plus the other things that she has

         10  to pay.

         11                 Another, a bodega that I go to, the

         12  rent was 1,500 -- I'm finishing up -- 1,800, it went

         13  to 2,700, and because the fellow said, okay, we'll

         14  pay it, we can hardly do it, but we'll do it, the

         15  rent went to 7,400. So, yes, we do shop, we are

         16  aware, and we know exactly why certain shops are

         17  closed down, and it's not because of the existing

         18  zoning.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MS. TAYLOR: Good afternoon. In the

         21  interest of time, Dr. Arthur Flug and I are going to

         22  share so we each don't go over three minutes. Dr.

         23  Flug is the Board Chair of the Jamaica Estates

         24  Association, I am Martha Taylor, the Zoning

         25  Committee Chair.
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          2                 The Jamaica States Association is

          3  opposed to the Jamaica Redevelopment Plan, as it

          4  relates to the rezoning that is proposed for

          5  Hillside Avenue.

          6                 Our concern is based on the plan to

          7  permit a canyon of eight-story buildings east of

          8  Midland Parkway and 12-story buildings west of

          9  Midland Parkway.

         10                 We agree with DCP that this will

         11  change the character of Hillside Avenue, and by

         12  extension our neighborhood, but we disagree with DCP

         13  in its assessment of the magnitude of that change

         14  and its impact on the environment.

         15                 Our opposition is based on the final

         16  environmental impact study for this project, which

         17  is based on several assumptions that are fallacious.

         18                 Fallacious assumption number one: The

         19  FEIS projects 2,186 new apartments along Hillside

         20  Avenue. That's less than 20 percent of the maximum.

         21  Is this really a reasonable worst case scenario?

         22                 We visited a recently rezoned

         23  neighborhood, Fourth Avenue in Brooklyn. This is a

         24  street very similar to Hillside Avenue in that it is

         25  a six-lane thoroughfare, has a subway line, the R,
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          2  presently it is populated with low-rise non-descript

          3  retail and automotive buildings and it borders on

          4  diverse communities.

          5                 We found that between President

          6  Street and Fifth Street there are seven new projects

          7  with many buildings eight- to 12-stories high. This

          8  is much denser development than the 20 percent

          9  assumed in the FEIS.

         10                 In fact, we have seen real estate

         11  values rise dramatically on Hillside Avenue because

         12  of the intense interest of developers anticipating a

         13  building frenzy along this street. In our opinion,

         14  the FEIS projection is not based on reality and

         15  ignores the experience in similar neighborhoods. In

         16  fact, we examined the FEIS that was published in

         17  2002. In November 2002, the DCP published the

         18  Environmental Assessment Statement for the Park

         19  Slope rezoning proposal. They identified 16 sites on

         20  or near Fourth Avenue as potential development

         21  sites. Quote, "A full build-out of all of these

         22  sites was considered, but rejected as being highly

         23  unlikely, as it would generate over four times the

         24  number of new housing units produced locally in the

         25  past ten years.
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          2                 Further, the 1993 rezoning from R6 to

          3  68A..." this is still a quote, "... of a section of

          4  Fourth Avenue north of this study area has not

          5  resulted in any new apartment building construction

          6  in the last nine years. A full build-out is

          7  therefore unreasonably large and would not serve as

          8  an appropriate basis for the impact analysis."

          9                 As a result of this analysis, DCP

         10  identified only five development sites that they

         11  considered likely to be developed within ten years

         12  in the 23 blocks on Fourth Avenue.

         13                 Arthur, I'm going to let you take it

         14  up from there.

         15                 DR. FLUG: Let me continue. As a

         16  result of this analysis, the DCP identified only

         17  five development sites that they consider likely to

         18  be developed within ten years on the 23 block of

         19  Fourth Avenue from Warren to 15th Street. In

         20  reality, today, only four and a half years later,

         21  there are seven new large buildings going up in the

         22  seven blocks from President to Fifth Street. As a

         23  result, DCP correctly predicted only 22 percent of

         24  the new development that is occurring on Fourth

         25  Avenue.
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          2                 DCP has the same reasoning making its

          3  predictions in the worst case scenario for the

          4  Jamaica final environment construction report.

          5                 As a result, it is reasonable to

          6  expect the same poor results.

          7                 Fallacious assumption number two. The

          8  DEIS projects a population increase of only 3.8

          9  percent. This conclusion is based on fallacious

         10  assumption number one. If, in fact, population

         11  increases are calculated using a reasonable worst

         12  case scenario, that assumes a more realistic

         13  build-out along Hillside Avenue than over 38,000 new

         14  people will move onto Hillside Avenue because of the

         15  proposed rezoning.

         16                 Fallacious assumption number three.

         17  The DEIS assumes that the existing infrastructure is

         18  sufficient to meet the needs of a potential maximum

         19  build-out under existing zoning rules.

         20                 The DEIS only measures the

         21  environmental impact due to the difference in

         22  potential growth possible under the current zoning

         23  and the maximum growth possible under proposed

         24  zoning.

         25                 This assumes that existing
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          2  infrastructure is sufficient for maximum build-out

          3  under present zoning regulations, and assumption

          4  that every citizen in Jamaica knows is simply not

          5  true.

          6                 A reasonable worst case scenario

          7  should assess the infrastructure improvements that

          8  will be needed to address the difference in demand

          9  between what actually exists today and the maximum

         10  build-out possible under the proposed new rules.

         11                 This would provide a much more

         12  accurate assessment of the environmental impact on

         13  Hillside Avenue and infrastructures shortfalls that

         14  need to be addressed.

         15                 These assumptions form the basis for

         16  DEIS conclusions that we find most alarming. "One,

         17  public safety." And these are quotes, "No

         18  significant adverse impacts or police or fire

         19  services." This is with 38,000 people.

         20                 "Education. Department of Education

         21  2005 to 2009 Five-Year Capital Plan," again quote,

         22  "... will ameliorate any projected overcrowding."

         23                 Number three. Traffic and Pedestrian

         24  Congestion. DCP projects significant adverse impacts

         25  which they propose to mitigate by making signal
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          2  timing adjustments and rush hour parking

          3  prohibitions."

          4                 There's more by my time is up.

          5                 MR. BOWERS: Good afternoon. My name

          6  is Richard Bowers. Larry Bernstein, who is

          7  testifying before the Disposition Subcommittee,

          8  asked me to read his statement. Thank you.

          9                 "Good afternoon. I'm Larry Bernstein,

         10  Vice President of Jonas Equities, the owner of

         11  property fronting on Archer Avenue, between Sutphin

         12  Boulevard and 147th Place. We're a family operation

         13  and have owned and managed our Jamaica property for

         14  over 40 years. We have remained in Jamaica through

         15  thick and thin, and would welcome being part of

         16  Jamaica's revitalization.

         17                 We wish to redevelop our property in

         18  an appropriate manner and to continue in business in

         19  Jamaica. However, the proposed rezoning unfairly

         20  affects our property, a substantial portion of which

         21  this City proposes to condemn.

         22                 Our property comprises two continuous

         23  slots, slots 31 and 38. In a matter directly related

         24  to the rezoning, the City proposes to condemn our

         25  lot 38 for street widening and retail development
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          2  purposes. I will be testifying at the City Council's

          3  Planning, Dispositions and Concessions

          4  Subcommittee's hearing in opposition to the breath

          5  of the condemnation. If the City condemns our Lot

          6  38, our remaining Lot 31 will be irregularly shaped,

          7  and improved with an obsolete 40-year-old six-story

          8  vacant office building formerly occupied by the

          9  City's Human Resources Administration.

         10                 The vacant office building is

         11  functionally obsolete and needs to be replaced. The

         12  building was constructed specifically for the City

         13  and cannot be feasibly renovated to modern

         14  standards. It has become unrentable at a reasonable

         15  economic return.

         16                 The proposed Downtown Jamaica

         17  rezoning, which includes our property, will

         18  substantially increase the value and use of

         19  neighboring properties being upzoned to C6-4 or C6-3

         20  districts, while preventing any additional value to

         21  our property by rezoning it to a C6-2 district. A

         22  remaining vacant office building will be rezoned to

         23  an FAR of 6, while its immediate neighbors will be

         24  rezoned to either C6-4, which has an FAR of 10, or a

         25  C6-3, an FAR of 8. We've been meeting with the
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          2  Department of City Planning in a good faith attempt

          3  to resolve our differences. Although, a memorandum

          4  of understanding regarding development rights has

          5  been presented for discussion, there remain

          6  substantial differences between us, which must be

          7  resolved. We will, of course, continue to negotiate

          8  in good faith.

          9                 We support the overall goals and much

         10  of the specifics of the rezoning, as they are good

         11  for both Jamaica and the City. However, we're

         12  concerned with the rezoning's affect on our

         13  property, which is located at a significant and

         14  highly visible site and which, due to its location,

         15  should be a major contributor to the Jamaica

         16  redevelopment. The basic teneted zoning is practiced

         17  in New York City and specifically endorsed by Mayor

         18  Bloomberg and his recent Earth Day speech and PlaNYC

         19  proposal, is to locate increased density in

         20  proximity to mass transit. While this zoning plan

         21  recognized its principal for properties surrounding

         22  our site, it fails to recognize this principle

         23  regarding our property. Our property is diagonally

         24  across the Sutphin Boulevard Archer Avenue

         25  Intersection from the Long Island Railroad and
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          2  AirTrain Station. Also, adjacent to our property is

          3  a subway station and multiple bus routes. With all

          4  these advantages in proximity to mass transit, the

          5  zoning plan neglects to accord our property the same

          6  floor areas properties on Archer Avenue, many blocks

          7  further away from this mass transit nexus. At the

          8  very least, our property should be rezoned like its

          9  immediate neighbor to C6-3.

         10                 I respectfully ask that the rezoning

         11  accord our property the same status as the

         12  surrounding properties, thereby assuring our ability

         13  to redevelop our property in an economically viable

         14  fashion, similar to our immediate neighbors. We

         15  believe this is a suitable candidate for follow-up

         16  corrective action which was mentioned this morning.

         17                 Let me conclude by again stating we

         18  do support the overall idea of improving Downtown

         19  Jamaica. We just don't want to be negatively

         20  affected by actions that together radically reduce

         21  the potential redevelopment value of our property.

         22                 Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Did you give us

         24  copies of your testimony? Do we have it?

         25                 MR. BOWERS: By all means.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Yes, Council

          3  Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Also, we're

          5  looking at that. In fact, I was next door at the

          6  Archer Avenue rezoning, Archer Avenue corridor

          7  meeting, and I was just talking to your other

          8  principals over there about making your property the

          9  same as the others. So that we can do without a

         10  FUCA, I believe. So we can work on that

         11  independently because that's within the scope. I

         12  hope I'm right. If I'm not right, we'll fix it.

         13  We're working -- I'm committed to working with you

         14  to fix it.

         15                 MR. BOWERS: Thank you for considering

         16  it, sir.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         19  Gennaro.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you,

         21  Mr. Chairman.

         22                 I just want to thank this panel in a

         23  very, very special way. All who are on this panel

         24  worked day in and day out before the community with

         25  the best interests of the community at heart. They
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          2  have no other motive. And it's 3:00, they've been

          3  here since 9:00 in the morning. I'm very grateful to

          4  everyone on this panel, not only for being there

          5  today but for all of your hard work and all the hard

          6  work still to come. I look forward to working with

          7  you on this. Thank you all very much.

          8                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Also, Mr.

         10  Chair, I want to thank the panel and all of what I

         11  missed, I know that you put a lot of time and effort

         12  in working hard, and I understand we're meeting

         13  tomorrow at 12:00. I hope everybody can make that

         14  meeting because we worked very hard to get all of

         15  the elected officials that are involved in the

         16  project to commit to being there. So, I would

         17  encourage you to come and at that meeting, if you

         18  can't come, send a representative to speak for your

         19  issues at that meeting. Because, again, we've worked

         20  very hard. It's hard to get five elected officials

         21  on the same schedule at the same time on the same

         22  issue. But it is important, so I would hope that you

         23  can come and we can have a more free flowing

         24  discussion then. Thank you. Thank you, all.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Next panel in
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          2  favor, Jeff Spiritos. I hope I pronounced that

          3  right. Aaron Gooblar. Barry Eisenkraft. Kevin

          4  Curtin. Yesebua Graham, and Deborah Ayela.

          5                 MR. SPIRITOS: Good afternoon, Chair

          6  Avella, Council Member Comrie and Gennaro. I'm Jeff

          7  Spiritos. I'm a principal of a development group, a

          8  private development group that is hoping to develop

          9  a mixed-use property across the street from the

         10  Jamaica station, and the AirTrain terminal. We

         11  contemplate a mixture of affordable housing, both

         12  low income and middle income, a hotel and retail

         13  space, a project of potentially 500,000 feet.

         14                 I am here to speak in favor of the

         15  Jamaica Plan rezoning on behalf of our development

         16  organization. I worked for a development company

         17  that built the FDA building ten years ago, and as a

         18  principal and ongoing co-owner of that project, I am

         19  committed to see the redevelopment of Jamaica. I

         20  applaud the Department of City Planning's efforts on

         21  this behalf, the Mayor's efforts and Deputy Mayor

         22  Doctoroff, the community board's and the City

         23  Council's efforts to make Jamaica, Downtown Jamaica,

         24  the viable business and residential center that it

         25  deserves to be. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. GOOBLAR: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Aron Gooblar. I work for Washington Square Park,

          4  I represent JFK Associates, the developer of 94-19

          5  Sutphin Boulevard, also known as site two of the JFK

          6  Corporate Plan. We are working toward a development

          7  with Merchandise Mart with ground floor retail. I am

          8  speaking in favor of the rezoning. My client has

          9  worked on projects in Jamaica for many years and is

         10  eager for the zoning to move forward.

         11                 The zoning will catalyze the

         12  revitalization of the downtown area and allow

         13  Downtown Jamaica to finally capitalize on its

         14  transportation infrastructure, including the

         15  AirTrain.

         16                 The opportunities the rezoning

         17  provides for the community, and the economic

         18  development potential cannot be overstated. The

         19  plans for development in the Downtown area cannot go

         20  forward without the rezoning. My client has spoken

         21  in front of the City Planning, with City Planning to

         22  express one concern with the zoning text as written

         23  that impacts the planned development of a

         24  merchandise mart on site two.

         25                 The 20-foot commercial rear yard
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          2  requirement will impede our ability to optimally

          3  develop functional marked floor plates. That is the

          4  portion of the floor plate impacted by the rear yard

          5  will result in a long, narrow hallway-type area as

          6  opposed to wholesale store fronts with the necessary

          7  visibility.

          8                 We have spoken with City Planning

          9  staff regarding this concern, and it is our

         10  understanding that City Planning will in fact do a

         11  follow-up text amendment, which will alleviate this

         12  concern.

         13                 Finally, as it relates to the

         14  honorable Borough President Marshall's

         15  recommendation and community concerns to hire local

         16  and create local jobs, we've been working with the

         17  local community and are pleased to report that for

         18  the first stage of redevelopment which involves

         19  abatement and demolishing the existing building, we

         20  have contractually committed to EDC to hire minority

         21  and business-owned enterprises. To date, in excess

         22  of 30 percent of the contract value entered into has

         23  gone to MWBE firms, including several local

         24  contractors.

         25                 For the development going forward, we
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          2  will continue to coordinate with Community Board 12,

          3  as well as with Workforce 1, to develop a hiring

          4  program that best suits the needs of Downtown

          5  Jamaica.

          6                 Thank you for your time.

          7                 MS. GRAHAM: Good afternoon, everyone.

          8  Can you hear me? Yes? Good. My name is Yosenia

          9  Graham, and I represent Mr. Clinton Graham and

         10  Graham Associates, LLC. My father has been a

         11  business owner in the Jamaica area for over 40

         12  years. We've been a resident for over 27 years. I

         13  live in Board 8 now. We work in Board 12, so I'm all

         14  in this plan today. We're really concentrating on a

         15  Special Downtown District area. My father owns many

         16  properties. One in particular is Lot 10026, which is

         17  at the edging of the Special Downtown District. I

         18  will have John point that out for me. I don't want

         19  to confuse anyone, but it is lot 10026. It is 1.6

         20  acres, and we would like to develop that land into

         21  two towers, which one would encompass a hotel and

         22  the other a residential building, using the formula

         23  of a 50, 30, 20 commercial space at the bottom.

         24                 This is a really ambitious plan and

         25  we are hoping to be as ambitious as the plan, to be
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          2  pioneers in this new zoning and bringing in new

          3  development. We want to make this building a green

          4  building. I mean, there's been resounding voices

          5  saying that asthma is high in Jamaica. We don't want

          6  to add to that. We're right near the train station.

          7  The whole City is going green and we want to take

          8  that initiative as well. We worked with some of the

          9  best architects in the City. Ishma Lavor (phonetic),

         10  who are known for doing green building. Our lead

         11  architect is a lead advisor in green and we're

         12  really hoping to bring it and really be pioneers in

         13  this area. My father has never left the area when

         14  others have, and I want to continue his legacy of

         15  not leaving the area of supporting our own area,

         16  hiring our own people, saying we are part of this

         17  community, we have lived here, we have built here,

         18  we've been here and we want to bring something back

         19  to the community, and let the community know that we

         20  are representing them if no one else is. They feel

         21  that too many outside developers. We are here, we

         22  are from the community, and we want to do whatever

         23  is possible to help the community and bring new

         24  light to South Jamaica.

         25                 I mean, it's wonderful even to sit
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          2  next to him and see the Merckle Meat Market being

          3  fixed up. I said it to Carlisle Towery, for so many

          4  years, I'm 27 and for 27 years this has been an

          5  eyesore of South Jamaica. And the more eyesores we

          6  have, the more dumping and the more, the worst the

          7  area is going to come, and it really needs to be

          8  improved, the open air space needs to be put there,

          9  there is no parks for these kids to play in. Schools

         10  need to be built, but things happen slowly, and I

         11  think as the development comes, people will want to

         12  bring and be a part of Jamaica and see the vibrance

         13  of Jamaica. Everything. I mean, Jamaica is better

         14  than Brooklyn, I would say. At least Queens is. We

         15  have less crime. And I think we need to start

         16  building up and building to the caliber of Long

         17  Island City now and Astoria and Queens Boulevard and

         18  those other parts that are really being developed at

         19  this point. I thank you.

         20                 DR. EISENKRAFT: Hello. My name is Dr.

         21  Barry Eisenkraft. I am the veterinarian and owner of

         22  the Estates Animal Hospital, which is located on

         23  Hillside Avenue, about 185th Street. I've been

         24  working on Hillside Avenue over 25 years, and I'm

         25  here today with a signed petition from over 20 of
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          2  the small businesses from Midland Parkway to 191st

          3  Street to show our support for the zoning change.

          4                 About two to three years ago, we were

          5  told about the proposed zoning change from an R3-2,

          6  which is two- to three-family housing, which is now

          7  going to be an R6A, which will bring the zoning up

          8  to what's there today.

          9                 I was kind of surprised that there

         10  was even a need for a zoning change because on both

         11  sides of my animal hospital there are already two

         12  seven-story apartment buildings, one block east of

         13  me there is another seven-story apartment building,

         14  and there's a 10-story apartment building. We were

         15  kind of excited about the change, hoping that if new

         16  buildings could be built then we could have more

         17  business. You see, we're slowly dying on Hillside

         18  Avenue, that part of Hillside Avenue. Over the last

         19  25 years, especially since 9/11, we have seen a

         20  constant closing of many of the small businesses.

         21                 I started to attend the zoning

         22  meetings of the Jamaica Estates Association and

         23  Community Board 8 meetings, and, unfortunately, felt

         24  that some of the people with the loudest voices

         25  opposing the zoning change were not really being
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          2  accurate with their facts.

          3                 At one of the meetings a woman stood

          4  up and said that Hillside Avenue is so crowded you

          5  can't walk on the street.

          6                 Well, in the morning at 179th Street,

          7  it is busy, but if you should walk any time of day

          8  from Midland Parkway to 191st Street, it's a ghost

          9  town. And at that moment I kind of realized that

         10  that woman, and probably many other people from

         11  Jamaica Estates Association really aren't walking

         12  and spending time on our corridor of Hillside

         13  Avenue. So, when Mr. John Young came from the City

         14  to explain what the zoning change would mean and

         15  what guidelines a developer would have to follow in

         16  order to take full use of the zoning change, and

         17  that there is a possibility of 20 percent going to

         18  affordable housing, unfortunately there were some

         19  people at the Association who showed some of their

         20  truer feelings by actually saying out loud, we don't

         21  want slums in our area.

         22                 Well, as I said, I have serviced that

         23  community for 25 years. I found that disturbing and

         24  insulting, not only for myself but to hundreds of my

         25  clients who have been there for many years.
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          2                 It would be wonderful if everyone

          3  could afford million dollar houses in Jamaica

          4  Estates, but people can't and the idea that new

          5  apartments can be built, and we can have a

          6  revitalization of our area of Hillside Avenue, that

          7  way maybe even some of the people from Jamaica

          8  Estates would walk and shop in our area.

          9                 I want to close by saying first of

         10  all thank you to Councilman Gennaro for all his time

         11  and energy that he's put in with this, because I

         12  know he's had very difficult times at some of the

         13  meetings. But what I would also like to do is invite

         14  the members of the Board to just personally walk

         15  along Hillside Avenue from Midland Parkway to 191st

         16  Street, to see for themselves how depressed the area

         17  truly is, and also to notice how beautiful the

         18  apartment buildings that are there now are, and then

         19  make a decision based on information and knowledge,

         20  but not based on the fear, dishonesty and sometimes

         21  the hysteria of some of the members from Jamaica

         22  Estates Association.

         23                 So, as I said before, I have worked

         24  for 25 years, what I'm telling you now is the

         25  reality of what's going on there. Thank you.
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          2                 MR. CURTIN: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Kevin Curtin, and I'm representing the 25,000

          4  members of the New York Hotel Trades Council, the

          5  union for hotel workers in New York City, some of

          6  whom are actually here today.

          7                 It is important that Jamaica

          8  Redevelopment Project be built and operated with a

          9  standard of wages and benefits that the people of

         10  our City can live on.

         11                 The City should not support projects

         12  that do not guarantee livable wages for the people

         13  who build and operate them. This sentiment often

         14  coincides with the values of workers being

         15  represented by labor unions.

         16                 In the name of our members, and the

         17  members of the entire labor community, we strongly

         18  encourage this development be built with, and

         19  operated with union labor, ensuring that the people

         20  who construct our City and run our City can afford

         21  to live in our City.

         22                 We ask that the City Council address

         23  the issue of good jobs before moving forward with

         24  the Jamaica rezoning. Thank you for the opportunity

         25  to speak here today.
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          2                 MS. AYALA: Hi. I'm here to clarify a

          3  few things. I will. My name is Deborah Ayala. I am

          4  the President of Jamaica Hills Community

          5  Association, one of three civics that represent

          6  Hillside Avenue. I am in favor. There is no such

          7  thing as unity, there is no unity. I want the

          8  rezoning on Hillside Avenue. Let me explain to you,

          9  the people in my community need this. That area is

         10  very depressed. So, for me, the people that took the

         11  proposal off the table, well, I think that is the

         12  worst mistake anybody could have ever done.

         13                 I want to thank Jim Gennaro's Office

         14  for hiring Paul Graziano to put forward the

         15  alternative proposal that we all sat down and worked

         16  on very hard and said, hey, this is what will work

         17  best for us.

         18                 Now, to come here and say let's take

         19  it off the table, because of a lot of the concerns,

         20  is wrong. There is concerns. Of course, there is

         21  water, there is sewage, there is a lot of problems,

         22  but let me explain to you, my boundaries are,

         23  Parsons Boulevard to Hillside Avenue to Homelawn, I

         24  have two major hub subway stations, I have 169 and

         25  179, I have buses and traffic going up north and
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          2  west, south and east, you name it, I have it. So,

          3  I'm saying to you guys, my other alternative

          4  proposal, which is we need to downzone certain areas

          5  by my area where the subway station are to make

          6  those R6A, Parsons Boulevard and 169th Street, and

          7  also Sutphin Boulevard, Sutphin because of the new

          8  extension, that that also should be an R6A. So,

          9  where the major subway lines are going to be, it

         10  should be R6A 169, R6A 179, R6A Parsons Boulevard,

         11  and Sutphin Boulevard R6A. For everything else, I

         12  would say go ahead make it a 7A. You know why? We

         13  need that. We need the development to be there. For

         14  people to say that they're going to fight against

         15  this is ridiculous, because people need it. Nobody

         16  comes down there and shop. I shop there. You know

         17  what? My color of my complexion represents the

         18  people in my neighborhood that I represent there,

         19  and everybody goes, has to go either all the way to

         20  Union Turnpike or go elsewhere to go to a bank. We

         21  only have two banks. We need banks. We need

         22  development. We need a Pathmark. We need

         23  beautification. I agree with all these people that

         24  are here, Dr. Brackis, Eisenhauer and the Kamali

         25  brothers, we need this development. And to sit there
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          2  and removal a proposal, and I want you guys to

          3  understand, I, the civic, for Hillside Avenue, for a

          4  portion of that is not removing the proposal off the

          5  table, and I want you guys to go back and say there

          6  is no unification. I want this to work the right

          7  way. What we all work with, what we all fought for,

          8  this is required. Like I said, you want to fix

          9  parking? DOT needs to get involved. You know how you

         10  do that? Put the park-n-ride on Hillside Avenue.

         11  Create a hub for us to park the car and give us a

         12  subsidy on it and we'll take the subway station.

         13                 And I'm not into, you know, nothing

         14  is perfect. This plan is perfect, but I sure as hell

         15  want a modification and I want the best

         16  modification, but I'm not going to sit there and

         17  take away from people development that is needed in

         18  that area, or suffer it whatsoever (sic). And

         19  blacklisting me from attending any meeting, and that

         20  Melinda Katz isn't here right now, is not the right

         21  way to work with me for unifying.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Thank you.

         23                 One other person signed up to speak

         24  in opposition. Camille, is it Rivera? From Local

         25  32BJ.
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          2                 Is there anybody else who wishes to

          3  speak on this item? Either in favor or against?

          4                 This will be the last speaker then.

          5                 MS. RIVERA: Okay, I'll make this very

          6  quick. I am testifying on behalf of Vice President

          7  Kyle Bragg, who unfortunately couldn't be here

          8  today.

          9                 "Good afternoon. My name is Kyle

         10  Bragg and I am the Vice President of Local 32BJ

         11  SEIU. I would like to thank the New York City

         12  Council, Chairman Tony Avella, for allowing me to

         13  speak today.

         14                 Our union represents 85,000 building

         15  service workers in commercial buildings, residential

         16  buildings, stadiums throughout New York, New Jersey,

         17  Connecticut, Pennsylvania, Delaware, Maryland, and

         18  the District of Columbia.

         19                 Our members live in the communities

         20  in which they work, and they come from every part of

         21  this City and live in every neighborhood. The

         22  Jamaica project being presented here today will

         23  potentially rezone 368 blocks of Downtown Jamaica,

         24  will allow for a higher density of commercial and

         25  residential development, it will create 1,8 million
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          2  square feet of office space, 1.1 million square feet

          3  of retail space, 200,000 square foot hotel and 3,400

          4  units of housing.

          5                 The project will potentially provide

          6  150 building service jobs for the surrounding areas

          7  of Jamaica Queens.

          8                 Unfortunately, the current plan does

          9  not have a provision to ensure that building service

         10  and hotel workers will be paid a decent wage. As the

         11  Administration continues to create these projects as

         12  part of their economic development plan for New York

         13  City, they need to address the issue of good jobs.

         14  With New Yorkers finding it harder and harder to

         15  make ends meet, it is vital that new development not

         16  only provide jobs for the community, but ensure that

         17  they are good jobs that pay good wages.

         18                 During the entire ULURP process and

         19  before this proposal went to City Planning for a

         20  vote, at no time did the Administration discuss how

         21  this issue would affect good jobs. Local 32BJ cannot

         22  support a project that does not address that issue.

         23                 We therefore ask the New York City

         24  Council to oppose the Jamaica rezoning in its

         25  current form until it ensures that there is an
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          2  adequate plan to address wage standards.

          3                 All service workers do an honorable

          4  job and provide an important service. It is

          5  important that their hard work and dedication be

          6  recognized by providing a living wage that benefits

          7  them and their families. We hope that any plan for

          8  Jamaica reflects this vision.

          9                 Thank you."

         10                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We certainly

         11  appreciate the testimony, and I know I speak for my

         12  colleagues on this, that we're all very much

         13  interested in this issue.

         14                 We do have some time, obviously, to

         15  work with the Administration on this.

         16                 MS. RIVERA: Thank you. Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: Council Member

         19  Comrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I just want to

         21  state for the record that I am trying to work with

         22  this issue. This is an issue that is, 32BJ has been

         23  championing to try to get introduced as a part of

         24  Council ULURPs for awhile. My understanding is that

         25  there are a lot, that we need to sit down and try to
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          2  figure this out in a comprehensive way and not try

          3  to give people an impression that something can

          4  happen without legal precedent, which is my

          5  understanding we don't have a clear legal precedent

          6  on. But the issue of trying to make sure that

          7  affordable jobs and creation of economic development

          8  that ensures an opportunity for good-paying jobs is

          9  part of the overall concept for Department of

         10  Economic Development is something that we'll

         11  continue to help you to work with.

         12                 How we get there on this particular

         13  project will depend on the ability to have a real

         14  conversation on all of these potential issues and

         15  opportunities around the plan as soon as possible.

         16                 But I have met with 32BJ about this

         17  and I'm working with the Mayor's Office to try to

         18  figure out a way to amend it. I know that on

         19  specific projects, as they are developed, the City

         20  has been doing an affordability component and a

         21  component to allow for real working wages and a

         22  living wage, and I commit to you that any specific

         23  projects that are done within the Jamaica Plan will

         24  have that component.

         25                 As far as the general position on the
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          2  specifics on it, the general concept, is something

          3  that we're still going to have to work to figure out

          4  a way to make that happen.

          5                 Thank you for being here.

          6                 MS. RIVERA: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON AVELLA: We also have a

          8  number of statements that people who couldn't stay

          9  around submitted for the record. New York Metro,

         10  American Planning Association, the Partnership for

         11  New York City, New York Building Congress, and the

         12  Pratt Center.

         13                 With that, the public hearing on the

         14  Jamaica Plan is now closed.

         15                 We will reconvene on this issue on

         16  August 20th.

         17                 That closes this meeting of the

         18  Subcommittee on Zoning and Franchises.

         19                 (Hearing concluded at 3:13 p.m.)
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